N \;nmnuwunmmmumnm\mmwm L

orodszss | < | T
o7 T REGEEGT '

‘MARIAZGWE'
RN 1 IS § T
o} A

N TULLYS

COF]-EE




.

/ grlpki;‘i

Hot ‘_l.’aut (j‘(l
1

FRos

! ef'lv 1
€ Cocoa 3;:“0/-
L]




TuLrys

i

Tully's fiscal year is the 52 or 53-week period that ends on the Sunday closest to March 31+ each year.

This was April 2, 2006 for Fiscal 2006 and will be April 1, 2007 for Fiscal 2007.
This report contains annual information for Fiscal 2006. ' |

Letterto Shareholders . ........ . .. i e e e SEEEES
Selected Financial Data . .. ...\ v ettt e e e e
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsi. .. ' .......
Quantitative And Qualitative Disclosures About MarketRisk . ...................... . e
Changes In And Disagreements With Accountants On Accounting And Financial Disclosure .......

Consolidated Financial Statements for the Fiscal Years Ended April 2, 2006, April 3, 2005 and
March 28, 2004

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firmn ......................... e
Consolidated Financial Statements ........ ... ... ... .. .. ieueion.. SO SR

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .. ...ttt iivrnnns S

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the Thirty-Nine Week Periods Ended December 31,
2006 and January I, 2006 (unaudited)

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements . ........ it it iinieneeaan
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements ........... ... .. ivunn.n.. e

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Shareholder Matters .......... e

Corporate Information ... ...... e e

Page No.

28

28

29

30

37

65

69

86

87




- Tully’s retail locations is qulte complement:‘try to our company owne :d store growth.

\ February 14, 2007
}
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Dear Shareholders,

| '
Over the past year we have strengthened and enhanced our management team whlch]m
turn has positively impacted our financial performance A componlent of this success is that
we remain committed to and focused on creatmg remarkable handt ‘raft- roasted coffees that
truly stand apart from the rest. We share our passion for our coffee, lw1th every customer who
walks into our retail stores or purchases a bag of Tully s at their local grocery store. !
: | a
And speaking of our retail stores, the 'most excmng news 1nvolives the positive i
comparable store sales achieved in the two:most recent quarters (+ ! 6% in our second quarter
FY 07 and +7.0% in our third quarter FY 07) We believe this reﬂects our 1mplementatlon‘of
well-proven retail concepts introduced by our seasoned management team We have launched
new barista products, more clearly deﬂned\our merchandising assoxtments and focused on;
making greater merchandise statements within our stores. '
!
We are putting more emphasis on store procedures, employee development and employee
rewards. We have refreshed our store interiors, and are devoting r'nc;n:re space in our stores for
groups, increasing the number of large tables to enhance Tully’s free Wi-Fi experience. We
want individuals and groups to consider Tully s as their place to work meet and relax. Also
we have renewed our emphas1s on serving: our local communities and have adopted the |
philosophy of “paying it forward” to symbollze our intentions. l : ;

In addition to our company owned stores, our U.S. franchised store count has risen to
36 stores. We now have franchised stores operating in-colleges, .supe rmarkets airports and ’
hotels. Our franchisee for the state of Idaho has opened three stores in Boise with more to f
come this year. We are proud to include them in the Tully’s family. We believe franchising; ‘of

Our wholesale coffee business contmues to produce double dlgtt quarterly percentage .
sales increases, fueled by growing dlstnbutlon and expansion of new, products We have
increased the number of grocery stores offermg Tully’s coffee to almost 4,000. The wholesale
division has also had great success this past year launching two maJOI‘" new products. 2
Bellaccino, a ready-to-drink bottled coffee beverage in three flavors ﬂas been received well by
the consumer looking for a genume coffee p}oduct The single portmn Tully’s K-Cup for the
Keurig brewing system is.building dlstnbuuon coast to coast. The K- Cup has also been
received well at the retail level.
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Hopefully you have seen our quarterly newsletter called the “Tully’s Inmder” that is
distributed through our stores and by mail to shareholders. Our second edmon was recently
published and distributed. The Tully’s Insider is a great way to keep you and our customers
informed about the exciting news from our retail and wholesale divisions. Please let us know
if you have not been receiving the Tully’s Insider by mail. 3 , ;

r

. f
‘Most importantly, we are focused on strategies to increase the revenues of our company

as we believe that significant top line growth is the best path toward meetm'g our business and
therefore investment objectives. These strategies have required that we make mvestments in
our business, which have adversely affected our short term results. We beheve this to be a

* wise investment for the future. F

We intend to accelerate our growth strategies in the next year. This w1ll reqmre that we

raise additional capital and we have the plannmg process well under way for this need.
|

Even though most of you have been shareholders of Tully’s for less than ten years we
are about to celebrate Tully’s 15th anniversary. We appreciate your support of i ‘our” company
over these many years. We also thank you for being an enthusiastic supporter and cheerleader
by telling your friends and family about all the great things that are happenmg lat Tully’s.

t

We look forward to having a cup of Tully’s with all of you. ‘

Very truly yours,

g

Tom T. O’Keefe John K. Buller -
Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
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The following selected 1f"mancml dala have be)en derived from the consolldaled ﬁnanc1a1 statemenls of
Tully’s. The data set forth below should be read n conjunction with “Managenllent s Dlscussmn and Analysns of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations” allld our consolidated financial ,tatemenls and notes thereto

appearing elsewhere in- lhlS Annual Report. The selected condensed consohdated statements of operations data
for the thirty-nine week penods ended December 31 2006 and January 1, 2006/and the selected condensedl

consolidated balance sheet data for December 31! 2006 are derived from our undudited condensed consolldated

1
financial statements, which’ are included elsewhereim this Annual Report. The selected consolidated statements

of operations data for each of the three years ended April 2, 2006, April 3,:2005 land March 28, 2004 and the
selected consolidated balance sheet data at April 2l 12006 and April 3, 2005 are (lenved from our audited
consolidated financial slalements which are mcluded elsewhere in this Annual Report The selected consolldated
statements of operations data for the fiscal years ended March 30, 2003, March 31 2002, and April 1, 2001 and
the consolidated balance sheet data at January 1, 2006 March 28, 2004 and March 30, 2003 have been denved
from consolidated ﬁnancnal statements that have not been included in this Annu 1] Report. ' 1

| l L . :
i Thlrly-Nme Week : l
’ Period Ended IFiscal Years Ended (1) l
LT o Dec3l, Janl, Apr2, ~ Apc3, Mar28, ' Mar30, Mar3l,
(dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data) 2006 2006 2006 |, 2005 2004 2003 - .2002.
Results of Operations Data®> s . ll ‘ ' l
Netsales .................. T $46‘565 $45,748 $58.245 ' § 53! 980 $50,768 $ 50,800 3 5] 458
Operating income (loss) .. ..., VU (7 206) 1,095 (i 313) (3. 695) (1,846) (6,834) (13 381)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in . .
accounting principle . .. . .: A (-7,:374) 17,800 15,423 (4,625) (2.595) (7.056) (11,422)
Cumulative effect of change in accounung ' !
PRNCIDIE® .. 1.\ ittt i - - = —  cous |-
Net income (loss) ......... T $(7.374) $17.800 $15423 3 (4, 625) $(2,595) $(10,074) $(ll 422)
Eamnings (loss) per share—basic'and dituted:
Earnings (loss) before cumlllllalive effect of ‘ ‘ ' . ll
change in accounting pnnctple .......... $ 041) % 1.00 $ 087 § (0|.28) $@016) % (043) § (0.70)
Cumulative effect of change in accountmg ‘ !
principle® ... 0 s : — — ' — (0.18) l—
Earnings (loss) per share—basic | N (0 4l) $ 100 $ 0.87 $ (O 28) $ (016) § (0.62) § (0.70)
Eamnings (loss) per share—dlluled .............. $ (U 41) $ 034 3§ 030 § (0: 28) $ ©16) 8 (0.62) $ (0 70)
Balance Sheet Data :
Total assets . .. .............. P e $l7.576 $23,681 $21,527 §$ 17.9,30 $20,017 S 23,677 $ 32,469
Long-term obligations (mcludmg current ' \
portion)® ... ... ... TR 4,1};47 3,270 3402 6,883 6,446 6,843 3, 164
Stockholders’ equity (deficit) .............. ... $(1.911) $ 7,500 § 5,127 $(10,6‘39) $(6,671) $ (4,480) $ 5,296
Other Data . ' '
Earnings (loss) before interest, taxes, depreciation l !
and amortization®® ... L e $(4,548) 321,217 $19.676 § 2 $ 1,830 $ (2,093) $ (5.558)
Number of stores at fiscal year end |
Stores operated by Tully’s . l .............. 90 90 88" 2 94 100 i104
Stores operated or franchised by international ,
licensees .............. R o+ % 245 174 113 150
Stores operated by U.S. franchisees ........ 36 20 23 '5 1 — —
Total retail stores at fiscal year end ,........ li6 110 111 34& 269 213 154

b []

—_— !
*  As the result of the Japan nghts sale, the Japanese Tully’s stores operated and franchised by Tully’s Coffee

Japan are excluded from our franchised and hcens‘ed store counts after Auguqtlfil 2005. Tully’s and Tully}

Coffee Japan have agreed to cooperate in the development of the Tully’s brandlfor the mutual benefit of the

two companies. ' ! ' !
|

| |
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Notes for Selected Financial Data |

t

Each fiscal year included 52 weeks, except for the fiscal year ended April 3, 2005 (“Fiscal 2005’[) which had 53 weeks.
The 5316 week accounted for $955,000 in net sales in Fiscal 2005. ’ l .

1
The cumulative effect of a change in accounting for goodwill in the amount of $3,018,000 was rl:cordéd in Fiscal 2003.

A $17.392,000 gain on the sale of the Japan Rights was recognized in Fiscal 2006. As the result:of the|term1natlon of our
license and supply agreements with Tully’s Coffee Japan, $4,405,000 of deferred license revenue was recogmzed in
Fiscal 2006, and Tully’s has not received the operating cash flows from license fees and coffee roastmg fees from Tully’s
Coffee Japan since July 31, 2005. Additionally, the followmg charges are included in the results of operaucms (dollars in
thousands): f !
Thirty-Nine Week l
Period Ended Fiscal Years Ended !

Dec3l, Janl,
2006 2006  Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005  Fiscal 2004’ F|sml 2003 Flscal 2002

Impairment of long-lived '

BSSEIS ..t 5 — — $236 $ 200 $97 . 51310 $2,315
Store closures and lease '

termination costs ........... 96 176 219 43 170
Liquidation and write-off of

Tully’s Europe B.V. ......... — — - — - p— 46
Severance costs related to then- .

president .................. 200 — —_ 402 — L — —
Settlement of litigation (see Note

16 of the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial

Statements) . ............... 72 — — 1,628 — , — —_
Legal and other costs of UCC : :

litigation (see Note 5 of the

Notes to the Condensed

Consolidated Financial

Statements , ............... 799 — —_ —_ — P—_ —
Evaluation of business integration

opportunity (see Note 13 of the . :

Notes to the Consolidated ,

Financial Statements) ........ — — — 129 541 p — . —

Total ..o $1,167 $176  $455 $2,402 $303{ $1.418  $3.944

108 1,583

During Fiscal 2002, Tully’s received a $12,000,000 license fee from UCC. In addition, we recelved $4,200,000 and 300
shares of Tully’s Coffee Japan stock (with a market value of approximately $1,771,000 at Octobcr l 2001) in connection
with the amendment of our supply agreement with Tully’s Coffee Japan. The Tully's Coffee i apan stock was sold by
Tully’s in Fiscal 2003. i l

Long term obligations (including current portion) are summarized as follows (dollars in thousands)

Dec 31, Jan 1, Apr2, Apr 3, Mar 28, Mar 30, Mar 31,
2006 2006 2006 2005 2004 ¢ 2003 2002

Credit line, current portion of long- : '

term debt and capital lease

obligations .. ................ $3.325 2,116  $2209 $2078  §1,1450  § 561 $ 308
Long-term debt, net of current ' t

POTLION ... vi i iiinnnnns 22 — 28 600 2,1 67[ 3,106 26
Capital lease obligations, net of ; i

current portion .. ............. 63 6l 72 112 203 i 360 127
Other liabilities ................ 937 1,093 1,093 1,093 —_ —_ —
Convertible promissory note, net of ’ '

discount .................... — — — 3,000 2,931 12,816 2,703
Long term obligations (including ! j

current portion) .............. $4,347 33270 $3402 $6,883  $6,446 $6.,843 $3,164




(6) Eammgs before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortlzatlon (“EBITDA™) isa ﬁnanmai IMeasurement we use to measure
our operating performance, excluding the effects of financing costs, income taxes,'émd non-cash deprecxaﬂon and’
amortization, See “Managemem s Discussion and Analysis” for additional mfonn.mon regarding 1he computanoxll and
usage of EBITDA mformauon The foltowing table sets forth, for the periods mdlcaled the computation of EBITDA and
reconciliation to the reported amounts for net mcome (loss) (dollars in thousands) I

y . '
v

i

i

' '
: . Thirty-Nine Week ' . I
, Period Ended ,| Fiscal Years Ended
: Déc3l, Janl, ~ Apr2, Apr3, Mar28, Mar30, Mar3l,
: 2006 2006 - 2006 - 2005 2004 2003 {2002

Net income (1088) . i ..} uevrnnnnn.. . $(7374) $17.800 $15423 S$(41625) $(2,595) $(10074) $(11,422)
Add back cumulative effect of change in : '

— — — — 3,018 —
l H
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of b 3

. T
change in accounting principle ........ (7,374) 17,800 15423 (4,625) (2.595)  (7.056) (11.422)
Add back amounts for co:mputalion of _ '

EBITDA o

Interest income, interest expense, and ]
loan guarantee fees .............. 171 405 385 924 760 721 904
INCOME 1AXES . -+ . o' vvrvnsernst ‘;19 39 33 2 a3 25 ‘ 6
Depreciation and amoi'tization ....... 2,636 2,673 3,529 3,651 3622 4217 14,954

Earnings (loss) before mleresl taxes, '1" , : l
depreciation and amomizauon ......... $(4,548) $21,217 $19676 % |2 $1,830 $ (2,093) § (5558)

i
i
|
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL COND'ITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS ! '

The following discussion and analysis provides information that Tully's believes is rel.gzvam;ro an
assessment and understanding of our results of operations and financial condition for the f scal years ended
April 2, 2006, April 3, 2005 and March 28, 2004 and for the thirty-nine week periods ended December 31, 2006
( “Nine Months Fiscal 2007") and January 1, 2006 ( “Nine Months Fiscal 20067). The follawmg ‘discussion
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes appearmg elsewhere
in this report. We believe that certain statements herein, including statements concerning alrmc.lp:ared store
openings and closings, planned capital expenditures, and trends in or expectations regarding Tully’s operations,
constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 21E of the Sec‘uririe's ‘Excjhange Act of
1934, as amended. Such statements are based on currently available operating, financial and co'mpemwe
information, and are subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual future results and trends may differ materially
depending on a variety of factors, including, but not limited to, coffee and other raw materials p;'rices and
availability, successful execution of our business plans, the impact of competition, the eﬁec’t of Iéga! proceedings,
and the success of our franchisees and licensees. These and other factors that may cause 01"‘ actual results and
trends to differ materially from our expectations are described in our annual report on Fi orm 1 0 K and the other
periodic filings that we make with the Securities and Exchange Commission. i l

|

For financial reporting, we end our fiscal year on the Sunday closest to March 31. As fa resgilt, we record our
revenue and expenses on a 52 or 53 week period, depending on the year. Fiscal 2006 included 52 weeks while
Fiscal 2005 included 53 weeks. Each of Fiscal 2004, Fiscal 2003, and Fiscal 2002 included 52 weeks.

Overview , E

As discussed in Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, on August 31, 2005 we sold
certain intellectual property assets and rights to Tully’s Coffee Japan (the “Japan nghts“) for $l7 500,000. These
cash proceeds are being used to improve our financial condition, to fund our current operanons 'and to accelerate

the development of our business outside of Japan.

b
i

During the period from the Japan Rights sale closing through December 31, 2006, Wf.:r havc fully repaid our
debt under the Kent Ceniral note and convertible note (totaling approximately $4.1 mllllolll) In thls time period,
we have invested funds in our Retail and Wholesale divisions with the objective of establlshmg higher sales
levels for both divisions, and in our Specialty division. We have expanded our U.S. franchised store base from 20
locations at January 1, 2006 to 36 locations in Tive states at December 31, 2006, We have invested $3.3 million in
capital expenditures for property and equipment (including seven new company-operated :stores remodels of
several company-operated stores, new equipment or furniture for many of our existing company—operated stores,
and equipment for our Wholesale division). We have also funded increased accounts receivable and inventories
associated with the growth of our Wholesale division. . ' .*

1

From our founding, our objective was to establish Tully’s as one of the most rcspecnlzd coffee brands in the
world. To achieve this goal, we made significant investments in marketing and building our brand and we
concentrated on opening company-operated retail stores in the U.S. and on licensing lhlrd pames in international
markets. In Fiscal 2002, we decided that we had successfully developed our brand 1dent1ty andjthat we could
modify our strategy to place greater emphasis on improving overall corporate operating performance. We also
decided that the Tully’s brand, products, and retail store model have been developed to a point ;where they can be
leveraged for improved operating results, and replicated in additional locations and markets. These continuing
initiatives toward improved operating performance and cash flow include: ‘

* newand exﬁanded product offerings,

« enhancing our marketing efforts,




| ‘ :

. |
* initiating selective retail price changes,i

. ] . 1. - ' . . ’ : .
* making cost of sales improvements through more efficient product purchasing, !

+ opening new company-operated stores that are expected to produce i return on investment that meets
our requirements, i t ) :

e growing our Specialty division revenues through growth'in the number of franchised stores in the u.s.
and from new international licensing reiatlonships

* closing stores that do not meet our financial criteria, |

* increasing sales from the Wholesale di»i'ision through new products and new customers, and :
. ' 1
¢ controlling marketing, general and administrative COsts. |
{
Some business 1mprovement expenditures have negatively impaCted out operatmg results since we
completed the Japan Rights sale, but are intended: o improve our operating results in the future. These mclude
temporary reductions in gross margins on sales (sluch as promotional discounts, disp]ay allowances and new
product sampling costs) for our Wholesale and Retall divisions. We have mcreased some expense spendmg in
order to accelerate the improvements in our retail| operations (such as repair and décor costs and employee 4 1
recruitment and training costs). Other costs (such as new product development, marketmg, and advertising costs)
have been increased with the expectation of increasing our future sales levels.

|
| ‘ !
Additionally, we have: ‘put new personnel into certain key management po‘.mons in our Retail division and
on our executive leadership team. In August 2006 Mr. John Buller, an experienced retail executive servrng on
our board of directors, became President and Chief Executive Officer for Tully? 'S

These strategies, coupled with the elimmauon of the license fees and.coffee roasting revenues from Tu]ly ]
Coffee Japan and increased costs related to hlgher. green coffee costs and gener.tl economic trends, have reduced
our operating income and our cash flow from operatlons as compared to perlod prior to the Japan Rights sale
We believe that these strategies are necessary to accelerate and increase the future growth of our business. The
lead time between investment and results, and the Ievel of success for any 1mt|at1ve cannot be predicted wrth any
level of certainty, but there are some favorable mdications that these efforts are- bemg productive. In our Retail
division, comparable store sales for the fiscal quaner ended October 1, 2006 (“‘»iecond Quarter 2007”) increased
3.6% and comparable store sales for Third Qua.rteil 2007 increased 7.0% compared to the same periods in Flscal
2006. Our new company-operated stores added 7. 8% net retail sales for Third Quaner 2007. Wholesale saleq for
the Third Quarter 2007 increased 31.9% compared to Third Quarter 2006.

Many of these expense investment efforts requ1red a heavier initial mvestment during the past several -
months, Some of these expenses are now being reduced or eliminated. We- expeu‘t the initiatives of the past 1
several months to produce financial benefits for the company, and we are takin g 'other actions with the objective
of improving our operating income and cash flow results as compared to these r::tcent periods. These actrons‘
include improvements to our product gross margm's from lower levels of promouonal discounts and display,
allowances, and from selective price increases. We: have also implemented 1n1tla|t|ves 10 improve mventory
productivity. We expect these efforts to improve our financial performance in future periods. t

|
|
!
| |
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The effects of the Japan Rights sale as described above, and the costs associated with the contested
termination of our license with UCC Ueshima Coffee Company, Ltd. (“UCC”), as described in Note 5 of the
i
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, have resulted in some unusual or nonrecurrmg
* revenue and expense amounts during Fiscal 2007 and Fiscal 2006. These income and (expense) amounts are
summarized as follows (dollars in thousands): ; i

i i
Thirty-Nine Week Periods Ended
December 31, January 1,

2006 | 2006

Included in Revenues—Accelerated recognition of non-cash deferred revenues i i

upon termination of agreements with Tully’s Coffec Japan .. .. .. e $— $ 4,405
Included in Other operating expenses—Actual and estimated legal and other costs ' o

associated with the litigation with UCC . ... .. ... .. .. .. . ... 0. .. (799)! —
Included in Other Income—@Gain on sale of Japan Rights .................... - l 17,392
Income taxes related tothe Japan Rightsale .............. ... ... ... | 19)E (339)
Combined NELAMOMNIS . ..ottt t ettt et ettt e et e e et taanens (8 %) $21,458

Tully’s business plan for Fiscal 2008 reflects a greater emphasis on business growth. We are contmumg to
place an increased emphasis on growth of revenues, as we believe that sustained revenue growth is a key element
in the achievement of Tully’s financial and growth objectives. We expect to open two or fewer company- '
operated stores in the remainder of Fiscal 2007 (in addition to the six already opened this year) 'In Fiscal 2008,
we expect to open up to 40 new company-operated stores, depending upon the amount and tlmmg of the capital
raised for this purpose, as described below. We expect to place continued emphasis on grqwth of our wholesale
division, through new customers and markets, introduction of new products, and promollon of ¢ our current
products. We also expect to add a greater number of franchised stores in Fiscal 2008 as compared to Fiscal 2007.
This higher pace of growth will require higher levels of investment through capital expendltures working capital
and operating expenses. To fund these requlrements we expect to seek additional debt or equlty capital.

We derive our revenues from the:

» 'Retail division, which operates retail stores in the Western United States, l

. Wholesale division, which sells Tully’s-branded products to domestic superma{kets ifood service
" distributors, restaurants, institutions, and office coffee services, and through dlrect mall order and
internet sales, and . [

]

«  Specialty division, which manages our U.S. and foreign franchising. 7 S

The relative percentage of net sales from each division for the Nine Months Fiscal 2007 a_'nd Fiscal 2006 are
depicted by these graphs. '

. FY 2007 3
s;j o ;aity FY 2006 . 9 weeks 1206 |
sion Specialty
11.8% -division

2.6%
Wholasale :
division
22.6% :
. Retall |
Retall division

division
65.6%

* Peréémages for Fiscal 2006 include the effects from the accelerated recognition of $4_I.405,000 of deferred
license revenues, _Excluding this amount, the percentages for the Fiscal 2006 would be Retail (70.9%),
Wholesale (24.6%) and Specialty (4.5%). . [




The retail stores operated by Tully’s and our licensees and franchisees are summarized as follows: |

Thlrty l\lne . !
| Week Period;s Ended Fiscal Years Ended
| Dec3l, ~Janl, April2, April3, March 28,
. } L2006 - '2006 2006 2005 . 2004
STORES OPERATED BY TULLY’S: | | ] I
Beginning of the year ................. (U 88 92 92 94 1100
New SIOTES .. ..ottt 6 2 2 1
Closedstores . ....................... [ ............ @ i@ ® 3 (N
Endoftheyear ...................... |I ...... PP % |%0 88 92 ! %4
LICENSEES AND FRANCHISEES {end of penod) l :
International licensees . .. .............. ... ... ..., — % x %k D45 '174
U.S.franchlsees......................l- ............ - 3% j20 23 5 R
Total licensees and franchisees . . . .. ...... b _36 _‘ll_2 23 250 ’E
Total retail stores at end of the year ........... ‘ ............ 126 ' i04 111 342 ;@

*  Asthe result of the Japan Rights sale, the Japanese Tully’s stores operated' and franchised by Tully’s Coffee

Japan are excluded from our franchised and llcensed store counts after Aupust 31, 2005. Tully’s and Tully s
Coffee Japan have agreed to cooperate in the developmem of the Tully’s brand for the mutual benefit of the
two companies. ‘ l ‘ \ ;
I !

Comparable store-sales are defined as sales from company- operaled stores open for the full period in bath
the current and comparatlve prior year periods. Retall division comparable store Isales increase (decrease) frbm
the third quarter of Fiscal 2004 through the Third Quaﬂer 2007 as comparecl to !he corresponding periods i in the
previous fiscal year, are deplcted in the graph presTnted below.

. Retail Compa‘l‘table Store Sales

10.0%
8.0% l
6.0% !

4.0% = . ‘1

|

7.0%

oo 25% .
Pl | —
0.0% = = . :
-0.8% o7% [J = = - =]
-2.0% = 1.3% -1.4% T YR
213y, 157 1A% &
-4.0% Ll 2.3% _
6.0% . -42% 1 -4.4% ‘i

FY04 FYO4 FYO5 FY05 FYO05 FYOS FYO08 FY(06 FY06 FY(IS FYO07? FYO7? FYQO7
Q3 4 - Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

+

% of Comparable Sales Incr/(Decr)

! _ ! 1
We believe that the comparable store sales i mereases and decreases in the perllods shown above reflect the
effects of (i) the changes in economic conditions genera]ly (ii) competition (mcludmg the effects of new |
compelitive stores opened dunng these periods), (111) the increased availability of rTul]y s coffee in supermarkets
(iv) the relative levels and effectiveness of product mnovatmn and marketing dunng cach penod and (v) the .

]
level of customer satisfaction w1th services and store facilities. '|

' [
1 . .

!

}

| - \
I
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The increases and decreases-in Retail division sales shown in the graph below reflect the factors discussed
above, the openings and closings of stores, and normal seasonal patterns (generally, a sllghtly larger percentage

. Of our Retail division sales occur in our third fiscal quarter). , i

Retail Quarterly Sales (dollars in thousands) ; ||
' I I
S10.500 (T S gy, SO0F e ‘g S1000
00 . $9631, [+ M | 30448 1 $9,625 §9,580 $9577 =t |-
$9,500 . .- 1. s e
soov0 ' +— T H H I H
$8,500 (. 1 ¥ o IS e I . {*
$8,000 —. — — 1 - T L e
$7,500 || Y e N e Ul . B P ' o
$7,000 M — . b 1 A . —
$6,500 — " - - ok =
$6,000 L S - —
FY04 FY04 FYOb FY05 FY05 FYDS FY06 FY06 FY06 FY06 FYO7! FYO? FY07
@@ Q4 O @ 03 O+ 01 G Q3 Q4 QO Q2

|
*  Data for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2005 excludes sales from the 53rd week of Flscal 2005, Wthh were

$732,000. :

Company Owned Store Count (end of Period) ; ,

: i
FYOd FYO4 FYO5 FY05 FYO5 FY05 FY06 FY06 FY06 FY0o6 'FY07 FY0T FYO7
Q3 Q4 o Q2 Q13 U o Q2 Q3 o jaQ Q2 Q3

Company Owned
Stores

......... 93 94 94 93 . 92 92 9] 92 90 88 .90 S 9
i .
i
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Since Fiscal 2004, our Wholesale division hlas focused on growth through the addition of new customers and

territories. The strategy has resulted in much greater distribution of our producttls in the supermarket and food
service channels and we bcheve is providing a ba51s for improved results'in out Wholesale division. The !
increases and decreases in .Who]esa]e division sales shown in the graph below reflect the effects of new.

customers, new products, pncmg changes, and normal seasonal patterns (generlally, a larger percentage of our

Wholesale division sales occur in our second and third fiscal quarters). . ) ;
PR i '

! ' ’1t i ’
Wholesale Division Sales (dollars in thqusa‘:lnds)
$7,000 : |
$6,000 .

|

]

$4,000 - -
$3.000 - $2.71 | goges 3121

5.
$2 000 151684 81,047 52808 $2.225
' §1,197) N
$1,000 ﬂ_ﬂl‘ ]
$0 l

FY0s FYO4 FYOs FY05 FYO5 FY05 FY0B FYOS FY08 FYU6 FYO7 FYO7 FYO7
Q3 Q4 ,01 Q2 G3 OF& Q1 G2 Q3 QF O Q2 Q3
!

; N ) . I
The fourth quarter of Fiscal 2005 excludes sales from the 53rd week of Fisc;al 2005, which were $223,000.

*

Licensee and Franchise store Count (end of Peri&ld) : ’ \

.FYM:F FYO4d FY05 FY0s FY0S FY05 FY06 FY06 I7Y06 FY06 FY07T FYO07

. 1KY 07
Q3 | Q4 Q1 Q2 LQ3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3
International . ‘ i
Licensees* ..... 155 175 198 207 1228 245 260 — i — — e
USFranchisees ... — 1 _1 _2 -3 4 _S _6 12 120 23 27 33 |3
Total ........ 155 176 200 210 !1232 250 266 12 20 33 l 36
_— === — — p—— —
. ]

As the result of the Japan Rights sale, the Japanese Tully’s stores eperated arllid franchised by Tully s Coffee
Japan are excluded fromlour franchised and lrcensed store counts after Augu;t 31, 2005, Tully’s and Tu]ly s

Coffee Japan have agreed to cooperate in the deve!opment of the Tully's brand for the mutual benefit of the
two companies.

.




Results of Operations !

The following table sets forth actual and pro forma statement of operations data cxpre%sed a}s a percentage
of net sales, for the periods indicatéd. The actual and pro forma statement of operations data have been derived
from our consolidated financial statements, which are included elsewhere in this report. The pro forma statement
of operations data excludes the $4,405,000 of deferred license revenues recognized in Flscal 2006 as a result of
the Japan Rights sale. The statement of operations data for the thirty-nine week periods ended December 31,
2006, January 1, 2006, and the pro forma data are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be abtained

for a full year. - i
! |
Thirty-Nine Week ' X

Periods Ended Fiscal Years Ended
Proforma Proforma | i v
Dec31, Janl, Jan 1, Apr2, ‘Apr2;, Apr3,  Mar28,
T 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2005 2004
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA: ' |
Salesofproducts ............ ..., 97.4% 859% 95.0% 95.5% ' 88.3% 92.0% 935%
Licenses, royalties, andfees ..................... 0.3% 1.8% 2.0% 15%  14% 4.1% 24%
Recognition of deferred revenue . ................. 23% 12.3% 3.0% 3.0% : 103% 39% ., 4.1%
Netsales . . ....ooiinie i anrns 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of goods sold and related occupancy expenses . . . 539% 443% 49.1% 503% 46.5:% 442% 43.6%
Store operating eXpenses .. ..., 29.1% 284% 31.8% 318% | 294% 32.1% 333%
Other operating expenses .................cunn. 92% 5.9% 6.1% 6.6% l 6.1% 5.1% . 4.0%
Marketing, general and administrative costs ., .. ..... 172% 13.1% 14.5% 14.6% 13.5% 149% 14.0%
Depreciation and amortization ................... 57% 5.8% 6.5% 65% - 61% 68% 71%
Settlement of litigation ......................... 02% — — — — 30% . —
Evaluation of business integration opportunity ....... —_ — —_ _ —i 02% 1%
Impairment of long-lived assets .................. — — — 04% . 04% 04% 02%
Store closure and lease termination costs ........... 02% 04% 0.4% 0.4% l 04% 01% 03%
Total cost of goods sold and operating expenses .. ... 1155% 97.6% 108.0% 110.6% ; 102.3% 106.8% 103.6%
Operatingloss ...........coiiiiiiiniririnnnn. (155)% 24% (80)% (106)% : (2.3)% 6.8)% (3.60%
Other income (expense) , t
Interestexpense ..............oouiienennnn. 05% (1.00% (0.1)% (0% O9% (1.D% (1.1)%
Interestincome .............. ooiiiiiiinn, 0.1% 0.3% 0.3% 04% - 04% * *
Gainonsale of Japan Rights .............. ... — 330% 42.1% 32.3% ' 29.9% * *
Miscellaneous income (expense) .............. o 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% O.Fl% 0.1% 0.1%
Loan guarantee feeexpense .. ................ —_ 0.N% (0.2)% O.N%' 0.1)% 0.7 0.4)%
Income (loss) before income taxes ................ (15.8)% 39.6% 33.2% 21.1% i 27.:] % 8.5% (5.00%
Incometaxes ...... .. ... ... . ... ... ... — 0% (0.83)% (0.6)%'.' 0.6)% 0.1)% (0.4)%

Net income {loss) . . U (15.8)% 389%  32.4% 20.5% ; 26.5% B8.6% (G.1N%

*  Amount is less than 0.1% '
i
Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization \
Earnings (loss) before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) is t}t financial measurement
we use to measure our operating performance, excluding the effects of financing costs, income'taxes, and
non-cash depreciation and amortization. We view EBITDA as a key indicator of our operatmg business
performance. We expect to continue to incur these excluded items: interest income, interest expense based on our
outstanding debt, income taxes, and depreciation and amortization as we will contmue to _have long-lived assets.

Regulation 5-K (Item 10(e)) and other provisions of the Exchange Act of 1934 define and prescribe the
conditions for use of certain non-GAAP financial information. We believe that our “EB[TDA" information,
which meets the definition of a non-GAAP financial measure, is important supplemental _mformalnon to
investors. !
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We use EBITDA for mternal managerial purposes and as a means to evaluate period-to-period comparisons.
This non-GAAP financial mcasure is used in acl'dmon to and in conjunction w:th results presented in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP”) and should not be relled upon (o the exclusion of
GAAP financial measures* EBITDA mfonnatmnlreflects an additional way of lvmwmg aspects of our operations
that, when viewed with our GAAP results and the .accompanying rccont:lllatlons to corresponding GAAP ¥
financial measures, providea more complete understandmg of factors and tren'ds affecting our business. We
strongly encourage investors to review our ﬁnanc1a] statements and publicly ﬁled reports in their entirety and to
not rely on any single ﬁnanc1a] measure. )

| i !

Because non-GAAP ﬁnancnal measures are, not standardized, it may not b2 possible to compare these
financial measures with other companies’ non- GAAP financial measures havml,lg the same or similar names. For
information about our ﬁnanc1al results as reportecii in accordance with GAAP, .Fe our financial statements.! For a
quantitative reconciliation of our EBITDA mformatmn to the most comparable GAAP financial measures, see
the table below. ' ; : .

The following table scts forth, for the periods indicated, the computation of EB[TDA and reconciliation to

the reported amounts for net income (loss):
i

| !

Eammgs (loss) before 1nterest taxes, depret:lauon and amortization is compute:d as follows (dollars in
thousands): |

Do " Thirty-Nine Week : _ I'
i Periods Ended | Fiscal Years Ended i

: Dec 31, Jan 1, April2,  April3, March 28,
; ! 2006 2006 2006 2005 2004 |
Net income (10SS) . ..J...o.ovnenn.insnn ' §(7,374)  $17,800* $1f|5',423* $(4,625)  $(2,595)
. Add back amounts for computation of ' |
EBITDA P ‘ |
TInterest income, itlterest expense, and |’ 1
loan guarantee fees .............. . 171 405 385 - 924 760
" Incometaxes ..................... : 19 339 1339 52 43
Depreciation and amortization ....... . 2,636 2,673 3,529 3,651 3,622
Earnings (loss) before tn’terest, taxes, ; T ;
depreciation and amortization ......... ’ $(4,548) $21,217 . $19676 % 2 $1,830

3 . .

—_— ‘ ‘ i |

*  Amounts include the gam of $17,392,000 from the Japan Rights sale and the accelerated recognition of
$4,405,000 of deferred license revenue resultmg from the Japan Rights salcl as described in Note 13 of the

Notes to the Consohdated Financial Statements
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Nine Months Fiscal 2007 Compared To Nine Months Fiscal 2006
Net Sales | :

Sales of products increased $6,067,000 or 15.4% to $45,347,000 for the Nine Months Flscal 2007 as
compared to $39,280,000 for the Nine Months Fiscal 2006. Including the one-time effects of the I$4 405,000 of
deferred license revenues recognized in Fiscal 2006, in the Nine Months Fiscal 2007, net sales increased
$817,000, or 1.8%, to $46,565,000 as compared to net sales of $45,748,000 for the Nine Monlhs ‘Fiscal 2006.
The increase in net sales was comprised as follows: ; .

i Increase
Total company t (Decrease) in
Nine Months Fiscal 2007 compared to Nine Months Fiscal 2006 {dollars in thousands) - Net Sales
Sales Of ProdUCS ... .v ottt e e © o $'6,067
Licenses, royaltiesandfees . . ........ ... .. ... ... ... . i iaaa, I (688)
Recognition of deferred license revenue . ... ... ... .. ool (4,562)
Net SalES .. ittt e e e e - § 817
The divisional increase in net sales was comprised as follows:
i [hcrease
Total company . (Decrease) in
Nine Months Fiscal 2007 compared to Nine Months Fiscal 2006 (dollars in thousands} i _NﬁSali
Retail diviSiOn . ..o ettt et e e e e e $ 412
Wholesale divISION .. .o nnt ettt e e e e I 5,660
Specialty division ............... e e e e : (5,255)
TOtAl COMPANY .« v et e ettt ittt iaaa et aa s $ 817

The Retail division sales increase represented a 1.4% increase compared to the Nme Momhs Fiscal 2006.
For the Nine Months Fiscal 2007 comparable retail store sales were up 3.2%. The factors comprising this sales
increase are summarized as follows: : [

Retail division jIncrease

~ Components of net sales increase . (Decrease) in
Nine Months Fiscal 2007 compared to Nine Months Fiscal 2006 (dollars in thousands) . Net Sales
Comparable stores sales INCrease ...........oviiiiinnnerr i vrnnnns $ 825
Sales increase from New SEOTES ... ..ottt e it iaa e rm e aeennn , 1,811
Sales decrease from stores closed during Fiscal 2007 and Fiscal 2006 . ... .. L ' (2,215)
L 11T ! : (9)
Total Retail division ... ..ot e e it i aa et ; 's 412

Wholesale division net sales increased $5,660,000, or 55.2%, to $15,915,000 for the Nirie Months Fiscal
2007 from $10,255,000 for the Nine Months Fiscal 2006. The increase reflects a $4, 906 000 sales increase in the
grocery channel, (due primarily to growth in the number of supermarkets selling Tully’ s coffee, increased sales
to current supermarkets, and sales of our new RTD beverage products) and sales of our new K-cup products.

Net sales for the Specialty division decreased by $5,255,000 to $1,224,000 for theere Months Fiscal 2007
as compared to the Nine Months Fiscal 2006, reflecting the effects of the Japan Rights sale as described above.

Cost of Goods Sold and Operating Expenses

The accelerated recognition of $4,405,000 of deferred license revenues in the Nme Momhs Fiscal 2006,
which had no associated cost of good sold and only $55,000 of associated expenses, 1mpacted the comparability
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of Nine Months Fiscal 2006 amounts as a percen:tage of net sales as comparedi wrth Nine Months Fiscal 2007
For purposes of comparabllrty, the pro forma percentage of sales amounts shown in the table above (Wthh
exclude the $4,405,000 effects from the accelerated recognition of these deferr'ed license revenues in Nine
Months Fiseal 2006) are presented in the d1scuss1on which follows. : 1
I

Cost of goods sold and related occupancy cd)sts increased $4,820, 000 or j3 8%, to $25,108,000 for the Nine
Months Fiscal 2007 as compared to Nine Momhs Fiscal 2006. The increase reflects approximately $4,530,000 of
cost of goods sold for increased sales of our Wholesale division in the lhmy-mne week peried and approximately
$359.000 of increased costs for our retail dwrsmn including approximately. $l48 000 relating to increased'sales
volumes, with the remainder associated with olher product mix and cost 1"actor‘l As a percentage of net sales,
cost of goods sold and related occupancy costs mcreased to 53.9% for Nine Monlhs Fiscal 2007 as compared 10
44.3% for Nine Months Fiscal 2006, (49.1 % pro forma for the Nine Months Fiscal 2006) reflecting the factors
described above and the mix of net sales descnbed above (sales of the Retail lei’lSlOl‘l and the Specialty dmsmn
typically have higher gross margins than the Wholesale division} in Nine Momhs Fiscal 2007 compared to ‘Nine
Months Fiscal 2006, and higher product costs (mcludmg green coffec) in Nine Months Fiscal 2007.

Store operating expenses increased $540, 000 or 4.2%, to $13,535,000 in Nme Months Fiscal 2007 from
$12,995,000 in Nine Months Fiscal 2006 as the result of general cost increases md the costs associated with
programs to improve retail store service levels, 1nclud1ng increases in store stafhlng and new training programs.
As a percentage of total net sales, store operating expenses increased to 29.1% for Nine Months Fiscal 2007,
compared to 28.4% for Nme Momhs Fiscal 2006 (31 4 % pro forma for the Nini Months Fiscal 2006). l

i

Other operating expenses (expenses assocmleld with all operations other than retail stores) increased :
$1,785,000 or 71.2% to $4,293,000 during Nine Momhs Fiscal 2007 from $2 5018 000 in Nine Months Flscal
2006. The increase reflects $1,088,000 of 1ncreased .expenses incurred in connection with the expansion of our
Wholesale division business, and $799,000 of legalI fees and costs related to the 'UCC litigation (see Note 5 of the
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statemems) as well as additional costs associated with the
opening and development of new franchised stores for our Specialty division. Aﬁi la percentage of net sales, other
operating expenses increased to 9.2% for Nine Months Fiscal 2007 from 5. 5% m ‘Nine Momhs Fiscal 2006 (6 )
% pro forma for the Nine Moriths Fiscal 2006). |

Marketing, general and administrative costs mcreased $2,018,000 or 33.6. % o $8,031,000 during the Nme
Months Fiscal 2007 from $6,013,000 in the Nine Months Fiscal 2006. This i mcre.tse is primarily due to costs}
associated with the business improvement mmalwes described above, and mcludes increased marketing and |
advertising costs of $953,000. Additional retail and related overhead expenses of $217 000 were incurred in the
Nine Months Fiscal 2007 for the expansion of trammg programs and admlmstratron Severance and related costs
of $200,000 were incurred in the Nine Months Frsca] 2007 as compared to $63, 000 of severance and related |
costs incurred in the Nine Months Fiscal 2006. |

Depreciation and amortization expense decrease'd $37,000, or 1.4%, to $2,63§,000 for the Nine Months °
Fiscal 2007 from $2,673,000 for the Nine Months Fi;scal 2006.

1

\
1
1
i
1
'

1

i

Operating Income

As a result of the factors described above, we had an operating loss of $7 206,000 for the Nine Months i
Fiscal 2007, which is an increased loss of $8,301 000 as compared to the operatmglmcome of $1,095,000 durmg
the Nine Months Fiscal 2006. . : ;
|
! ;

During the Nine Months Fiscal 2006, Tully’s recogmzed a gain of $17,392,000 on the Japan Rights sale (see
Note 5 of the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Fmancral Statements).

Other Income (Expense)




Interest expense decreased $245,000 or 51.9% to $227,000 for the Nine Months Flscal 2007 as compared to
$472,000 for the Nine Months Fiscal 2006, reflecting a lower cost of interest due to the 1ower borrowmgs during
the Nine Months Fiscal 2007. I

i
Income Taxes | ;

Income tax expense decreased by $320,000 to $19,000 for the Nine Months Fiscal 2007 as compared to
$339,000 during the Nine Months Fiscal 2006. The Fiscal 2006 amount reflected the esumated 1ncome tax and
AMT consequences from the Japan Rights sale in Fiscal 2006 (the gain recognized on the {apan Rights sale was
generally sheltered from income tax due to our net operating loss carryforwards, but was subject to state income
taxes and federal AMT). During the Nine Months Fiscal 2007, an adjustment was made to. the estlmate for such
income and AMT taxes as a result of the preparation of the tax returns for Fiscal 2006, resultmg in $19,000 of
additional expense. f f

|

Net Income |

| )
As a result of the factors described above, we had a loss of $7,374,000 for the Nine Momhs Fiscal 2007

which is a decrease of $25,174,000, as compared to the net income of $17,800, 000 for the Nine Months Fiscal

2006, ' |

+ i

Earnings (Loss) before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization T
As a result of the factors described above, we had an EBITDA loss of $4,548.,000 for the Nme Months

Fiscal 2007, which represents a decrease of $25,765,000 as compared to EBITDA of $21, 217 000 during the
Nine Months Fiscal 2006.

Fiscal Year Ended April 2, 2006 Compared To Fiscal Year Ended April 3, 2005 ! l

During Fiscal 2006, we intraduced new products to customers with promotions that imclut!ied *“free.trial’” and
discount pricing offers, and implemented programs to improve retail store service levels, ,mcludmg increases in
store staffing and new training programs. These ongoing initiatives are having negative fmancml effects in the
short term, but are intended to grow our retail customer traffic and sales in the future. Due 1o l}mlted capital
availability (before the Japan Rights sale was completed) we limited our investment in rperchandlsmg and
marketing programs, remodeling and renovation of existing stores, and opening of new stores.

! .
Net Sales ) f ;

Qur net sales for Fiscal 2006 increased $4,265,000 (or 7.9%) to $58,245,000 as compared to net sales of

$53,980,000 for Fiscal 2005. The increase in net sales is comprised as follows: ' f

!
I
'

Total company - ) i Increase

- + Fiscal year ended April 2, 2006 compared to the fiscal year ended April 3, 2005 - . {Decrease} in
(dollars in thousands) i Net Sales
Sales of Products ... ... ... ... .t . 81733
Licenses, royaltiesand fees . .. ... ... ... . . . i " 1+ (1,392)
Recognition of deferred licenserevenue .. ............ ... ... ... ... . 3924

Netsales ..ot i i e e 1 $4,265

b
Sales of products increased by $1,733,000, or 3.5%, as the result of increased product sales in our

Wholesale division, partially offset by decreased product sales in our Retail division as descnbcd below,,and
offset by the effects of having 52 weeks of product sales in our Retail and Wholesale dmsnons in Fiscal 2006 as
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i
compared to 53 weeks in Fiscal 2005 (this extra week in Fiscal 2005 representdd $955,000 of product sales). As
the result of the Japan nghts sale and the relatedfermination of our license and supply agreements with Tnlly 8
Coffee Japan, there was a one-time accelerated recognmon of $4.405,000 of d( ferred license revenue in Fiscal
2006, and licenses, royalties and fees decreased due to the cessation of such fet.s from Tully’s Coffee Japan after
July 31, 2005. The d1v1sxonal increase (decrease) in net sales was comprised as follows: |

|
|

Total company Increase ;
Fiscal year ended Apnl 2, 2006 compared to the fiscal year ended April 3, 2005 {Decrease) in
(dollars in thousands) __NLSa_Ies_
Retail division ....... R S R B, $(1,908)
Wholesale division ............... Lo SUUUUEUI S 3671
Specialty division ................ TR UUUDEE SR 2502 !
Total COmpany . .................) | S R $4265

t
¢

The Retail division sales decrease represented a 4.8% decrease (comparab]':e store sales decrease of 2. ]|%)
compared to Retail d1v1swn sales for Fiscal 2005. The factors comprising this siles decrease are summarized as

follows: - '

. t
Retail division . I !

Components of net sales increase Increase
Fiscal year ended April 2, 2006 compared to the fiscal year ended April 3, 2005 (Decrease) in

(dollars in thousands) Net Sales

Comparable stores sales decrease . . . .. TN B $ (74
Sales decrease from stores closed in Fiscal 2006 and Fiscal 2005.....0 ... ... (906) '
Sales increase from new stores . ... .. ; i ....................... b, 570 .
Other ....... ST D b | 66y
Salesfrom53r"weekinFiscal2005...1.......................! ...... (732) ,
Total Retail division ... SURUROY ORI SRUUTRTUUROS SUUOS $51.908)
_ _ RS bl ‘

Wholesale division net sales increased $3,671. 000 or 38.6%, to $13, 137 OOO for Fiscal 2006, from !
$9,516,000 for Fiscal 2005. The increase reflects a $2 782,000 sales increase in the grocery channel, due to |
growth in the number of supermarkets selling Tully, s coffees and expanded product selections in current
supermarkets, combined with increased sales in food service channels, Fiscal 20(15 included a 530 week for,
which Wholesale d1v151on sales totaled $223,000. ' ) :

Net sales for the Specralty division mcreased by $2,502,000, or 57.4%,; to $6,864,000 in Fiscal 2006 from
54,362 000 in Fiscal 2005, reflecting the one-time accelerated recognition of $4, 405 000 of deferred license 1
revenue in Fiscal 2006, offset by the other effects of the Japan Rights sale as descrlbed above. ;

Operating Expenses . - l t

The accelerated recognition of $4,405,000 of deferred license revenues in thé Fiscal 2006, which had no
associated cost of good sold and only $55,000 of assocrated expenses, impacted thte comparability of Fiscal 2006
amounts as a percentage of net sales as compared with Fiscal 2005. For purposes of comparability, the pro forma
percentage of sales amounts shown in the table abovle (which exclude the effects l|r'|'orn the accelerated recogmtnon
of these deferred license revenues in Fiscal 2006) are presented in the dlscussaon which follows. :

i 3

Cost of goods sold and related occupancy costs mcreased $3,240,000, or 13. tn%, to $27,097,000 for Fiscal
2006 as compared to $23, 857 ,000 1n Fiscal 2005. The increase reflects approxlmately $2,400,000 of cost of
goods sold for increased sales of our Wholesale dmsron in Fiscal 2006 and appro*l{llmately $800,000 of mcreaged
costs for green coffee with the new coffee crop. As a percentage of net sales, cost of goods sold and related '
occupancy costs increased to 50.3% (pro forma) for.Fiscal 2006 as compared to 44129 for Fiscal 2005, with !
approximately one third of this resulting from the salfes mix change (sales of the Rz_“tarl division and the Specra%lty

18




division typncally have higher gross margins than the Wholesale division) in Fiscal 2006 compared to Fiscal 2005
and the remaining two thirds resulting primarily from highér product costs (including coffee) and from higher

levels of sales discounts and allowances in the Wholesale division. Additionally, the Retail Edwlsron £ross margin
was lower in Fiscal 2006 compared to Fiscal 2003, reflecting the product discount strategles described above and
higher product costs. :

|
+

Store operating expenses decreased $246,000, or | 4% to $17,095,000 for Fiscal 2006 as cdmpared 1o
-$17,341,000 in Fiscal 2005 as the result of $129,000 of costs from the 53" week in Fiscal 2005 and cost
reductions associated with the closure of stores not meeting our financial requirements, off'set by costs of new
stores and increased labor costs. As a percentage of net sales, store operating expenses decreased to 31, 8% (pro
forma) for Fiscal 2006 as compared to 32.1% for Fiscal 2005. : t

Other operating expenses (expenses \ass_ociated with all operations other than retail stores) increased
$775,000 or 28.0% to $3,538,000 for Fiscal 2006 as compared to $2,763,000 in Fiscal 2005, reflecting $398,000
of additional expenses incurred in connection with the expansion of our Wholesale d1v151on busmess and
$277,000 of increased costs incurred by the Specialty division for the acquisition and deve}opmem of new
customers and new markets. As a percentage of net sales, other operating expenses mcreased to 6 6% (pro forma)
for Fiscal 2006 as compared to 5.1% in Fiscal 2005.

Marketing, general and administrative costs decreased $219 000 or 2. 7% to $7,844, OOO for Fiscal 2006 as
compared to $8,063,000 for Fiscal 2005, reflecting the inclusion in Fiscal 2005 of severance and related costs of
$402,000 from the resignation of our then- presrdem and $36,000 of costs from the 53¢ week in Frscal 2005.

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $122,000, or 3.3%, to $3,529,000 for Fls*caI 2006 as
compared to $3,651,000 in Fiscal 2008, reflecting a lower level of depreciable asset book value in Fiscal 2006
and $68,000 of expense from the 53 week in Fiscal 2005. i

| |

During Fiscal 2004 we entered into preliminary discussions with Tully’s Coffee Japa:njabb:ut the possibility
of integrating our business with Tully’s Coffee Japan, which were terminated in Fiscal 2005. In Fiscal 2005, we
incurred fees and other expenses of $129,000, but we did not incur such fees in Fiscal 2006. f

During Fiscal 2006 and Fiscal 2005, we performed reviews of our long-lived assets to determme whether
such assets were impaired (see Note 8 of the Notes to the Censolidated Financial Statements) These reviews
determined that impairments did exist, and a non-cash charge of $236,000 was recogmzed in Fiscal 2006
compared to the non-cash impairment charge of $200,000 during Fiscal 2005. '

During Fiscal 2006, we incurred store closure and lease termination costs of $219, 000 in connectron with
the closure of stores that did not meet our financial criteria, as compared to $43,000 of such cosLs in Fiscal 2005.
" Operating Loss ’

As a result of the factors descnbed above, we had an operating loss of $1,313,000 for Flscal 2006, whlch is
reduction in loss of $2,382,000 (64.5%) as compared to the operating loss of $3,695,000 durmg Fiscal 20035,

Other Income (Expense)

During Fiscal 2006, Tully’s recognized a gain of $17,392,000 on the Japan Rights sale :
' i
Intérest income increased $205,000 to $208,000 for Fiscal 2006 as compared to $3 i000 dunng Frsca] 2005 .
due to the increase of the amount of cash invested in interest bearing accounts after the proceeds from the Japan
Rights sale were received in Fiscal 2006. |

Imeresl expense decreased $43,000, or 7.5%, to $527,000 for Fiscal 2006 as compared to $570, 000 during
Fiscal 2005 due to lower outstanding debt during Fiscal 2006, partially offset by the effecls of higher interest
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rates on outstanding debt during Fiscal 2006 as compared to Fiscal 2005, and 32,000 of interest expense from a

multi-year state tax audit compleled in Fiscal Quarter 2006.
|

During Fiscal 2006 we incurred loan guarantee fee expense of $66,000 from the non-cash compensation
(paid with warrants) to the guarantors of the credu facility, as compared to $357 000 in Fiscal 2003. The decrease

resulted primartly from the repayment of the relaled debt.

1

Income Taxes i

Income tax expense increased $287,000 o $339 000 for Flsca] 2006 as compared to $52,000 during Fiscal
2005 due to the income tax consequences from the Japan Rights sale in Fiscal 2 ’pO6 offset by a reduction i in
foreign tax expense associated with the cessation of taxable revenues from Tully’s Coffee Japan after July 31,
2005. The gain recognized on the Japan Rights sa}e is generally sheltered fromuncome tax due to our net
operating loss carryforwards, but in Fiscal 2006 we recognized $335,000 of slate income taxes and federal :

alternative minimum tax (“AMT”) related to this sale

Ner Income (Loss)

As aresult of Japan Rights sale and the otherl] factors described above, net 1ncome increased $20,048 OOO to
loss of $4,625,000 during Frcal 2005.

515,423,000 during Fiscal 2006, as compared toal

. !
Earnings (Loss) before Interest, Taxes, Deprecalanon and Amortization

As a result of the Japan Rights sale and other:factors described above, we had EBITDA of $19,676, 000 for
F15cal 2006, which is an increase of $19,674,000 as compared to the EBITDA of $2,000 for Fiscal 2005.

Fiscal Year Ended April 3', 2005 Compared To Fiscal Year Ended March 2§, 2004

Net Sales

QOur net sales for Fiscal 2005 increased $3, 212 ;000 (or 6.3%) 10 $53, 980 OOO as compared to net sales of

$50,768,000 for Fiscal 2004. The increase in net sa{les is comprised as follows:

Total company i
Fiscal year ended April 3, 2005 compared to the ﬂscal year ended March 28, 2004
(dollars in thousands) | |

Salesofproducts . ..................... N S
Licenses, royalties and fees . ............. ] b
i

|
I [ ACY 1= J U Lo

Sales of products increased by $2,218,000, or 4 7%, as the result of mcreased product sales in our ]
Wholesale division, and due to having 53 weeks of product sales in Fiscal 2005 as compared to 52 weeks in |
Fiscal 2004 (this extra week in Fiscal 2005 represented $955,000 of product sales ) which was partially offset by
decreased product sales in our Retail division as descnbed below. The dmsnona]:mcrease or decrease in net sales

was comprised as follows:

I

|
Total company i
Fiseal year ended April 3, 2005 compared to the fiscal year ended March 28, 2004
{dollars in thousands)

"
i
I

Retail division ....... S SRR SURUR
Wholesale division ... .. .......oooeia b b
Specialty division ........... ... e D

|
Total Company ..............c.eeeviinn. L b

Net Sales

‘
|

i

i
i
Increase

(Decrease) in

$2218
994

$3212

1
t
]
i

i
i
Increase

(Decrease) in.
Net Sales .




Retail division sales reflect a 1.3% decrease (comparable store sales decrease of 2.0%) compared to Retail
division sales for Fiscal 2004. The factors comprising this sales decrease are summarized as follews:

Retaul division

Components of net sales increase . | Increase
Fiscal year ended April 3, 2005 compared to the fiscal year ended March 28, 2004 . 1 (Decrease} in
(dollars in thousands) . ; Net Sales
Comparablestoressalesdecrease.........................................;'.. : $(791) ¢«
Sales decrease from stores closed in Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal 2004 .. ... ... ... ...... : (973)
Sales inCrease fTom MEW SIOTES . .\ttt ettt it et et i a e n et inss : 297

L 432 1 220
Sales from 539 week in Fiscal 2005 ....................... e cee 732
Total Retail divisSion . ... ... ... . it i ittt e e e $(515)

|

Wholesale division net sales increased $2 994,000, or 45.9%, to $9,516,000 for Fiscal' 2005 from
$6,522,000 for Fiscal 2004. The increase reflects a $2,271,000 sales increase in the grocery channel due
primarily to growth in the number of supermarkets selling Tully’s coffees, combined with mcreased sales in food

service channels. Fiscal 2005 included a 53" week, for which Wholesale division sales totaled $223,000.
|

Net sales for the Specialty division increased by $733,000, or 20.2%, to $4,362, 000 m Ftscal 2005 from
$3,629,000 in Fiscal 2004, reflecting the increase in royaities and coffee roasting fees that resulted from growth
in the number of stores operated by Tully’s Coffee Japan. l

Operating Expenses ! '

Cost of goods sold and related occupancy costs increased $1,704,000, or 7.7%, to $23 857 000 for Fiscal
2005 as compared to $22,153,000 in Fiscal 2004, primarily due to the cost of goods sold related to the increased
sales of our Wholesale division. As a percentage of net sales, cost of goods sold and related occupancy costs
increased to 44.2% for the Fiscal 2005 as compared to 43.6% for Fiscal 2004, primarily as ‘a result of growth in
Wholesale division sales (which generally have a greater cost of sales percentage than Retail division and
Specialty division sales). .

Store operating expenses mcreased $418,000, or 2.5%, to $17,341,000 for Fiscal 2005 as compared to .
$16,923,000 in Fiscal 2004 as the result of $129,000 of costs from the 53¢ week in Fiscal 2005, ‘costs of new
~ stores and increased labor costs in Fiscal 2003, partially offset by cost reductions aqsocmteh wnth closure of
stores not meeting our financial requlremems As a percentage of net sales, store operatmg expenses declined to
32.1% for Fiscal 2005 from 33.3% for Fiscal 2004 o

Other operating expenses (expenses associated with all operations other than retail stores) mereased
$749,000 or 37.2% to $2,763,000 for Fiscal 2005 as compared to $2,014,000 in Fiscal 2004 reﬂectmg the
expenses incurred in connection with the expansion of our Wholesale division business, and' including $6,000 of
costs from the 53% week in Fiscal 2005. As a percentage of net sales, other operating expenses increased to 5.1%

~for Fiscal 2005 as compared to 4.0% in Fiscal 2004. : !

[

Marketmg, general and administrative costs increased $969,000, or 13.7%, to $8,063, 000 for Fiscal 2005 as
compared to $7,094,000 for Fiscal 2004, reflecting accrual of severance and related costs of $402,000 from the
resignation of our then- presxdem $36,000 of costs from the 53 week in Fiscal 2005 and mcreaéed labor costs
dunng F:scal 2005. |

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $29,000, or 0.8%, to $3,651,000 for Flscal 2005 as
compared to $3,622,000 in Fiscal 2004 as the result of $47,000 of depreciation and amortlzatlon expense from
- the 53 week in Fiscal 2005.

pa




In February 2004 a lawsuit was filed against; Tully’s in California state court by two former store man'agers
on behalf of themselves and on behalf of other former and current store managers in the state of California. We
i
have entered into a prehmmary agreement regardzng the settlement of this mat}er In Fiscal 2005, Tully’s :
incurred a charge of approximately $1,628,000 for the settlement and associated costs of this lawsuit (see Note

16 of the notes to the Consolidated Financial Stdtémems). : ;

During Fiscal 2004 we entered into prellmmlary discussions with Tully’s (,offee Japan about the pOSSIblllty
of integrating our business:with Tully’s Coffee Japan On May 12, 2004, we reported that we have ceased
discussions with Tully’s Coffee Japan. In connectlon with these discussions and the evaluation of this busmess
integration opportunity, we incurred fees and olher expenses of $129,000 in Fi: ,cal 2005 and $541,000 in Flscal
2004. . | - :

4

During Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal 2004, we perflonned reviews of our long-llved assets to determine whether
such assets were impaired (see Note 8 of the Notes to the Consolidated Flnancml Statements). These reviews
determined that impairments did exist, and a non-cash charge of $200,000 waslrecogmzed in Fiscal 2005 ,
compared to the non-cash impairment charge of $97,000 during Fiscal 2004.

. !

During Fiscal 2005, we incurred store closure and lease termination costs of $43,000 in connection wuh the
closure of stores that did not meet our financial criteria. Tully’s incurred $170, OOO such costs in connection with
the closure of stores during Fiscal 2004. 1 i

!

Operating Loss {

As a result of the litigation settlement charge of $1,628,000 and the other factors described above, we had an
operating loss of $3,695,000 for Fiscal 2005, which is an increase of $1,849 000 (89.3%) as compared to lhe
operating loss of $1,846, 000 during Fiscal 2004. l :

l ;

Interest expense increased $33,000, or 6.1%, to $570,000 for Fiscal 2005 as compared to $537.000 dulnng
Fiscal 2004 due to higher rates of cash interest on oulstandmg debt during Flsca] 2005 and the replacement of
non-cash warrant interest with cash interest for the convertible promissory note lv::on’unenc:mg January 2005.

t

During Fiscal 2005 we incurred loan guarantee fee expense of $357,000 ﬁ:'(:Jm the non-cash compensation
(paid with warrants) to the guarantors of the credit facility (see Note 11 of the I‘x{oles to the Consolidated |
Financial Statements). This increase was due to a hlgher share valuation associated with the measurement of this
expense in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2005.

Other Income (Expense)

l

i

Net Income {Loss) 1f ‘

As a result of the litigation settlement charge and the other factors descnbod above, net loss mcreasedv
$2.,030,000 to $4,625,000 during Fiscal 2005, as clompared to a net loss of $2, 595 ;000 during Fiscal 2004,

Earnings (Loss) before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization } :

As a result of the litigation settlement charge and the other factors describe |d above, we had EBITDA of
$2,000 for Fiscal 2005, which is a decrease of $1, 828 000 as compared to. EBl'I DA of $1,830,000 durmg chal
2004.

|
l
|
|
| {
I
1
1




Liquidity and Capital Resources

. . , !
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, selected statement of cash flows dalta (dollars in
thousands):

* Thirty-Nine Week N

Period Ended . Fiscal Years Ended
Decdl,  Janl, April 2, April3, March 28,
2006 2006 2006 k 2005 2004

. (dollars in thousands)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS DATA !

Cash provided by (used for): y O
Netincome (loss) ...............ooiiia.. $(7,374) $ 17,800 $ 15423 $(4,625) $(2,595)

Gainonsale of Japan Rights .. ... . .. ... . ... —_ 17,392y (17,392) : — —
Adjustments for depreciation and other non-cash : f

operating statement amounts .................. 1,980 (2,486) (1,626) 2,474 2,376
Net income (loss) adjusted for non-cash operating i .

StAatement AMOUNTS ...\ \v v eer v nvneee v enanns (5,394) 2,078y  (3,595) (2,151) (219)
Deferred revenue cashreceived .................. —_ — 25 i — 500
Cash provided (used) for other changes in assets and . |

liabilities . . ... .. ... 1,292 (3,703) (3,511) 3,495 1,006
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ...  (4,102)  (5,781)  (7,081) 1344 1287
Net cash proceeds from Japan Rightssale . ... ...... — 17,392 17,392 | — f—
Purchases of property and equipment ............. (1,490)  (1,088) (2,369) ' (564) (286)
Net borrowings (repayments) of debt and capital .

L 724 (4,137)  (4,004) 1(909)  (761)
Other ... .. e e - 16 23 6. 319 14

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . ... $(4 852) $ 6409 $ 3, 944 $ . 1 190 $ 254

[ < l

Overall, our operating activities, investing activities, and financing activities provided $3 944 000 of cash
during Fiscal 2006 as compared to $190,000 of cash provided during Fiscal 2005 and $254, 000 provided in .
Fiscal 2004. Our operating activities, investing activities, and financing activities used $4, 852 000 of cash and
cash equivalents during the Nine Months Fiscal 2007 as compared to cash provided of $6, 409, 000 during the
Nine Months Fiscal 2006. i

As discussed above under “Overview,” on August 31, 2005 we sold certain intellectual property assets and
rights to Tully’s Coffee Japan (the “Japan Rights”) for $17,500,600. These cash proceeds are bemg used to
improve our financial condition, to fund our current operations, and to accelerate the dcvclopment -of our
business outside of Japan. |

Cash used in operating activities for Fiscal 2006 was $7,081,000, a change of $8,425, 000 compared 10
Fiscal 2005 when operating activities provided cash of $1,344,000. This related primarily to a $7,117,000
difference in cash used for accounts payable and accrued liabilities; during Fiscal 2006, we used $2 534,000 of
cash to reduce the level of accounts payable and accrued liabilities, but in Fiscal 2005 cash clvf 34, l583 000 was
provided by-an increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Operating activities provided cash of
$1.287,000 in Fiscal 2004. Additionally, increased accounts receivable used cash of $813, 000 dunng Fiscal
2006, primarily as the result of increased Wholesale division sales and the timing of customer paymems and
increased inventories used cash of $600,000 as the result of higher coffee costs and increased stocking levels for
some products in support of sales increase objectives. ‘

b

Cash used in operating actlvmes in the Nine Months Fiscal 2007 was $4,102,000, as comparcd to

$5,781,000 used by operating activities in the Nine Months Fiscal 2006. During the Nine Months Fiscal 2007,

|
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our investment in accounts receivable increased b!y $1,620,000, or 70.3% to $.},925 000 at December 31, 2006,
compared to $2,305,000 at April 2, 2006, as the rlesult of the higher levels of s.lles in our Wholesale division,
particularly during the later half of the Nine Months Fiscal 2007. During the Nine Months Fiscal 2007 we'
increased our inventory levels by $542,000 or 17]3% to $3,682,000 at Decemb‘er 31, 2006, compared to
$3,140,000 at April 2, 2006 in connection with the growth of our Wholesale dmsmn and seasonal requirements.
Accounts payable increased by $1,061,000 dunng the Nine Months Fiscal 2007 reflecting the overall i mcrease in
inventory levels, the hlgher busmess levels in our Wholesale and Specialty d1v1s1ons and the timing of paymenls

Investing activities prov1ded cash of $15, 023 000 in Fiscal 2006. This reflected the net proceeds received
from the Japan Rights sale of $17,392,000, offsct by cash used for capital expe ndltures of $2,307,000 in Flscal
2006. Investing activities used cash of $564,000 i m Fiscal 2005 and $286,000 i m Fiscal 2004. In Fiscal 2005 and
Fiscal 2004, we minimized our investing actlvmes as part of our strategy. for conservatwe use of capital. Cash
invested for capital expendltures increased in Fasca] 2006 compared to Fiscal ° ”POS and Fiscal 2004 due to:
increased investments for new stores and 1mprovemenls to existing retail stores. Cash used for capital
expenditures was $2,307,000 in Fiscal 2006, $560 000 in Fiscal 2005 and $320 000 in Fiscal 2004,

|

Investing activities used cash of $1,508, 000 in the Nine Months Fiscal 2007 and provided cash of
$16,324,000 in the Nine Months Fiscal 2006 as a ‘result of the cash proceeds r< celved on the Japan Rights! We
used $1,490,000 in capnal expendltures during the Nine Months Fiscal 2007 relatmg to the business !
improvement initiatives described above (mcludmg six new company- operated stores, remodels of several
company-operated stores, new equipment or furniture for many of our ex;stmg,‘company operated stores, and
equipment for our Wholesale division). i .

i

Financing activities used cash of $3,998,000 in Fiscal 2006, $590,000 in hscal 2005, and $747, 000 in Fiscal
2004. In each year, the primary financing act1v1ty was repayment of debt and eapltal leases. In Fiscal 2005 the
shareholder rights offering provided cash of $243,000 (after payment of offenng costs). !

Financing activities provided cash of $758, OOO in the Nine Months Flscal 2007 and used cash of $4, 134 000
in the Nine Months Fiscal 2006, reflecting the payments on long-term debt in Lhe Nine Months Fiscal 2006

As of December 31, 2006 we had cash and cash equivalents of $529,000;'and a working capital deﬁcnt of
$6,394,000. Because we prmc1pa]ly operate as al“cash retail business,” we gen'erally do not require a 51gn1ﬁcant
net investment in working capital and historical]y have operated with current Hablllues in excess of our current
assets, Our Wholesale division requires a greater level of investment in accounts receivable and mventory, which
have increased as that business has grown. Our inventory levels typically mcr-l’lase during the spring due to coffee
crop seasonality and, to a lesser degree, during the autumn due to holiday seagon merchandise. Inventories are
also subject to short-term-fluctuations based up&n the timing of coffee recelph Tully’s expects that its
investment in accounts receivable and mventones will be relatively constant {or the remainder of Fiscal 2007, but
will increase in Fiscal 2008, primarily as the resu]l of anticipated further grov\'th in the Wholesale dwnsmn

Cash reqmrements for the remainder of Fiscal 2007, other than normal operating expenses and the |
commitments described in the condensed consohdated financial statements ana notes and in the Form 10-K, are
expected to consist primarily of capital expenduures related to the opening of lnew company-operated stores and
equipment and accounts receivable related to new Wholesale division busme<s Franchised and licensed stores do
not require capital investment in property and equlpment by Tully’s, but we d? incur selling and support ¢osts for
such new stores related to store opening, tralmng, and quality control. We expect to open two or fewer company-
operated stores in the remainder of Fiscal 2007. In Fiscal 2008, we expect to open up to 40 new company-
operated stores, depending -upon the amount andI timing of the capital raised fcl»r this purposes, as described
below. Typically, a new company-operated store’ will require capital investment of approximately $100, 000 to
$400,000, but this varies depending on the specnﬁc location. Some of these cai)ltal expenditures may be !
accomplished through operating or capital leases.
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In November 2006, we renewed our secured credit facility with Northrim Funding Services (“Northrim™)
and mcreased the credit line available as described in Note 4. - F

anbllmes at December 31, 2006 include deferred licensing revenue in the aggregate amoum of $3,252,000.
We will liquidate the deferred revenue balance through recognition of non-cash revenues 1nlfuture periods, rather
than through cash payments. We believe it is unlikely that any substantial performance will be requlred by
Tully’s relative to this deferred licensing revenue. -+ : !

. |

We believe that the operating cash flows, financing cash flows, and investing cash flows prdjected for the
- remainder of Fiscal 2007, the cash and cash equivalents of $529,000 at December 31, 2006, 'and our credit
facility will be sufficient to fund ongoing operations of Tully’s through the remainder of Flscal 2007 We expect
our business improvement initiatives and other actions will improve our.operating income and cash flow results.
Tully’s business plan for Fiscal 2008 reflects a greater emphasis on business growth, mcludmg a. greater number
of new company-operated store openings, than has been typical during the past few years. Howe\lfer the timing
and extent of success for these strategies cannot be predicted with any level of certainty. In Iorder to continue our
growth efforts and maintain an appropriate level of liquidity, we expect to seek additional sources of business
funding (such as debt or equity financings)} during the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2007 or in Flscal 2008 If the
pricing or terms for any new financing do not meet our expectations, we may be required to choose between
completion of the financing on such unfavorable terms or not completing the financing. If other sources of capital
are unavailable, or are available only on a limited basis or under unacceptable terms, then we could be required
to substantially.reduce operating, marketing, general and administrative costs related to our commumg
operations, or reduce or discontinue our investments in store improvements, new customers and new products.
We could be required to sell stores or other assets and could be unable to take advantage of busmess
oppeortunities or respond to competitive pressures, The sale of stores or other income- producmg assets could
adversely affect our future operating results and cash flows. |

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as of December 31, 2006. }
- The following table summarizes our principal financial commitments (other than ordinary trade obllgauons
such as accounts payable and accrued liabilities) as of Apnl 2, 2006: !

1
Payments Due by Fiscal Year |

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal - Fiscal ,  Fiscal

Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011  Thereafter
(dollars in thousands) ' i
Northrim facility . ... ... .. ... ... ... $1901 $1901 $ — 8 — §$ — § — $—
Otherdebt ... .. .. ... ... ... ... 253 225 ~ 10 10 g8 . - -
Capital leases . ...................... 190 100 45 23 15 7 —_
Operating leases ..................... 18,266 5100 4443 3744 3076 i 1,301 602
Green coffee purchases (1) .., ...... L 8,600 8,600 —_ — _ | — —
Executive severance (2) ............... 50 50 — — —_ = —

$29,260 $15,976 $4,498 83,777 $3,099 §$1,308  $602

- : i

(1} Asof April 2, 2006, we had contracts with fixed-price coffee purchase commitments and \\]Je also had
commitments to purchase coffee at prices to be determined by future coffee market mdlces (permitting us to
fix the price prior to delivery, based on the then-current market). In June 2006, we exercnsed our option to
fix the pricing for these remaining contracts. As of June 19, 2006, we had approxlmately $7 000,000 in
fixed price purchase commitments for Fiscal 2007. i

{2) Pursuant to the employment letters for members of Tully’s senior management team, |Tully s has agreed to
pay severance compensation to these executives in the event their employment by Tully’s is terminated for
reasons other than certain excluded circumstances. The amount of severance to be paid woluld depend upon
the rate of salary at the time of termination and other factors. As of April 2, 2006, the aggregate contingent
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obligation for severance to these individua:lis‘ was approximately $370,00t:). Accrued liabilities at Aprll 2,

. . - o
2006 include accrued severance costs related o our former president in llle amount of $50,000. !
|

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

We have identified the policies below as critical to our business operatnons and the understandmg of our
results of operations. The lmpact and any associated risks related to these polmes on our business operatlons is
discussed throughout Managemem s Discussion 1and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
where such policies affect our reported and expected financial results. For a dc' itzuled discussion on the .
application of these and other accounting pohcws see Note 1 of.the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 1
Statemnents. Note that our preparation of the consolldatecl financial statements lrlequ1res us to make estlmates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, dlsclosure"of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of our financial statements, and the reponed amounts of revenue anld expenses during the reportmg
period. There can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from those: estlmates

t

Our discussion and analysis of our financiallcondition and results of operauons are based upon our ;
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance wnh accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. We believe the followmg critical accounting pollc1es affect our more srgmﬁcant
judgments and estimates used in our consolldated| financial statements, and should be read in conjunction ‘;mth
the Consolidated Financial Statements. Our cnt1cal accounting policies relate partmularly to (1) revenue |
recognition, (2) evaluation for impairment of long -lived assets, and (3) lease ternunatlon reserves, |

,, | T
Revenue recognition i .

Sales are generally recognized at the time of the sale at retail store locat|o|rls Sales for the Wholesale and
Specialty divisions are recognized upon shlpment of the products. Allowances to Wholesale division customers
for retail display and distribution positions {such as “slotting” allowances) are recogmzed as a reduction in sales,
reducing gross profits untll fuIly amortized (typlcally a period of two to six months) Other wholesale sales
discounts and allowances are recognized in the pénod earned by the customer. In some instances, the amounts of
an allowance or discount w1ll depend upon the actual performance of a customeir for a particular program (such
as the number of packages of Tully’s product sold in a particular period of tlmt) The actual performance for the
program will be determined by the customer and Tully s after the program is completed Tully's initially records
Management s estimate of the eéxpected results fol" such programs, and then an z'adjustment is made, as necessary,
when the actual results are reported to Tuily's. |

Revenues from advance license fees and s:mirlar agreements are recognized on the straight-line basis dver
the expected life of the agreements (ranging from'elght to fifteen years). Managl"ernent s judgment is mvolved in
determining the applicable amortization periods for these advance license fees, Royalty revenues for mternattonal
licensees are recognized in accordance with the llé:Ense agreements based uponllsales at specific licensee store
locations. Coffee roasting fees are recognized thl:l'l the licensee that is subject to the fee purchases coffee. lruual'
franchise fees for new stores franchised by Tully's are recognized when Tully’ r.ihas completed the ser\nces‘,
required to earn the fée and make it non—refundabllé which is generally upon op:ening of the store. Royalty |
revenues for stores franchised by Tully’s are recogmzed in accordance with the; franchise agreements based upon
sales at the franchised store locations. [ ‘ i

| ‘

f . . -
Evaluation of long-lived assets for impairment | I

We periodically review the carrying value of our long-lived assets for contrmued appropriateness. ThlSw
review is based upon our projections of ant1c1pated future cash flows. We reconli impairment Josses on long lived
assets used in operations when events and c1rcumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired and the ,
undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the carrying amount of those
ttems. Our cash flow estimates are based on historical results adjusted to reflect our best estimate of future t
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market and operating conditions. While we believe that our estimates of future cash flows are reasonable
different assumptions regarding such cash flows could materially affect our evaluations. The net carrymg value
of assets not recoverable are reduced to their fair value. Our estimates of fair value represen; our best estimate,
based primarily on discounted cash flows. {}

1

t

j

Penodlcally, we will detemnnc that certain leases will-be termmated and the store or o}llcr operation will be
closed. At the time when agreements are reached, we accrue for the net future minimum lease payments of the
related lease agreements. Amounts accrued as net future minimum losses.include the dlscoumed estlmated future

rental payments and lease termination fees, and estimated sub-lease recoveries. , }

Recogmnon and measuremem of lease termination reserves

New Accounting Standards

See Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QU’ALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB'OUT MARKET RISK
o iy .
The supply and pnee of coffee beans are su:b]ect to significant volatlllty ‘md can be affected by multiple
factors in producing counthes including weather political and economic comllmons In addmon green coffee
bean prices have been affected in the past, and may be affected in the future, by the actions of certain
organizations and assocratrons that have hlstoneally attempted to influence co|mmod1ty prices of green coffee
beans through agreements establishing export quotas or restricting coffee be.m! supplies worldwide. In order to
limit the cost exposure of the main commodity ulsed in our business, we enter into fixed-price purchase
commitments. Typlcally, Tully s has entered 1nto contracts for the next season s delivery of. green coffee beans to
help ensure adequacy of supply As of April 2, 2006 we had contracts with fi: (ed -price eoffce purchase
commitments and we alsoI had commitments to ﬁurchase coffee at prices'to be. 'determmed by future coffee
market indices (perrmttmg us to fix the price pnor to delivery, based on the thzn-current market). In June 2006
we exercised our option to fix the pricing for these remaining contracts, As of;June 19, 2006, we had i
approximately $7,000, 000 in fixed price purcha‘sle commitments for Fiscal 2007. However, we estimate that a ten
percent increase in coffee bean pricing could reduce operating income by $60I) 000 10 $900, 000 annually rf we
were unable to adjust our retaﬂ prices. We currently have no foreign currency, exchange rate exposure related 10

our purchasing of coffee beans because all transactlons are denominated in U, fS dollars. |
ot '

;
|
|
|

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING |
; AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of g
Tully’s Coffee Corporation. : .

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tully’s Coffee Corporauon as of April 2,
2006 and April 3, 2005 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equnyi(deﬁcn) and
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended April 2, 2006, April 3, 2003, and M'arch 28, 2004,
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management Our responsnblllty
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. | !

L

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accountmg Oversight
Board (Umted States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to-obtain reasonab]e

- assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required

to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reportmg Our audit
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for desrgnmg audit procedures that
are appropnale in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecuveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. A.l]l audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant esLumates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits

provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. . {

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above presem fairly, in ‘all matenal respects .
the consolldated financial position of Tully’s Coffee Corporation as of April-2, 2006 and Aplnl 3. 2005 and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year penod ended April

" 2, 2006, Apnl 3, 2005, and March 28, 2004, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

:

United States of America. !
MOSS ADAMS LLP |

Seattle, Washington l
July 3, 2006




Current assets i
Cash and cash equwalents

TULLY’ S COFFEE CORPORATIONI
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

i i
4

Accounts receivable, nel of allowance for doubtful accounts of $149 and $171 at |20(]6 and 2005,

respectively .....:. ..
Inventories ........ ...

" Total current assets . ... .. .
Property and equipment, net .-
Goodwxl] net ....... SR

Current liabilities
Accounts payable . ...

Accrued liabilities ......
Current portion of long-term debt L

Current portion of Cﬂpl[al lease obligations
Deferred revenue ... ... ..

Total current liabilities - . .

T ‘, .............

Long-term debt, net of currem portion |

Capital lease obligation, net of current portion L‘ |

Other liabilites . .........4L..

Convertible promissory note, niet of discount A o

Deferred revenue, net of current portion i : i g

Total liabilities ...... ..

Commitments and contingencies (Note 16) A I

Stockholders’ equity (deﬁcu)

Series A Convertible Prefcrrcd stock, no par value 31,000,000 shares authorized, 15 559,152 and
15,378,364 issued and outstandmg at 2006 and 2005 respectively; stated value of $2.50 per
share and a llquldatmn preference of $38,898 (2006) and $38,446 (2005)". .. .. N

Series A Convertible Preferred stock, to be issued) 180 888 Shares

Common stock, no par value 120,000,000 shares! authorized at 2006 and 2005; 17, 769 191 and
17,353,822 shares lssued and outstanding at 2006 and 2003, respectively, with aihqu:danon

preference of $39, 981. :(2006) and $39,046 (2005)

Common stock, to be 1ssued 337,216 Shares . . .| '

Series B Convertible Prefened stock, no par value 8,000,000 shares aulhonzed 4, 920 709 and
4,980,709 issued and outstandmg at 2006 and 2005 respectively, stated value 0f$2.50 per

share and a llquldatlon preference of $12,302 (2006) and $12,452 (2005) .

Deferred stock compensanon .......................................... H AN
Additional paid-in capxtal ................... |., ......................................
Accumulated deficit | [ .................... O DS
Totai stockholders’ equ:ty (deficit} ........... i ......................................
Total liabilities and stockholders equity (deficit) l e .-I ............

The accompanymg notes are an mtegral part of these consohdaled financial statements.

| |

1; i
30 i l

April 3,
2006 2005

(doltars in thousands,
except shlare data)

1

$ 5381 i$ 1,437

2,305 | 1,687
3140 | 2330
853 836
11,679 | 6290
8611 | 10,106
456 523
405 ; 500
376 | sn

$ 21,527 |$ 17,930

$ 3398 s 4640

3.812 5,149
2,126 1,950

83 1 77128
1,453 | 1,838

10872 | 13,705

28 600

72 112
l 093 1,093
1,421 1,616

— 3.000
2914 8,493

16,400 | 28,619

34,639 34,483
— 157 .

9,610 9,384
— 86

10911 {11,044

- (22)
28,339 {27974
(78,372)  (93,795)

5,127 (10,689)

$ 21,527 $17.930

|
i
|
|

]




TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION i ,
i
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS :

i

| Years ended
April2, | April}, March28,
2006 2005 - 2004
(dollars in thousands, except per
* share data)

. Net sales | .
Sales Of ProdUCES . ... e ittt ittt e $51,392| $49,659 $47.441
Licenses, royalties, andfees .......... ... ... ... ... il I'_?»42,r ' -2,234 1,240
Recognition of deferred revenue . ......... ... ...l 6,0111 2,087 2,087

T P . 58,245 53980 50,768
Cost of goods sold and operating expenses :
Cost of goods sold and related occupancy expenses ... ... oot 27,097 23,857 22,153
Store operating eXPeNses . ... . ... ooo i it 17,095 17,341 16,923
Other OPErating €XPENSES . . ... v uvtrerer s s e e nar et etraaers 3,538 2,763 2,014
Marketing, general and administrative costs .. . ....... ... .. Ll 7,844 8,063 7,094
Depreciation and amortization . ........... ... coiiiiiiae s 3,529 3,651 3,622
Settlement of litigation .. ...... ... ..ivuiiii i — 1,628 —
Evaluation of business integration opportunity . .. ..................... — © 129 541
Impairment of long-lived assets . ............ .. ... ... 236 I 200 97
Store closure and lease termination COStS .. .../ ve e rnurnerenssan 219 [ 43~ 170
Total cost of goods sold and operating expenses .................. 59,558 57.675 52,614
OPETANG 10SS - et e e e ettt e e e e e e e e (1,313)  (3,695) (1,846)
Other income (expense) | ’
Interest EXPenSE o .. oottt i i e (527)  ;(570) (53N
Interest income ......... JS 208 F 3 . 4
Gainonsale of Japan Rights .. ...... ..., 17392 | — —
Miscellaneous inCome .. ........oo ittt e 68 |~ 46 54
Loan guarantee fe€ EXPEMSE . .. ..vvvvvnenenran oot ©6) -|(357) - (27
Total other iNCOME (EXPENSE) - . . ...« vreerrrineanneeanees 17075 1(878)  .(706)
Income (loss) before income taxes .......... ..o, 15.762 f4,573)’ - (2,552)
INCOME LAX EXPENSE . . ..t vv v e e eane e e et e et ae e et eaeeanee e 339 ¢ 52 . 43
NetinCome (I088) . .- ... v vt nt e e ettt e e e ee e e e aeeens $15423 $(4,625) $(2,595)
Earnings (loss) per share—basic and diluted _ ! IL -
Eamnings (loss) per share—basic . ....... ... ... .. ... . oL $ 0.8';1T 3| (0.28) $ (0.16)
Earnings (loss) per share—diluted .................... .. . 0.t $ 030 $!(028) $ (0.16)
Weighted average shares used in computing basic and diluted earnings (loss) per ' [ '
share ) | |
Earnings (loss) per share—basic ............. ... ... ..ol 17,697 16,812 16,451
Earnings (loss) per share—diluted ............. ... ..oiiiiiiin.. 51,475 16812 16,451

! .
f |
t
|

| . n
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

J
'
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TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss) )
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities )
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment of long-lived assets

Loss (gain) on sale of property and equipment
Gain on sale of Japan Righis
Stock OPLON @XPENSe .. ... ... . e
Provision for doubtful accounts
Loan guarantee fee expense
Non-cash interest eXpense ...t ieiniin i eanannnnn,
Recognition of deferred revenue
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Inventories ... ... ...
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable .. ... ... .. ...
Accrued liabilities . . ... .o i e
Other liabilities ... ... ... e
Deferred [€a5€ COSIS ... ...\ .\ttt
Deferred revenue cash received

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Net proceeds from Japan Rights sale

Other

* Net cash {used in) provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Borrowings under credit lines
Paymentof creditlines . ....... ... i ittt
" Payments on long-term debt (including convertible note) and capital leases . ...
Proceeds from exercise of stock optionsand wartants . .. ...................
Proceeds from rights offering

. 'Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents '
Beginning of period

‘End of period

35

Store closure costs charged tooperations . ............... ... ... ... ..

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS -

i Years! ended

April2, '
2006 |

April 3;
2005

March 28,
2004

(dollars ln" thousands)

!
$ 15423 $(4,625) $(2,595)
-

B

Purchases of property and equipment . . ... ... ... ... ... .. :

$ 1,437

3529 3,651 3,622
236 | 200 97
219 43 170

5 21 9
(17.392) , — —
114 | 62 87
220 103 83
66 357 227

— 14 186

(6.015) (2.087) (2,087)

| |

(813)  (902) 267
(600)  (124) 278
631 ' 19 108

(1,241) 2,463 (212)

(1,293) 1,027 752
— 1,093 —
(195)  (81)  (187)
25 1 — 500

(7,081) 1344 1287

17392 | — —

(2307) ' (560) (320

L (62) ¢ @ 34

15023 ' (564)  (286)

1,901 ! 350 —

(2.366) |, (941)  (382)

(3.539) | (318)  (379)

6 | 76 14

— 243 —

(3.998) i (590) _ (747)

3944 | 190 254

1,437 ]1,247 993

$ 5381 $ 1,247

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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: TULLY’S FOFFEE CORPORATION .
" CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
- I Cd ,
! I o ‘
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informat]ion and non-cash investing and financing activities: I
_ T 5 9%
: ’ ‘ Years ended :
: .  April2, Aprit3, March 28,

. 2006 . 2005 | 2004
t

‘ (dollars in thousands)
Cash paid during the period for interest

...... e 9622 8296|3206

Non-cash investing and financing activity - |
Capital leases for puichase of equipment . 1. ...................... P 83 40 | 250

. 1 1

| ; _ o |

1 R I K i

! 1 :

' !
.L }
1 F
|
] L | |
: ! l f
\ 1 | ,
- |
' ;' | i
| :
' | 1
! |
) | |
L ;
I I
| .
' ;
i 1
:
| ‘ | |
I‘ i
L |
i | 1 !
; . | .
‘ The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidatedlfinancial statements.
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TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. The Company and significant accou'nting'policies : ;

The Compttny and nature of operations ‘ |

Tully's'Coffee Corporation was formed in 1992, In these consolidated financial statemdnts references to
“we,” “us,” “Tully’s” or the “Company” refer to Tully’s Coffee Corporation. Tully’s hand rdasts ;')remtum \
specialty coffees that are sold through retail specialty coffee stores operating under the Tully 8 brand and are also
sold through our Wholesale division to domestic customers in the food service, Sl.lpel‘maIkell restaurant office
coffee service and institutional channels. Tully’s-branded retail stores are operated by our Retall lelSlOll andare
also operated by other parties under license or franchise. Tully’s stores sell our high quahty,rpremlum roasted
whole bean coffees, and serve a wide selection of hot and cold beverages that feature our coffees énd our
premiom softened ice cream. Tully’s stores also sell baked goods and pastries and other complcmentary snack
and food items and coffee-related accessories, supplies, and equipment. ' :

3
' '

, .
As of April 2, 2006, there were 111 Tully’s retail stores operating in the United States, summarized as

follows: ;

Company ‘

Operated Franchised ) ;
w Stores Stores | Total
Washington . ... . e 61 Il 72
California . ......... ... o 23 3 | 26
OTEZON . . oot i e 3 I b4
Idaho ... ... ... . e | 2’ 3
ATZONA ... e — 6 , _6
Total . oot e e e 38 2* " 111

N

4

Our Specialty division is responsible for our U.S. franchising activities (exclusive of any product sales to
these customers, which are included in the Wholesale division) and also our international busmess activities (sce
Note 13). For purposes of these consolidated financial statements, the terms “franchise” and “hcense are used
interchangeably. :

Fiscal periods

We end our fiscal year on the Sunday closest to March 31. As a result, we record our revenula and expenscs
ona52or 53 week period, depending on the year. The fiscal year ended April 2, 2006 (“Flscal 2006”) mcluded
52 weeks, whllc our fiscal year ending April 3, 2005 (“Fiscal 2005”) included 53 weeks. Each of the fiscal years
ending March 28, 2004 (“Fiscal 2004™) and March 30, 2003 (“Fiscal 2003") included 52 weeks The fiscal year
ending April 1, 2007 (“Fiscal 2007"") will have 52 weeks. .

Consolidation '

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly o':vned
subsidiary, Spinelli Coffee Company. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. |

Use of estimates ' . ;

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
' !
37
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TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION !

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATE'D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Contmued)

1. The Company and significant accountmg policies (Continued)

amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and llabllmes at the date of the financial
statermnents and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the repomng period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. |l i

!
l i

1
Cash equivalents in excess of current opcraung requirements are mvested in short-term, interest-bearing
instruments with maturities of three months or léss at the date of purchase and are stated at cost, which
I

approximates market value. | i
'
| |

Trade Accounts Receivable | '

Tully’s provides products to approved customers on an open account ba":is We generally do not require
collateral on trade receivables. Tully’s reviews a customer’s credit history betore extending credit and establishes
an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the risk of specific customers. Hlstoncally, credit related losses on
trade receivables have not been significant. !

1
| | |
Inventories l

L
|

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (on the first-in, first-out basis) or market. Our sourcing and
merchandising process is centrallzed but each store generally orders its mdlvltldual requirements from our
distribution facility and our authorized vendors. We purchase our green coffee beans primarily from three
vendors and are not significantly dependent on any single source of supply. | :

i

Property and equipment

3
i

Property and equipment are carried at cost !ess accumulated depreciation|and amortization. Deprecizition of
property and equipment includes amortization of assets under capital leases an;d is provided on the straight-line
method over the estimated economic lives. Machmery and equipment are dep]rlec:lated over 5 to 7 years.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated economic lives (generally ten years)
or the applicable lease term as defined under generally accepted accounting pnnc1ples Software is depreciated
over 3 years. The cost of property held under cai)ital lease is equal to the lowe“r of the net present value of the
minimum lease payments or the fair value of Lhe leased property at the mceptlon of the lease. Expendltures for
additions and improvements are capitalized and expendttures for repairs and mamtenance are charged to expcnse
as incurred. The cost and accumulated depreciation of assets sold or retired are removed from the accounts and
the related gains and losses are included in the results of operations. Certain propertles and equipment have been

reduced below cost due to lmpmrment charges. |
I

1
Goodwill and other intangible assets I ;

Other intangible assets include leasehold mterests trademark and logo ds xsngn costs, covenants not lo
compete, goodwill and other assets. Amomzatlon of leasehold interests is prm;'lded over the applicable lease term
as defined under generally accepted accounting pnnuples Other intangible aisets are amortized on the slralghl-
line method over 5 to 15 years. ' !
| |

Impairment of long-lived assets i

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for lhe Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS 1447}, requires thatllong—lwed assets and certain 1ntang1bles be reviewed for.

' 38 i




TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—-(Contin:ued)E
|

1. The Company and significant accounting policies (Continued)

impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not -
be recoverable. If impairment has occurred, an impairment loss must be recognized. | ;
I

As part of our review, assets are grouped and evaluated at the lowest level for which there are identifiable
cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows of other groups of assets. Tully’s has ldemlﬁed this
lowest level to be principally individual stores. We consider historical performance and future estlmated results
in our evaluation of potential impairment and then compare the carrying amount of the asset to the estimated
future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset. If the carrying amount of the assel elxceeds
estimated expected undiscounted future cash flows, we measure the amount of the 1mpa1rmenl by comparing the
carrying amount of the asset to its fair value. The estimation of fair value is measured by dlscountmg expected
future cash flows. i

1
'

Lease termination costs

Periodically, Tully's will determine that certain leases witl be terminated and the locatllon will be closed. At
such determination, we accrue for the net future minimum lease payments of the related lease agreements
Amounts accrued as net future minimum losses include the discounted estimated future rental paymems lease
termination fees, and sub-lease recoveries,

1

Segment reporting ) I '

Tully’s is organized into three principal business units. We complement our Retail division’ ls operations
with additional channels for distribution of our branded products, which we manage as separate business
segments: (1) our Specialty division, which sells Tully’s coffee and related products and subphes: to our foreign
licensees and manages the relationships with these licensees, and is responsible for the franchlsmg of Tully s
stores in the U.S. and for developing business opportunities for complementary Tully’s- branded producls and
(2) our Wholesale division, which sells Tully’s coffee and related products and supplies to domesue resellers in
the supermarket, food service, restaurant, office coffee service, and institutional channels. The Wholesale
dmsmn is also responsible for our mail order and Internet sales activities. | F

! 1
Revenue recognition

Sales are generally recognized at the time of the sale at retail store locations. Sales for!the Wholesale and
Specialty divisions are generally recognized upon shipment of the products, Allowances thholesale division
customers for retail display or distribution positions (such as “slotting” allowances) are rechmzed as a reduction
in sales, reducing gross profits until fully amortized (typically a period of two to six months). Other discounts
and allowances are recognized in the period earned by the customer. !

i

Revenues from advance territorial license fees and from international roasting agreements are recognized on
the straight-line basis over the expected life of the agreements (ranging from eight to ﬁfteeh yea}s) Royalty
revenues for international licensees are recognized in accordance with the license agreements based upon sales at
specific licensee store locations. Coffee roasting fees are recognized when the licensee thal is subjecl 10 the fee
purchases coffee Initial franchise fees for new stores franchised by Tully’s are recognized 'when Tully's has
completed’ 'the services required to earn the fee and make it non-refundable, which is generally u'pon opening of
the store. Royalty revenues for stores franchised by Tully’s are recognized in accordance with the franchise
agreements based upon sales at the franchised store locations. -’
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1. The Company and s:gmficant accountmg policies (Continued) - ; i
|

|

Concentrations of credlt risk

We sell to various ll'lleldl.lalS and orgamzatlons while extending credit to custorners and are therefore
subject to credit risk. Accounts receivable at Ap'n] 3, 2005 include amounts due from our then-licensee, Tul]y 5
Coffee Japan Co., Ltd. (* ‘Tully s Coffee Japan“} which represented 13% of the April 3, 2005 total (there - was no
recelvab]e from Tully’ s C{offee Japan at April 2 i2006) _ t . S ]

'

Tully’s maintains 1ts cash and investment balances with what we beheve to be high credit quallty ﬁnancml
msntutlons | : \ . !
. . i ’ B l B t
Store pre-opening costs | . -
 Costs incurred in connectton with start-up and promotion of new store openmgs are expensed when

|

|

i

incurred, 1 ‘ } - |
; t .

1

l .
Advertising costs- ;

Costs incurred for advertlsmg and marketmg are expensed in the penods lt!o wh:ch the promotions are
applicable and totaled $1, 238,000, $1,259,000, and $1,322,000 during Fiscal "006 Fiscal 2003, and Fiscal 2004,

_respectively. Included in advemsmg and marketu!lg are baseball park and other sponsorship fees totaling l ]

" approximately $56,000, $56 000, and $477,000, durmg Fiscal 2006, Fiscal 20()5 and Fiscal 2004, respectively.
Local store advertising’ ancl marketing costs are r‘eported in store operatmg expenses while the advenlslnﬁ and
marketing costs of our Wholesale and Specialty divisions are reperted in.other operating expenses. General
advertising and marketing costs for the Compan}'zfand our Retail division are reported in marketing, general and
administrative costs. 1 1 o i : PR

Freight costs Cd b | !

Freight and shipping ¢ costs related to merchandlse are generally 1ncluded in cost of goods sold, except for -
outbound freight costs related to sales of our Who!esale division which are mcluded in marketing; general ‘and
administrative costs and Wthh totaled $489,000, $309 000, and $191,000 durmg= Fiscal 2006, Fiscal 2005' and
Fiscal 2004, respectively. . ; !

+

i
. b I
! )
i 1 ! .
. " Rent expense g .
| Tully’s operates in leasjed buildings. Certain lease agreements provide forhscheduled rent increases dunng
v the lease terms or for rental payments commenemg on a date other than the date of initial occupancy. Such
“stepped” rent expense.is recorded on a stralght-lme basis over the respective terms of the leases. Cértain lf:ases
require contingent rent based on gross sales and chh rent expense is recogmzeld as incurred. Certain ]eases have
rent holiday (“free rent’}) penods and Tully’s recogmzes these rental credlts OlI!d straight-line basis over the )

'I'CSpCCthE lease terms. -
. - .

i
: | !
t

| [| !
Income taxes i i

+

Income taxes are accoumed for under the asset and liability method. Defen"ed tax assets and llabllmes are
recognized for the future tax consequences attnbultable to differences between Lhe financial statement carry*mg
) . amounts of existing asséts and liabilities and their. respectnve tax bases and for operatmg loss and tax credit:

i . S _ .
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. !
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued) |

1. The Company and significant accounting policies (Continued) . 5 ;
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expecled to apply 10
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The !
effect on deferred tax assets and Habilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in 'the pcnod that
includes the enactment date. .
Tully’s has recorded a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets as we could not conclude that it
was more llkely than not that the tax benefits from temporary differences and net operating loss carryforwards
would be realized. In subsequent periods, we may reduce the valuation allowance, provnded that the possibility of
utilization of the deferred tax assets is more likely than not.

Fair value of financial instruments ' !

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents and other current assets and habllmeé such as accounts
receivable and accounts payable as presented in the consolidated financial statements, approxnmates fair value
based on the short-term nature of these instruments. We believe the carrying amounts of our 1'10lesI payable, line
of credit and long-term debt approximate fair value because the interest rates are subject to change with, or
approximate, market interest rates. ‘ i
! '

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Financial Accountmg Standards
No. 148, *Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure” (“SFAS No 148“) an
amendment to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based
Compensauon (“SFAS'No. 123"). SFAS No. 148 provides alternative methods of transmon for volumary
change to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based compensation. In addition, SFAS No 148 requires
more prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accountmg for
stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. We adoplcd the
disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 148. We have chosen to continue to account for stock- based
compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board Opmlon No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. Accordingly, ompensatmn cost for, -
stock options is measured as the excess, if any, of the fair value of Tully’s stock at the date of grant overthe
amount an employee must pay to-acquire the stock, Compensation cost is amortized on a strmght lme basis, over
the vesting period of the individual options. ] C i
i 1
In December 2004, the FASB reissued SFAS No: 123 as SFAS No. 123R, “Share Based Conrlpensanon

. Under SFAS No. 123R, public entities will be required to measure the cost of employee. services: recelved in !
..exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award ]and recogmze the
. cost over the period during which an employee is required to render services in exchange for the award )
'Additionally, SFAS No. 123R will require entities to record compensation expense for employce stock purchase

plans that may not have previously been considered compensatory under the existing rules. On Apnl 14, 2005

the effective date of SFAS No. 123R was extended and will now be effective for the Company at the begmrung

of Fiscal 2007 Adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on our consohdated financial

statements. !

Stock-based compensation

i
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1. The Company and sngmficant accountlng policies (Continued) |

Had compensation cost for our stock optloin plans been determined based on the fair value at the grant date
of the awards, consistent; wnth the provisions of SFAS No. 123, as amerided by SFAS No. 148, our net income
(loss) and earnings (]oss) per share would have been reported as pro forma allnounls indicated below (in

thousands, except per share data) .
, & . _ Years ended :
| ‘ tApril 2, April 3, March 28,
. :| 2006 2005 2004
' . ' \ (dollars in thousands, |
Cg except per share data)
- Stock-based employee compensation cost | )
Asreported . ... ... ... .. e L% 113§ 82§ |87
Proforma ...} ... 3280 $ 99 0§ 137
Netincome (loss)asreported .........0.................... :§15,423 $(4,625) “$(2,595)
Net income (loss) pro forma .......... I R B15,256  $(4,642)  $(2,643)
Basic and diluted ezfrmngs (loss) per common share ' :| .
As reported—Basic .............! e 3 087 $(028) § (0.16)
Pro forma—BaSic ..............deoiiiiiiiiiiiia 5 086 §(028) $(0.17)
As reported—Diluted .. .......... ... .5 030 ${028) $ (0.16)
Pro forma—Diluted .............L........ § 030 5(028) $(0.17)

The fair values of the options granied were estlmatcd on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model based on the following assumptlons used for grants in Flscal 2006, Fiscal 2005, and F].S(:‘al 2004:

! - il Yearsended = E
_ | April 2, 2006 {April 3,2005 _ March 28, 2004
Risk free interestrate ................0......... 2.78% 213%  2.13%1t04.22%
Expectedlives ...i.......coiiiiiin)iun 3years . | 3years 3-7 years
Expected volauhty U FER 86% 75% 75%

: H
Earnings (loss) per share ‘ ‘ :

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated’as net income (loss) apphcable to the common shareholders

divided by the weighted- avcrage number of sharv.les of common stock outstandmg during the period. Dilutéd
earnings (loss) per share is based on the wenghted—average number of shares of common stock and common stock
equivalents outstanding c[urmg the period, mcludmg options, warrants, convemble preferred stock and
convertible debt computed using the treasury stc';ck method. The computauon lf net income {loss) per share is
summarized in Note 22. : ¥

\ !

1

: !

Reclas'siﬁcations f I o
§

!

Reclassifications of pnor year balances have been made to conform to the current year classifications and
have no impact on net income (loss) or ﬁnancnal posmon '
i - |

New accounting stanc_lar:ds } !

In December 2004, t'he FASB issued SFAS %\Io 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS
123R”). This pronouncement requires that the compensation cost relating to sﬁare—based payment transactions be

b 42
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TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION f
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Contmued)“
1. The Company and significant accounting pohc:es (Continued) :

recognized in financial statements based on the falr value of the equity or liability mstruments 1ssued We will be
required to apply SFAS 123R as of the beginning of Fiscal 2007. Adoption of this standard i 1s not expected to
have a material impact on our consolidated financial stateménts.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets—An Amendment
of APB Opinion No. 29 (“SFAS 153”). The amendments made by SFAS 153 are based on the prmc:lple that'
exchanges of nonmonetary assets should be measured based on the fair value of the assets e)l(chan!ged Further
the amendments eliminate the narrow exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar producnve assets and
replace it with a broader exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have * commerc1al
substance.” The provisions in SFAS 153 are effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occumng in fiscal
periods beginning after June 15, 2005. Adoption of this standard is not expected to have a rrfatenal impact on our
consolidated financial statements. : |

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Correctlons” (“SFAS 154")
which replaced APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes, and SFAS No. 3, “Reporting Accoummg Changes in
Interim Financial Statement” (“SFAS 37). Among other changes, SFAS 154 requires retrospecuve application of
a voluntary change in accounting prmcnp]e to prior period financial statements presented on the new accounting
principle, unless it is impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the
change. SFAS 154 also requires accounting for a change in method of depreciating or amortlzmgIa long-lived
non-financial asset-as a change in accounting estimate (prospectively) affected by a change in aceountlng
principle. Further, the SFAS 154 requires that corrections of errors in previously issued ﬁnancnal ;.lalcmems to be
termed as a “restatement.” The new standard is effective for accounting changes and error correcnons made in
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS 154 to hlave a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements. ! f :

I
2. Liquidity . . | i

As discussed in Note 13, on August 31, 2005 we sold:the Japan Rights for $17,500, 000 ThlS wransaction has
resulted in 1mpr0ved liquidity and capital resources for Tully’s. As a-.consequence of the Japan R1ghts sale,
Tully’s will not receive the operating cash flows from license fees and cotfee roasting fees from Tully’s Coffee
Japan after July 31, 2005. We have used proceeds from the Japan Rights sale to repay our promlesory note with
Kent Central LLC (“KCL") as described in Note 11 and our convertible note (see Note 12), ;Wthh has reduced
the level of borrowings by Tully’s and reduced our future obllgatlons for payments of principal and interest. We
also used proceeds from the Japan Rights sale to reduce our levels of acCounts payable and accrued liabilities,
and to fund capital expenditures. - !

l

As of Aprll 2, 2006, we had cash and cash equivalents of $5,381,000, and working capltal of $807,000.
Because we principally operate as a cash retail business,” we generally do not require a 51gn1ﬁcanl net
investment in working capital and hlstoncally have operated with current liabilities in excess of our current «
assets. Our inventory levels typically i increase during the spring due to coffee crop seasonal}ly and, to a lesser
degree, during the autumn due to holiday season merchandise. Inventories are also subject to short-term
ﬂuctuatlons based upon the timing of coffee receipts and product shipments. Tully's expects that‘ its investment
in accounts receivable and inventories will increase, primarily as the result of anticipated sales growth in the
Wholesale division. ' 3 i

Cash requirements for Fiscal 2007, other than normal operating expenses and the commnments described in
the consolidated financial statements and notes, are expected to consist primarily of capital expenduures related
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATEP FINANCIAL STATEME}?TS—(Continued)
. |
2. Liquidity (Continued) o . . ; |
to the opening of new stores and the namodf:ling,'I of retail stores, and equipmeﬁl and accounts receivable related to
new Wholesale division business. We expect our investment in property and c.qu1pmem during Fiscal 2007 to be
comparable to the level of Fiscal 2006. During Flscal 2007, we expect that the majority of the new Tully’ s stores
in the United States and in forelgn markets (out51de of Japan) will be franchls'éd stores, rather than company-
operated stores. Franchised stores do not rt:qmreI capital investment in propeny and equipment by Tully’s, but we
do incur selling and suppon costs for such new sltores related to store openmg,' training and quality control We
expect to open between six and ten new company—operated stores in Fiscal 2007 Typically, a new company-
operated store will require capital investment of' appr0x1mately $200,000 10 $400 000, but this varies depending
on the specific location. Some of these capital expenditures may be accomplr hed through operating or ca'pltal
leases. We expect to mamtam a secured credit fa‘ncnhty, such as our current crcdu facility with Northrim Fundmg
Services, a division of Norlhnm Bank (“Northm'n see Note 11),asa ﬁnancmg resource for our workmg capital
requirements. t | : i
Liabilities at April 2, 2006 include deferred' 'revenue in the aggregate amnlunt of $4,367,000. We will
liquidate the deferred revenue balance through recognition of non-cash revem'lles in future periods, rather than
through cash payments. The future cash expense% associated with this deferred revenue balance are expectcd to
be less than $300,000. aE :
| ! 1
We believe that the operating cash flows, financing cash flows, and mve'.lmg cash flows projected for Fiscal
2007, and the cash and cash equivalents of $5, 381 ,000 at April 2, 2006, and our credit facility will be sufficient
to fund ongoing operations of Tully’s through Flscal 2007. Accordingly, we d6 not anticipate that additional
equity or long-term debt capital will be required dunng Fiscal 2007 to sustain;current operations and meet our
current obligations. However, we may seek additional capital during Fiscal 2007 in order to fund a higher:level
of growth than described above. | | ;
|
I

3. Accounts Receivable and allowance for diiubtful accounts i :

Accounts receivable represent amounts bll]éd to customers, net of any off-mvowe discounts mcluded in
those billings and are stated at the amount that managemem expects to collectlfrom outstanding balances. Certain
promotional allowances to Wholesale division customers {“bill-back allowances’ ") are separately computed, such
as retail display and distribution (“slotting™) allowances and allowances whlcl\llarc determined based on cntena
such as retail sale pcrformance These bill-back allowances are recorded. by Tully s in accrued liabilities when
they are recognized as a reduction in sales, and are later remitted to the customer by a payment from Tully s or
- through an allowed deducuon from the customer‘ remittance for amounts bl"e('il by Tully’s to the custorner An
some instances, the amounts of a bill-back allowance will depend upon the actual performance of a custorner for
a particular program (such as the number of packages of Tully’s product sold 1}1 a particular period of nme) The
actual performance for the program will be deter‘mmed by the customer and Tully s after the program is
completed. Tully’s mmally records Management s estimate of the expected results for such programs, and then
an adjustment is made, as necessary, when the actual results are determined. A::crued liabilities include accrued
Wholesale division allowances and discounts of $253 000 (April 2, 2006) and- $42O 000 (April 3, 2005).

£ | :

The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects our best estimate of probable; losses inherent in the accounts
receivable balance. We determine the allowance based on known troubled accounts, historical experience, land
other currently available evidence accounts receivable determined to be uncol]ecnble are charged against the
allowance for doubtful accounts and recoveries are credlted to the allowance for doubtful accounts. I

i

1




+
'

TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION b
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I

3. Accounts Receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts (Continued)

The allowance for doubtful accounts is summarized as follows: i |
N : Years ended
April 2, ' © April3,
. 2006 2005
, B (dollars in thousands)
Balance, beginning of the year ........ ... ... ..cciiiiiiiiii i $ |l7l l $134
Additions charged to costs and eXpenses ............c.eeoiieiiiiiaaana... 220 | 104
Write-offs and otherdeductions ............ . i 241 67)
Balance, end of the year ........ ... . ... i $]149 bosITl
4. Inventories |
Inventories consist of the following: | )
April2,|  April3, |
_2006 | 2005
(dollars in thousands)
Coffee ; ! !
UIPOBSIEA ..ottt e e e ettt et $1039) § 822
Roasted ...................... . ........ e 1,361 671
Othergoodsheld forsale ............. ... ... . i i i, , 416 503
Packaging and other supplies ........ ... ... i e 424, 334
B ]2 [ $3,140; $2,330

|
I 1
|
' i

5. Other éssets

Other assets consist of the following: ; |

April2, 1 April3, -
200

2006 5
. ) . , (dollars ip thousands)
Security deposits ... ... .. e $255 | $279
Prepaidexpenses ............cooviiiin.ny e e 121 232
Otal . oo et e $376 | $511
6. Property and equipment o
Property and equipment consist of the following: !
Aprit 2, ! April 3,
2006 l 2005
. (do!l'iirs in fhousands] L*
Machinery and eqUIPIMENt . .. ...ttt e $ 10997 | $ 10,486
Leasehold improvements ........ ..ol 16,115 . . 15,825
Fumniture and fIXtUTES . ... . it i e e 4,031 I 3,640
R {1 2 |« < RO . 343 i 317 -
‘ 31,486, 30,268
Less: Accumulated deprectation and amortization . ... ................... (22,875) l (20,162)
TO@] - ettt e $ 8611 $ 10,106
45
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7. Goodwill and intaﬁgible assets

. L . . .
Goodwill and olherlmtanglble assets conswft of the following:

COFFEE CORPORATIONi

D FINANCIAL STATEMI NTS—(Continued)

|

B
Goodwill ..... P R R l

April 2,
2006

April 3,
2005

(dollars in thonsands)

R RITAIRIERIE LI $ 456 $1523
Other intangible assets: : !

Leasehold interests ... ...........[0 ..o 491 1521
Lease COMMISSIONS . .« <« - oo veeufieenennensarsaneneanenntfoeaeann. 199 200
Trademark and logo designcosts .. .[:....... ... ... ... .. 0L 411 1405
Covenants not L0 COMPELe . .. ......[c.. oo e 261 1261
Other ....... R 10 I—

f . 1372 1/387
Less accumulated amortization ... .l ................................ (967) (887)
T(_)talomérintangibleassels...:....................,,; ........ $ 405 $ 500

" Under SFAS 142, ggodwﬂl is to be periodically reevaluated and the can'ymg amount for goodwill is
required (o be reduced if Aan impairment is ldenuﬁed Tully’s has detenmnedit!hat this ana]ysns will be pell'fonned
annually during the fourth quarter of each ﬁscal year. The analysis was performed and no impairment was
identified for Fiscal 2004, Fiscal 2005, or Flscal]'ZO()ﬁ 1

The total amomzanon expense of other mtanglble assets was $105,000, '$88 000 and $102,000 in Flscal
2006, Fiscal 2005 and Flscal 2004, respecuvely ' Amortization expense for these other intangible assets dunng
the next five years is esumated to be between $70 000 and $100,000 per yeal d

;_
-8, Impairment of long—lwed assets }

Tully’s recognized non -cash impairment lcl)sses of $236,000, $200,000, md $97,000 in the fourth quarters of
Fiscal 2006, Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal 2004, respecuvely, in accordance with th° provisions of SFAS 144 and SFAS
142, This relates to impairment of leasehold 1mprovements and equipment. These reviews were performed in
connection with the development and lmplementauon of our annual business plans In order to determine the
impairment, con51derable management Judgment is necessary to estimate discounted future cash flows. !
Accordingly, actual resul}s could vary significantly from such estimates, ’ ;

- 4
9. 'Income taxes "

The gain rf:c:ogmzecll on the Japan Rights sale is taxable for federal -and sllale income tax purposes. Olur net’
operating loss carryforwards have offset this gam for federal income tax purposes but a portion of the gam is
taxable for state income taxes and for federal altemauve minimum tax (“AMT’ ) purposes. We recogmzed
estimated state income tax and AMT expense of $335,000 in Fiscal 2006.

!
. I
H ll
- !
.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Contin ed)l

9, [Income taxes (Coritiliued)

Deferred income taxes reﬂecl the net tax effects of temporary dlffcrences between the carrymg amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting and income tax purposes. The significant componems 'of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are as follows:
April 2, April 3,

2006 2005
(dollars in thousands)

Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss carryforwards ....... ... ... i i $ 9,283 $ 16,515
SIOCK OPLONS . . oottt ittt e e 1 _67] 2,004
DeferTed TEVENUE ..\ttt ettt e e ie et s e ne i a e _ 1,604 3,586
Property and QUIPIENE ... ... .vvetn ittt ettt 2,118 3,066
Asset impairment, store closure$ and lease termination costs .......... .. ... : 1,450 1,894
Deferred JEaSE COBES .+ oo ottt e ettt e [ 522 1,093
TAX CTEAIL -« o o e ettt e e e e et ettt e e e e j 207 —
Allowance for doubtful accounts .......................................... ' 55 87
Accrued vacation and other liabilities .......... ... .. i i i e 893 913
Other ... ... e e e e e e _ 95 77
Total deferred [aX ASSELS . .+« + v v enrs st e et ... 17898 29235

Deferred tax liabilities—None T . |- |

Less: Valuation allowance ... ...ttt it e e et anans ceee e " {17,898) (29,335)

Net deferTed 1AX ASSEL . . . o\ v vt e et e e e ettt e e et e e e e e s l— s —

|

At April 2, 2006, we had tax net operating loss carryforwards of appr0x1malely $25,000, OOO that explre
between 2013 and 2024. ! i

|
Our ablhty to use our net operating losses to offset future income could be subject to res[ncuons enacted ip
the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. These restrictions limit fulure usr;:I ' of net operating

losses and credit carryforwards if certain stock ownership changes occur. ! | :
' ' b
The provision for income taxes is summarized as follows (dollars in thousands): ! ‘ .
. Years ended i
April2,  April 3,‘{' March 28,
2006 . 2005 ¢ 2004
Current taxes ! ) '
Federal .. .vvvrri e $281 $—| $—
SEAE et e ST ss | 1) 2
Foreign .................... 00, B R — . 35 41
TOtAl CUITENE - . .« . e v st ee e e et e e 339 | 52 43
T DeferTEd LAXES ... e — f — =
Income tax expense ......... T $339  $ 52| $ 43

|
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9. Income taxes (Continued) _ :

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to Tully’s effect_ilve income tax rate is as follows:

]

| : Years ended

E 'April2,  April3,  March 28,

l .| 2006 2005 2004

Tax expense (benefit) | !
Federal statutory rate . ........... .' ................... - 135.0%  (34.0)%  (34.00%
State income taxes, net of federal beneﬁt .................. | 1.7% (1.6Y% (1.6)%
Other ................cooiiiils S T 1 02%  0.8% 0:7%
Valiiation allowance .............: e ‘354)%  34.8% 34.9%
Effective income tax rate .. ... . ! .................... i 1.5% — % —l %

; | '
i . i
10. Accrued liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the following: i

I - ' April2,  April3,

_ 2006 2005

) . (dollars in thousands)
Employee wages and [aXeS .. ... ouiuiounnen it A $1,149 . §$1,372
Professional fees and services .......... . ........................ e 322 697
‘Accrued lease termination and store closure costs . .............ou. ... Ciges 190 292
Accrued real estate and property taxes . . . e EEEREE 340 355
Accrued discounts and allowances (Note 3)i: . .. .. ... ... ......... [ 253 420
Other ... e e 1,558 2,013

i
1

!

Total ........ e : ........................ Lo $3.812  $5,149
| R ==
|

11. Credit lines and long term debt “

On June 22, 2005, Tully s entered into a secured credit facility with Northnm (the “Northnm Fac:llty "). The
Northrim Facility provides a credit fac:llty of up 10 $3.000,000, subject to the .moum of eligible accounts!
receivable. In June 2006, the credit facility was rt‘e‘newed until May 31, 2007, unless terminated earlier by either
party and the interest rate was reduced to prime pllus 3.5%. Borrowings under Hns facility at April 2, 2006 bear
interest at the prime rate plus five percent and are secured by our inventories and through the assignment (with
recourse) of our accounts receivable. | ]

I ’ :

On November 1, 2002, Tully’s entered into a borrowing arrangement w1th! KCL that was secured by |
substantially all of our assets (the “KCL promlsséry note’). The KCL pmm1ssnry note was in the initial amount
of $2,890,037, but was amended in March 2003 (6 allow up to 51,000,000 of addmonal borrowings dependmg on
the level of eligible collateral. On June 24, 2004 Tully’s and KCL amended thc ;terms of the KCL promissory
note to require monthly payments of principal for the KCL promissory note wnlh the remaining principal due on
August 1, 2005. Prior to this amendment, 1nterest1was paid at a floating rate bal;ed upon the bank prime rale and
annual loan fees were assessed. Under the June 24, 2004 amendment, the loan fees were eliminated and thé
interest rate for the KCL promxssory note was set.at 12% per year. On June 21 |2005 Tully’s and KCL agreed to
further amend the KCL promissory note to extend the note maturity until July 1' 2006 and to permit Tuily’s to
enter into the Northrim facility. Certain of our dlrlectors and shareholders (the “Guarantors ") guaranteed '
$2,000,000 of the borrowings under the KCL promlssory note.

\
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11. Credit lines and long term debt (Continued) ! !

On August 31, 2005, the KCL promissory note was repaid in full. Concurrently wnh the repayment of the
KCL promissory note, the guaranty agreements between Tully's and-the Guarantors wére terminated and the *
Guarantors released their conditional security interest in Tully’s assets. ; ?

In consideration for providing the guaranties of the KCL promissory note, Tully’s issued wan'ants (with an
exercise price of $0.05 per share) to the Guarantors while the debt was outstanding. Until March 31 2005, we
issued warrants to purchase 30.86 sharés of common stock for each $1,000 of debt guaranteed dunng a month,
but this formula was amended effective April 1, 2005 to be subject to periodic adjustment based upon the
valuation of our common stock (which reduced the number of warrants that were issued as compcnsanon)
Tully’s recognized these non-cash loan guaranty costs as a financing expense based upon the fair value at the
date of grant of the warrants. We granted warrants to the Guarantors as summarized below:

Number of Shares
Director " Other |
Guarantors _(Guarantors i Total
Warrants issued in Fiscal 2004 .. ......................... 444384 292950 ; 737,334
Warrants issued in Fiscal 2005 .. .......... .. .. ... .ol 222,192 518,448 740,640
Warrants issued in Fiscal 2006 . . ........ ... ... il 13,430 31,337 + 44,767

Obligations under long-term debt consist of the following: , |

April2, | April3,

2006 | 2005
(dollars in thousands}
Borrowings under the Northrim facility ... ..o $1901 § —
Borrowings under KCL Promissory flote .. ... ...ovurnvrnerenaennaissezn — . $2366,

Note payable for purchase of insurance, payable in monthly installments of t
approximately $55,000 including interest at 4.95%, through September 2006),
collateralized by unearned or return insurance premiums, accrued dividends
and loss payments . ............... e 2[6: 184

Vehicle purchase note payable in monthly installments of approximately $833 ‘
including interest at 3.98%, through March 2010, secured by the related :

VEHICIES o .ttt i e ©37 —
2,154 2,550
Less: Current portion ........... S (2 126) (1,950)
Long-term debt, net of current portion ... ........ ... . ool b 28‘i $ 600

12. Convertible promissory note

I
In December 2000, Tully’s issued a promissory note in the principal amount of $3, OOOIOOO to an affiliate of
a shareholder and then-director of Tully's, convertible into Series A Preferred stock at the Opnonlof the note
holder. The note was subsequently amended to mature on August 1, 2006 and to bear interest at 8% per year. On

November 14, 2005, Tully's repaid the convertible promissory note and accrued interest. ‘
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13. International Licenses and Deferred Reuenue

e

{

Prior to August 31, 2005, Tully’s had llcense and-supply agreements with its licensee for Japan, Tully’s
Coffee Japan. These license and supply agreements were subject to renewal ¢ .llt the end of Fiscal 2006 and the
parties had been in discussion regarding possible modifications in these license and supply agreements. As the
result of these dlscussmns on August 19, 2005 }Tully s and Tully’s Coffee k '1pan entered into the Japan nghts
Agreement under which ’Tully s agreed to sell tﬂ Tully’s Coffee Japan all of Tully’s rights, title and mterest for
Japan with respect to the|Tully’s trademarks, store designs, processes and other intellectual property assets and
rights for the Tully’s business in Japan for $17, 500 000. The Japan Rights Ag reement does not provide Tully ]
Coffee Japan with the nght to use Tully’s propnetary intellectual properties (numlde of Japan and does not affect
Tully’s ownership or nghts with respect to the Tully s intellectual properties’ out51de of Japan, Tully’s and
Tully’s Coffee Japan have agreed 10 cooperate 1n the development of the Tully s brand for the mutual benefit of

the two compames ' . . ‘ ‘ i
. ! o \

|
The Japan Rights sale closed on August 31 2005 and Tully’s received $13 819,000 on August 31, 2005.
The remaining $3,681,000 of the purchase price; was paid by Tully’s Coffee Japan to Tully’s on October 5 2005,
(!
Under the Japan Rights Agreement, the parties also resolved a tax mdemmﬁcanon claim previously made by
Tully’s Coffee Japan without any further paymelnts by either party. Tully s re'cogmzed a gain of $17,392, 000 on
the Japan Rights sale, as follows (dollars in thousands)

! |
Cash sales price for Japan Rights ....... | ........................ e $17,500

Less—transaction €osts .............. n oo i S (108)
Gain on sale of Japan Rights ,,........ 1 ....................... l e $17,392

|
Under the Japan Rights Agreement, the l1cense and supply agreements u;lth Tully’s Coffee Japan were
terminated on August 31,2005 and Tully’s nght to receive license fees and coffee roasting fees from Tully s
Coffee Japan terminated for periods after July 31 2005. License fees and coffee roasting fee revenues from
Tully’s Coffee Japan are summanzed as follows (do]lars in thousands):

1

|

, Years ended $
R April2, April3, March 28,
. 2006 2005 2004
License fees and coffee roasting fee revenuei from Tully’s Coffee Japan .. $811  $2,234 $l,2;10

|

1
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As the result of the termination of the license and supply agreements with Tully’s Coffee Japan, we
recognized the unamortized balance of the deferred license revenue related to these agreemems whlch
aggregated $4 405,000 as of August 31, 2005, in Fiscal 2006. Deferred licensing revenue recogmzed under the
agreements with Tully’s Coffee Japan and the license agreement with Ueshima Coffee Company (,UCC") is

summarized as follows (dollars in thousands):

i

Yeall's ended

.
4

April 2, April3, 'Mal:ch 28, ;-
2006 . 2005 | 2004
Recognition of deferred license revenue "
Periodic recognition of deferred license revenue under agreements ;
with Tully’s Coffee Japan .. ....................... ... ..., $ 166 $ 16471 § 647
Revenue recognized upon termination of license and supply
agreements under agréements with Tully’s Coffee Japan ... ... .. 4,405 — —_
Total deferred license revenue recognized under agreements with |
Tully’s Coffee Japan ... ..... .. ...oiiiiiiiiiiiiannn " 4571 647 647"
Periodic recognition of deferred license revenue under UCC license i
FLTE4 (=1 1411 1| AU 1,440 17440 1,440
Total deferred license revenue recognized under agreements with . _
Tully’s Coffee Japan and UCC ... . ....... ... .. ... ...0.s. $6,011 $2:087 ; $2,087 .

In April 2001, Tully’s granted UCC a license to use Tully’s business names, trademarks and other

intellectual property rights to develop and operate specialty coffee stores throughout Asna except for Japan.

Commencing in April 2009, UCC is required to pay us a royalty and service fee based upon the ag;gregate net
revenues of the stores that UCC is thén operating under the Tully’s business name, and all other sailes of products
Or services made under the Tully's business names and trademarks in Asia (other than Japan) We received a -
$12,000,000 initial license fee. We have accounted for this payment as deferred revenue and éue aﬁlomzmg thls
amount into income through April 2009. Under this agreement, Tully’s has granted UCC a selcumy interestin
certain of our intellectual property rights and certain proceeds related thereto solely as the same relate to stores
located in the licensed territories. Since the license agreement was executed in April 2001, UCC has opened one
store, which it closed in 2004, In June 2006, Tully’s notified UCC that it considers UCC to be in breach of this

license agreemem and the parties have commenced discussions regarding the matter.

Deferred revenue is summarized as follows:

Additions to deferred revenue inthe year . ......... ... .. i i i e
Less: Deferred revenue recognized innetsales ........... ... ... ... ... ... ... ..
L1011 1 T=) N 17 O U

Net decrease’in deferréd revenue forthe year . ... ... i
Deferred revenue
Beginning of year . ..... .. ... . . ... i Lo

End of ';ear ............................................................
Less: Current portion . . ... ...ttt i e e

Non-current portion of deferred revenue .. ... ... . ... i

|

;:Years Ended I '

April 2, -, April3,,
2005 -

2006

(dollars in lhousands}

$ {50 §°
(6,011) (2,()87)
P _ o
(5'},964) (2,089)
|-o‘,331 12,420
4367 10,331
(1,453) (1,838)
$ 2914 §

|

|

8,493
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TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATIOIT 1
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—-(Com;inued) i

13. International Llcenses and Deferred Revenue (Continued) - 1. ]

During Fiscal 2004 we entered into prelumnary discussions with Tully’ s Coffee Japan about the possibility
of integrating our businéss with Tully’s Coffee Japan On May 12, 2004, we reported that we had ceased
discussions with Tully’ s-Coffee Japan. In connectton with these discussions and the evaluation of this busmess
integration opportunity, ‘we incurred fees and other expenses of apprommalely $129,000 in Fiscal 2005 and
$541,000 in Fiscal 2004! | , | ‘

3
{

14. Related -party traﬁsactions { ‘ i

I
In connection with the KCL promissory note warrants to purchase shares of common stock were issued to

- thé Guarantors of the, KCL promissory note in Flscal 2004, Fiscal 2005 and Flscal 2006 (see Note l 1)..

. ‘. |
* In February 2006 an affiliate of Nonhnm acqutred a24% ownershtp mterest in Pacnflc Wealth Adv1sors
LLC (“PWA™), a newly formed company which is the successor by merger to Pacific Portfolio Consultmg

" (“Pacific Portfolio™). PWA is a wealth manage'tpent and investment advrsoryiserwces holding company. iA

member of the Tully’s Board of Directors is the - president of PWA and: PalelC Portfolio and has an ownershtp :
interest of more than 10% in PWA. During Ftscal 2006, Tulty’s paid approxrmately $168, 000 to Northnm for
interest on the amounts borrowed and the outstandmg debt to Northrim at Apnl 2, 2006 was $1,901 000 Pacific
1
Portfolio provides mvestment advisory consulttng services for the Tully’s employee 401(k) savings plan (see

" 'Note 20) and received fées of approximately $6?000 for this service in Ftsca]I 12006.

} ' | ' '
, . E - H
15, Store closure-and Iease termination costs ;

Store closure and lease termination costs are summarized as follows (dollars in thousands):

_ Ftscal 2006 Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2004
Store closure costs -tncludmg losses from disposal of property | :t
- and equipment ., ...... e N $143 " %43 $170

Lease términation qosts .............. SRR S 176 S - —;

: o ! . ;
Total ........... e L ($219 . 843 $170
— - Lo ‘ 1I . . ’1
During Fiscal 2006 we closed six stores that did not meet our financial’ cntena These six stores represented
approximately 3.2% of our Fiscal 2006 sales. Durmg Fiscal 2005, we closed three stores that did not meet our

‘financial criteria. These three stores represented approximately 0.07% of our'Fiscal 2005 sales. During Fiscal

.|
2004, we closed seven stores that did not meet our financial criteria. These s2ven stores represented

approx1mate1y 1.5% of our Fiscal 2004 sales. 1 i
o '
16. Commitments and contingencies J [
o . '
Lease commitments ° . i |
We lease ali of our retail, roasting plant and office space under operaung leases which expire through 2016. -
The leases provide for minimum annual paymelnts and (in certain cases) confingent rentals based upon gross
sales, escalation clauses andfor options to renew. Rental expense is recorded‘on a straight- lilne basis over the
respective terms of the leases. Rental expense under these operating leases vt as approximately $5,300, 000
$5,800,000, and $5,800,000 for Fiscal 2006, Ftsca} 2005 and Fiscal 2004, re: ,pec:tlvely Contingent rental expense
was approximately $218; 000, $197,000, and $147,000 for Fiscal 2006, 'Ftscal 2005 and Fiscal 2004, respectlve]y
and is recognized as 1ncurred

i
1

|
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|

In connection with certain leases, lessors have granted tenant improvemcnt allowances to Tully’s. These
amounts, included in liabilities under the caption “deferred lease costs,” are amortized into 1ncome on a straight-
line basis over the life of the related lease. Also recorded in deferred lease costs is the stcpped reqt excess of
rental expense computed on a straight-line basis over the actual rent payments required by lhe terms of our

leases. ! !
’ I

16. Commitments and contingencies (Continued)

Minimum future rental payments under noncancellable operating leases as of April 2, 20_06 ar‘_e summarized

as follows: : |
Fiscal year ‘
(dollars in thousands) '
0. 7 S S . $ 5100
D008 . ettt e " 4,443
.00 L S 3,744
) L T e 3,076 ;
11 15 U PP ; 1,301
B0 173 V(<) o O P | 602
TOML v e v e e e et e e e e e - $18,266

R 1
We have subleased some of our leased premises to third parties under subleases with varying,terms through
2008. Expected future sublease receipts under such sub-lease agreements are summarized as If-:)ilm'\.'s:

Fiscal year {

(dollars in thousands) ‘ [
2007 o e £ 385
70 . S 334
2000 e e 283
.11 ) 0 PP 191
BOLL v oo e e e e e e . 50
S U e P $1,243

E i

Tully’s has funded the acquisition of equipment through capital leases. These leases typlcally have terms
ranging from three to five years and generally have bargain purchase options. Minimum future rental payments

under capital leases as of April 2, 2006 are summarized as follows: - %
. {
Fiscal year b
(dollars in thousands}) :
2007 .o e e e e L. 15100
2008 . . e e i 45
2000 L e 23
.11 1 P <15
.1 1 A 7T
Total minimum l€ase PAYMENE . .. . ... .. .cuuuunnnnnnanannaariiaiiionns . 190
Less: Amount representing future interest .. ...... ... . 0 i Lo (35)
Present value of net minimum lease payments under capital leases . ............ L | $155
i
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N
16. Commitments and contingencies (Contirlt_'ued) i

Purchase commitments

It is our general practice to enter into forward commitments for the purchase of green coffee in order to
secure future supplies of premium quality coffe'e beans that me€t our SpCleiC&thI‘lS in quantities that we estimate
will be required to meet our future roasting needs Typically, Tully’s has ente: red into contracts for the next
season’s delivery of green coffee beans to help ensure adequacy of supply. As of April 2, 2006, we had contracts
with fixed-price coffee purchase commitments and we also had commitments to purchase coffee at prices to be
determined by future coffee market indices (permttttng us to fix the price prtor to delivery, based on the then-
current market). In June 2006, we exercised our option to fix the pricing for these remaining contracts. As of
June 19, 2006, we had approximately $7,000, 000 in fixed price purchase commitments for Fiscal 2007. We
believe, based on relationships established withlour suppliers, that the risk oﬂ'non-deltvery on such purchase
commitments is remote. II .

|

Employment Agreements and Campenratmy'Armngemems : .

i
()

Under the employment letters for members of Tully’s senior managemeiit group, Tully’s has agreed to pay
severance compensation to these several executtves in the event their employ]ment by Tully’s is termmated for
reasons other than certain excluded c1rcumstances The amount of severance to be paid would depend upon the
rate of salary at the time of termination and othet factors. As of April 2, 2006, the aggregate contingent '

|4 i |
obligation for severance to these individuals was approximately $370,000. !

In April 2004 Tully’s accepted the resignat}ion of our then-president, ant? pursuant to his employment
agreement is required to pay him severance compensatton in varying mstallments over a twenty-four month
period ending July 2006. We recorded expense of $402,000 in Fiscal 2005 asla result of this matter, and the
unpaid balance of $50, G(}O was included in accnlted liabilities at April 2, 2006l : '

' , i

|
Contmgenc:es : ' | ;

In February 2004 a lawsuit was filed agamit Tully’s in Superior Court oﬁCaltfomla Los Angeles Coumy
{the “Court“) by two former store managers on behalf of themselves and on blelhalf of other former and current
store managers in the state of California. The sutt alleges that Tully’s 1mpropt rly classified such managers as
exempt under California’s wage and hour laws and seeks damages, restitution; reclassification and attorneys’ fees
and costs. Since the lawsuit was filed, Tully’s has investigated the matter and'vtgorously defended this ltugatton
Tully’s has also pursued dlternative dlspute resolutton p0551btltttes with the plaintiffs. . |

‘ | ;

While Tully’s denies all liability in this cas}e in order to settle the lawsurt and fully resolve the clatmls
brought by the plaintiffs without engaging in co.l.tly and protracted litigation, on April 21, 2005, the pames
entered into a memorandum of understanding regardmg the settlement of thts]matter which was subsequently
reflected by the parties in a Joint Stipulation of Settlement and Release (the “‘?ettlement Agreement”). On
July 11, 2005 the Court conditionally certified the class for purposes of the settlement and issued an order
granting the motion for preliminary approval of 'tlhe Settlement Agreement. Th:e settlement 1s subject to court
approval and Tully’s may. terminate the agreement if more than ten members of the settlement class opt out of the
settlement. In Fiscal 2005, Tully’s incurred a one -time charge of approxtmately $1.6 million for the settlement
and associated costs. Under the settlement, Tully s will make cash payments totalmg approximately $800 000 to
the settiement class over a three year period startmg upon final approval by the court. Subject to regulatory
approval and compliance with applicable secunttes laws, Tully’s will also i 1ssue 300,000 shares of its common
stock, with an agreed value of $450,000, to the settlement class during that thy ee year period. The Court has seta
final hearing date in September 2006. Tully’s 1n?uned approximately $32, OO(Lm legal fees and expenses dunng

' ' i
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16. Commitments and centingencies (Continued) | |

Fiscal 2006 in connection with this settlement. The settlement and associated costs expensed in Fiscal 2005, and
the antlupated timing for payment of the settlement costs, are summarized as follows (in addmon Icash

seftlement paymients after the initial payment will include interest at 6.75% per year): , |
: |

. Valuation of Cash
Shares of common stock  settlement | Combined
common stock  (at $1.50 per  paymentsand’ cash costs and
1o be issued share) related costs  common stock
Settlement costs payable in ! !
Fiscal 2007 . ... ... . i 56,250 $ 84375 § 150, 000 $ 234,375
Fiscal 2008 . ... ... . . i 93,750 140,625 250 000 390,625
Fiscal 2009 . ... ... ... 93,750 140,625 ZSIO,OOQ 390,625
Fiscal 2010 ......... ... .. ... ot 56,250 84,375 150,000 234,375
Total settlement €osts ...................... 300,000 450,000 800 000. 1,250,000
Legal and Other Costs ... ...oovvvnvennnnnnenn o, —_ ) — 378,000 378,000
Total settlement and associated costs . ............. 300,000 $450,000 $1 ,178,000 1,628,000
Less—amounts paid or included in accrued expenses b
atApril 2,2006 ....... ..o . | (535,000
Amount reported as other Iong-term liability at ' .-
April2,2006 ...... ... .. . i $1,093,000

1

We are a party to various other legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our busmess but are not _
currently a party to any other legal proceeding that we believe could have a material adverse’ effect on our

financial position or results of operations.

17. Stock options '
Com'panj Stock Incentive Plan ~ i

In 1994 Tully’s shareholders approved a Stock Incentive Plan (the “1994 Plan™) In August 1999 our
stockholders appmved an amended plan, which established the maximum number of shares 1ssuable under the
1994 Plan and the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (See Note 19) at 4,200,000, and in June 2003 our Board of
Directors further amended the 1994 Plan. By its terms, the 1994 Plan expired in October 2004 (this did not

terminate outstandmg options). ,
}

On September 23, 2004, the Tully’s Board of Directors approved the adoption of the 2004 Stock Option Plan,
effective as of November 1, 2004 and subject to shareholder approval. The 2004 Stock Option: Plan authonzes the
issuance of up to 2,500,000 shares of common stock under the 2004 Stock Option Plan and Tully’s Employee Stock
Purchase Plan. The Tully’s shareholders approved the 2004 Stock Option Plan in December 2004

The provisions of the 2004 Stock Option Plan (and the 1994 Plan prior to its explrauon) are summarized as
follows. We may issue incentive or nonqualified stock options to our employees and dlrectors Stock options are
granted solely at the discretion of our Board of Directors and are issued at a price determmed by our Board of
Directors. The term of éach option granted is-for such period as determined by our Board of D:recmrs but not
more than tén years from date of grant. Options are nontransferable and may generally be exerc:sed based on a
vesting schedule determined by our Board of Directors. The plan provides for acceleration of oulstandmg options
under certain conditions, including certain changes in control of Tully’s. i
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17. Stock options (Contmued) i ; }
! .
Fouuder’s Stock Option Plan | :

In addition to options granted under the 1994 Plan, our chairman and founder has granted options to,
purchase shares of his stock to employees and third parties (the “Founder’s Plan") No options have been' granted
by the Chairman under the Founder’s Plan smcé Fiscal 2002. These options h'ave vesting periods ranging ‘from
immediate vesting to five year vesting and have'a twenty-five year life. In Oclobcr 2005, the chairman and
founder contributed his holdmgs of Tully’s common stock to TTOK, LL.C, a llmlted liability company owned by

the chairman, and the Founder s Plan stock opuon obligations were assigned | to TTOK, LLC.
| I

All Plans . i i :
Under the intrinsic value method of accoutitmg, compensation cost is méasured as the excess, if any: of the
fair value of our stock at the date of grant over the amount the employee mustlpay to acquire the stock.
Compensation cost is amortized on a stralght-hn'e basis over the vesting period of the individual options. For
purposes of these computations, the estimated n{arket price per common shan,l at the time of grant has been
established by our board of directors and was $O 30 per share for options grantcd in Fiscal 2004 and Fiscal 2005
and $1.50 per share for options granted in Fiscal 2006 We have adopted the (hsclosure-only provisions SFAS
No. 123 for options granted to employees (see Note 1 for the disclosure of compensauon expense as if !
determined under the provisions of SFAS No. 123) Non-cash stock option cor'npensatlon expense, determined
under the intrinsic value méthod of accounting, totaled $114,000, $62,000, anld $87.000 for Fiscal 2006, Flscal
2005 and Fiscal 2004, respectively. : ‘ | |
| :
Stock option activity under the 1994 Plan, the 2004 Stock Option Plan, and the Founders Plan for Flscal
2006, Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal 2004 is summarized as follows:

! Number of Weighled-ave:j’age

| options exercise price
Balance, March 30,2003 .............. PURURRURURTROR i5.254,350 0.49 |
Granted ........... ... ... ... et 553,900 0.37
Forfeited .................cc.... e | (145,664) 0.64
Exercised ...................... S i — —
Balance, March 28,2004 .............. T i 5,662,586 $0.47 |
Granted ...... SO I ......... | 596,000 106
Forfeited .. ... U S . | (629,849) 125 !
Exercised ...................... ll ...................... (263,783) 0.06
Balance, April 3,2005 ................ e | 5,364,954 $0.47
Granted ............coeiiiii.. e . 596,008 1.50 !
Forfeited ...........ocovvvnnnn, bt e e | (447,394) 0.01 !
Exercised ...........cciiiiii.an. l ..................... : (633) 0.03 .
Balance, April 2,2006 ................ e 15,512,935 $0.51

{
¢

i |
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_1‘7 Stock options (Continned) - ! l

At April 2, 2006, options for 3,342,760 shares were outstanding under the 1994 Plan and optnons for
366,331 shares had been exercised under the 1994 Plan. At April 2, 2006, options for 484, 008 shares were
- outstanding under the 2004 Stock Optlon Plan and no options had been exercised under, the 2004 Stock Option
Plan, leavmg 2,015,992 shares available for grant under the 2004 Stock Option Plan and the Employee Stock
Purchase Plan. During June 2006, options for 66,000 shares were granted to the members of the’ board of
directors for service in Fiscal 2006. Qutstanding stock options are summarized as follows: i b

April 2, April 3, March 28,
2006 12005 | - 2004
Issued under the 1994 Plan , o ,
Employees and Dlrectors .................................... 2,188,525 2, 521 952 2,817,884
Dlrectors for Loan Guarantees . ... ... 1,152,235 1 152 235 1,152,235
Total Outstandmg underthe 1994 Plan . . ... ..o eee e, 3,340,760 3,674,1\87‘ 3,970,119
Outstanding under the 2004 Stock OptionPlan .. ............. ... ..., 484,008 b= —
Outstanding under the Founder’S'PIaﬁ ......... e e e 1,688,167 1,690,767 1,692,467
Total Outstanding Stock Options . ... .. e, 5,512,935 5,364,954 5,662,586

| {

. L . . , o i
The following table summarizes information about options granted undér the 1994 Plan and the 2004 Stock

Option Plan: . 1
Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005 l {Fiscal 2004
Weighted- Weighted: "~ Welghted-
average average ; average
]

Shares fair value Shares fair value Shares fair value

i

Weighted-average fair value of options granted . : A
during the year whose exercise price was : - ' : ‘
less than the fair vatue of the stock on the o . :
dateofgrant ................. ... ... 96,008 $0.30 200,000 $0.01 — e
- Weighted-average fair value of options granled - o *
during the year whose exercise price was
greater than or equal to the fair value of the : B
stock onthedateof grant . ............... © 500,000 $1.53 396,000 §$1:59.

7 .. 596,008 596,000

|
i
553,900 © $0.37
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NOTES TO CONSOL[DATED FINANCIAL STATEMI“‘NTS—(Contmued)

!
|
. |
17. Stock options. (Contmued) | fl i

!

!

The following lable summarizes mformanon about fixed-price opuons outstandmg at April 2, 2006 under
the 1994 Plan and the 2004 Stock Option Plan (1t excludes options exercrsable under the Founder’s Plan which
will not affect the outstandmg shares, or prov1de cash proceeds to Tully’s, lf exercrsed) |

: |

. “ elghted-average

. } Number * '} remaining Number
Exercise price I outstanding contractual life exercisable

) ‘ | 'l (years) I
$0.01 ...ovuiliiii SUUU 1,893460 -~ '\ 447 1,893,460
030 .. SUTR o 105008 | 896 105,008
031 e DU 415,161 L 7.62 - 322,152/
033......... PP P 10,874 | 5.02 10,8741
150 . ... b Lo 494,002 | 871 58,092
175 0 DT 50858 . | 292 50,858!
VT8 i 411,666 4.47 '411,666‘
200..... e L 130,000 - 8.65 —
225 i Lo 73,250, 3.46 73,2501
250 .. ... U Lo 240,399, 7.06 140,399
Total ... i

[N 3,824,768: 3,065,759 5

| :
18. Stockholders’ equity . ! ;
[ .
Rtghts Offering f ‘ L
Before October 1999 our shareholders ha'd a right to maintain the1r proportionate shareholdings in Tully’s
by purchasing shares before we offered them to'new investors. During F1sca¥ 2005, we conducted an offermg of
our common stock and mvestmem units (each umt consisting of convertible preferred stock and warrants to
purchase common stock) through the drstnbutlon of subscription rights to el1gxble shareholders and former
shareholders-(the “rights offering™). The pnmary purpose of the rights offermg was to provide an opportumty for

- our shareholders to satisfy any unsatisfied preemptwe rights that they may hlave had. We conducted the hghts

offering because we beheved that our ability to engage in financing or strategic transactions could be Ilmlted by
the potential risk of such poss1ble future preemﬁtlve rights claims, but that stich risk could be mitigated by a
number of possible defenses including the cornpletlon of the rights offenng li'l"he registration statement for the
rights offering was declared effective January 11, 2005 and eligible sharehol‘ders and former shareholders of
Tully’s received rights to purchase these securltles at the prices at which the securmes were issued by Tu]ly s .
between 1994 and 1999. Shareholders of record at January 6, 2005 received alleCl'lpthl'l privileges to pu'rchase
any shares of common stock and investment umts not purchased through the}izxermse of the rights. The nghts
offering closed on February 8, 2005. We recelved a total of $878,000 from lhe subscribers in this offermg
Qualified subscriptions were réceived with gross proceeds to Tully’s of $701! 1000. In May 2005, we refunded
$177,000 to subscribers for the ineligible subscnptlons and issued s:erm"lcate:sl for 337,216 shares of common
stock to the subscribers and we issued certificatés for 180,888 shares of Seriés A Convertitile Preferred Stock and
warrants to purchase 90, 444 shares of commonlstock to the subscribers'for tl'lle investment units. We incurred
offering costs of $458, 000 : IIT ! j

_ ) | g .

Preferred stock ; ' i* | : %

Each outstanding share of our Series A Preferred Stock is convertible af lany time by the holder thereof into
shares of common stock at the then-effective couversron price. In addition, e;alch outstanding share of Se?es A
l . 38 , | é
|
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Contmued)l

18. Stockholders’ equity (Continued) |

Preferred Stock is automatically convertible into shares of common stock when and if Tully’s completes an
underwritten public offering of Tully’s shares of common stock with gross proceeds to Tully| $'in excess of $15
million, at a per share price of $5.00 or more (“Qualified Offering™). The Series A Preferred| Stock contains an
anti-dilution protection right that provides for a weighted average adjustment of the conversion prrce in the evem
we issue shares of capital stock at an effective price less than the Series A Preferred conversron pnce then in :
effect, subject to certain limitations and exclusions. As a result, at April 2, 2006, each outstandmg Series A -
Convertible ' Preferred share could be convened at the option of the shareholder into 1.13 of our shares of
commaon stock. - : P

Holders of Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to receive dmdends when and if any d1v1dends are declared
to be paid by our Board of Directors. Voting rights of the Series A Preferred Stock are subject to adjustment for
the ann-dllutron adjustment and as a result, at April 2, 2006, each share of Series ‘A Preferred Stock was entitled
to cast 1.13 votes on all matters submitted to'a vote of our sharcholders. Series A Preferred shareholders may
exercise cumulative voting rights with respect to the election of Directors. i ,

In the event of any liquidation or winding up of Tully’s, each share of Series A Preferred Stock is entltled to
receive, prior and in preference to all other payments to the holders of Series B Preferred Stock and the shares of
common stock, an amount equal to $2. 50, plus any and all dectared but unpaid dividends wnth respect to such
share of Series A Preferred Stock (the “Series A Liquidation Preference”). Assuming drstnb;utron of the full
Series A Liquidation Preference, common stock liquidation preference (described below), arld the Series B
Liquidation Preference (described below), and subject to the rights of any-additional preferrled stock that may in
the future be designated and issued by Tully’s, our remaining assets available for d1str1butlo‘n to slhareholders
would be dlstnbuted pro rata among the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock, Series B Preferred Stock and
shares of common stock, treatmg the shares of Series A Preferred Stock and Series B Preferred Stock onan |
as-converted basis. . . ' "

i
|

Holders of Series A Preferred Stock have certain nghts to require us to reglster the. shares of common stock

. issued upon conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock. These rights generally allow- persons holdmg the

underlying shares of common stock to require Tully’s to use its best efforts to register the shares for resale under
the Securmes Act of 1933, as amended, and under such state securities laws as may be necessary These rights -
include the' right to demand that we file a registration statement for the underlying shares of common stock at the
shareholders’ option no more than one time following our initial public offering, if any, and lhereafter unlimited
rights once Tully’s is eligible to use Form S-3. ;
. . : .

Each outstandmg share of Senes B Preferred Stock is convertible at any time by the holder thereof into
shares of common stock at the then-effectwe conversion price. In addition, each outstandmg share of Series B
Preferred Stock is automatically convertible into shares of common stock at the then-effective-conversion price
when and if we make a Qualified Offering. The conversion price for the Series B Convemble Preferred shares is
subject to an anti-dilution adjustment, but no adjustment has been required and each Series'B Convemble
Preferred share could be converted at the option of the shareholder into one share of common stock as of April 2,
2006, |

Holders of Series B Preferred Stock are entitled to receive dividends when and if any dlvrdends are declared
to be paid by our Board of Directors. Each share of Series B Preferred Stock also is entrtled to cast one vote for
each share 'of common stock into which such share is then convertible on all matters submitted t0 a vote of the
shareholders of Tully’s.
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18. Stockholders’ equlty (Continued) | !

In the event of any liquidation or winding up of Tully’s, each share of Se¢ bes B Preferred Stock is enmled to
receive, after full satisfaction of the Series A Liquidation Preference and the ( ommon stock liquidation
preference (described below) and prior and in preference to all other payments to the holders of shares of
common stock, an amount equal to $2.50, plus E{ny and all declared but unpaJ]d dividends with respect to such
share of Series B Preferred Stock (the “Series B|L1qu1dat|(m Preference”). Aslgumlng distribution of the full
Series A Liquidation Preference, common stock: hqutdatlon preference and theI Series B Liquidation Preference
and subject to the rights of any additional series or classes of preferred stock ttllat may in the future be designated
and issued by Tully’s, the remaining assets of Tully s available for dlstnbunon to shareholders would be |
distributed pro rata among the holders of the Senes A Preferred Stock, Series IB Preferred Stock and shares of
common stock, treating the shares of Series A Cenvemble Preferred Stock an{d Series B Convertible Preferred

Stock on an as-converted bams | P
1

Common stock and Warrants 1

1
!

In the event of any hquldauon or winding up of Tully’s, after distribution; iof the full Series A Ltqutdauon
Preference, each common share is entitled to recewe an amount per share equﬁl to $2.25, plus any and a]l!
declared but unpaid dividends with respect to such share of shares of common“stock (the “common stock |
liquidation preference™). Assuming distribution of the full Series A quuldauon Preference, common stock
liquidation preference and the Series B quu1dat:0n Preference (described above) and subject to the rights of any
additional preferred stock that may in the future bc designated and issued by us, our remaining assets available
for distribution to shareholders would be dlstrlbuted pro rata among the holder s of the Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, Series B Convertible Preferred §tock and shares of common .tock treating the shares of Series
A Preferred Stock and Series B Preferred Stock on an as-converted basis. i

i

Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 44, 767 shares of common stock were issued to the Guarantors of the
KCL promissory note in Fiscal 2006. In May 2005 we issued warrants to purchase 90,444 shares to subscribers
in the rights offering as described above, ‘ | - :

!

In Fiscal 2006, warrants to purchase 18, 120|shares of common stock were exercised at $0.33 per share.
During Fiscal 20035, warrants to purchase 590 552 shares of common stock were exercised at prices between
$0.01 and $0.33 per share and during Fiscal 2001 warrants to purchase 82, 000 shares of common stock were
exercised at prices between $0.01 and $0.33 per share : :

| H
At April 2, 2006, we had warrants outstanding to purchase shares of our common stock as follows:

| ; ‘ Ouitlstanding Number Exbrcise

! ‘ warrants . exercisahle - Prices
Issued with Series A Preferred Stock investment umts ............... 6, 470 772 6,470,772 § I 0.33 .
Issued to guarantors of KCL promissory note (see Note 11) ........... ‘512 825 1768058 $ ' 005
Issued to holder of the convertible note in lieu of cash interest . ...... . ‘_)60 000 960,000 $ & 0.0l
Qther ................ e E ................... 431,052 431,052 $0.01-50.33
Total$ ....ov'. ... S e, 19,674,649 9,629,882

8|
|

1
l

C - e =
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19. Stock purchase plan |

In Fiscal 2000, our stockholders approved the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Purchase iPlan") The
Purchase Plan qualifies under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code. Tully’s has authorized up to 2,500,000
shares of common stock to be offered under the Purchase Plan and 2004 Stock Option Plan combined. No
offerings have yet occurred under the Purchase Plan. !

20. Employee 401(k) savings plan I ,
! |

During Fiscal 2000, we adopted a 401(k) savings plan for employees. Eligible employees may contribute up '
to 20% of their salaries to the plan. Eligible employees are employees over the age of 18 who have been
employed by Tully’s for six months. There is no mandatory match from Tully’s. Most plan admlmslranve costs
are paid by the 401(k} savings plan. '

21. Segmefnt Reporting ' i :

We present segment information in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounnng Standards No. 131,
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information (“SFAS 1317),” which establlshed
reporting and disclosure standards for an enterprise’s operating segments. Operating segments are, ' defined as
components of an enterprise for which separate financial information is available and regularly rev:ewed by our
senior management. - .

We are organized into three business units; {1} the Retail division, which includes our U.S. cbmpany-
operated retail store operations, (2) the Wholesale division, which sells to domestic customers in the
supermarket, food service, office coffee service, restaurant and institutional channels, and Wthh a]so handles our
mail order and internet sales, and (3) the Specialty division which sells products and matenals to our
international licensees and manages the international licensing of the Tully’s brand and is resp0n51b]e for the
franchising of Tully’s stores in the U.S. . :

[ !

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in the surﬁmary of
significant accounting policies in Note 1. We do not allocate our assets among our business units for purposes of
making business decisions, and therefore do not present asset information by operating segnllent F,arnmgs before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA™) is a financial measurement we use to measure the
operating performance of our operating segments. EBITDA excludes the effects of ﬂnancmg costs income taxes,
and non-cash depreciation and amortization. During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2006, we modlfied the financial
information’ presented to our senior management to include within the operating segment ﬁnancna.l information
(1) the cost of shipping products from our roasting plant and (2} allocated costs of our roastllng anld distribution
facility based upon the respective operaung segment product usage. For purposes of comparablllty, we have
restated the operating segment information for Fiscal 2006, Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal 2004 to reﬂect this
presentation. ‘[
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEME EIENTS-—(Contmued)
' !
‘ . 21. Segment Reporting (Continued) ) [
| The tables below présem information by o}perating segment: | !
! ' ! ‘ ' Years Endeci:
| : ’ ] April 2, April 3, March 28,
l 1l 2006 2005 2004
| (dollars in thousands)
Net sales ! o ' '
Retail division .....................! e oo $38,194 $40,102 840,617
Wholesale division e L LN 13,187 9,516 | 6,522
Specialty division™ .. ... ... ... .. } ................... SR 6,864 4,362 3,629
Netsales .........cocoooi e, PR T $58,245 $53,980 '$50,768
1 5

I
1
l Earnings before interest, taxes depreciation and amortization oo L
| Retail division® .. ............ ... .o b, 81953 $ 3,762 '$ 4,759
i
|
!

1

Wholesale division .......... .. il 1,750 1,549 1,191

Specialty division®.. ... oo 6,356 4,105 | 3,318
‘ Corporate and other expenses® .. ... ... ... ... i, (7,775  (9.414) | (7.438)

Gainon JapanRightssale .............L. ... .o i e 17,392 _ =
Earnings before interest, taxes, deprecnauon and amortization ............ .. 19,676 2 1,830
Depreciation and amomzauun ............. ‘ ........................ Lo (3,529 (3,651) . ©(3,622)
Income taxes ......... [ R EEE PP R RIS L (33% {52) (43)
Interest income, interqst expense, and loan guarantee fees . ............... [ .. £38%) (924) I (760)
Netincome (0SS) ....................... PRSP L., $15423 $(4,625) $(2,595)

}
Depreciation and amortization . i ' . !

Retail division .. .. .................... e L. $ 2444 5 2561 % 2,519

Wholesale division .................. e, b 330 346 i 313

Specialty division ................... P L. *k I R

Corporate and other expenses .......... e b 755 744 ;785

| .
Total depreciation and amortization ......... D i ... %3529 $ 3651 $ 3622
- _— i

) 1
**  not material—less than $£1,000 !

(1) Specialty division net sales and operating lr'lcome for Fiscal 2006 mclude 84,405,000 of deferred hcensc

revenue recognized as the result of the terrmnatlon of the license and supply agreements with Tully’ s Coffee
- Japan (see Note 13). .

{2) The Retail division operating results include adjustments for impairment of long—lwed assets of $236 000
(Fiscal 2006), $200,000 (Fiscal 2005}, $97, OOO (Fiscal 2004) and for amuunls required to close stores and

\ terminate store leases totaling $219,000 (Flscal 2006), $43,000 (Fiscal 2005) $170,000 (Fiscal 2004) (See
| Notes 8 and 15). ! |
H

(3) Corporate and other expenses for Fiscal 2005 include a charge of approxuinately $1,628,000 for the :

; settlement and associated costs related to a 1awsu1t {See Note 16). i
: |
+

22. Earnings (loss) per share i

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss), by the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding during the penod‘ Diluted earnings (loss} per share is computed by dmdmé net
income (loss) adjusted to eliminate the interest on convertible debt (if assumecl'to be converted), by the sum of
the weighted average number of common shares and the effect of dilutive common share equivalents.
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TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION |

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued) i
l

22. Earnings (loss) per share (Continued) !

Tully’s has granted options and warrants to purchase common stock, and issued preferred stock and debt
convertible into common stock {(collectively, the “common share equivalent instruments™). Undcr some -
circumstances, the common share equivalent instruments may have a dilutive effect on the calculahon of
earnings or loss per share. All of the common share equivalent instruments were excluded from the computation
of diluted loss per share for Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal 2004 because the effect of these meruments on'the

calculation would have been antldllutwe !

b

1
The computations of earnings (loss) per share, and of the weighted average shares used for basw earnings
(loss) per share and diluted earnings (loss) per share are summarized as follows: .

. Years Ended
April2, . April3, ~March 28,
2006 2005 -2004°
(dollars and shans in thousands,
except per share daln)
Computation of basic earnings (loss) per share
Net income (LoSS) .. ... oottt e $15, 423' b (4 625) $(2, 595)
Adjustrpents for basic earnings (loss) pershare . . ...................... — 1 —_ —
Net income (loss) for basic earnings (loss} pershare ... ................. $15,423‘ $ (4,625) $(2,595)
Weighted average shares used in computing basic earnings (loss) per ' ' '
share ....... e e e e 17,697 1§,‘8 12 16,451
Basic earnings (loss) pershare : . ..........oovnerennniiieaan.. $ 087 % (0.28) $ (0.16)
' }
Computation of dituted earnings (loss) per share 4 {
Net income (FOSS) . ...t et e $15,423 $(4,625) $(2,595)
Add interest on convertible note, if assumed tobe converted . ............ 167 - —_
Net income (loss) for diluted earnings (loss) per share .................. $15,500 § (4'1‘,62_5) $(2,595)
Weighted averaée shares used in computing diluted earnings (loss) per i ; -
ShATE L .. e 51,475 16,812 16,451
Diluted eamings (loss) pershare ..................... ... $ 030 % :(O.—28)- $-(0.16)
Weighted average shares used in computing earnings (loss) per share 7 i :
Weighted average common shares ouistanding, used in computing basic '
earnings (1088) PEr Share . .. ... ... ... ittt 17,697 16,812° 16,451
- Common share equivalent instruments for computmg diluted earnings (loss) ! ! '
per Share ... ’
Dilutive effect of Series A Convertible Preferred stock ....... . 17,534 [ — —
Dlluuve effect of Series B Convertible Preferred stock .. ........ 4,938 | — —
Dilutive effect of convertible promissorynote ................ 837 f— —
Dilutive effect of stock options (treasury stock method) . ........ 2,407 — —
Dilutive effect of warrants (treasury stock method) . .. .......... 8,062 | — —
Total common share equivalent instruments for computing diluted earnings "
(I0S8) PEL ShARE . . . .\ttt it e e e e 33,778 1 — —
Weighted average shares used in computing diluted earnings (loss) per . i
) 17:1 - G 51475 16,812 16451
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATIEZD FINANCIAL STATEMI' NTS—(Contlnued) '

[ [
| ¥ i
In June 2006, we renewed our credit facrlrty with Northrim until May 31 2007 (see Note 11). Also in June
2006, Tully’s notified UCC that it considers UCC to be in breach of Tully 5 hcense to UCC, and the pames have
commenced discussions regardmg the matter (see Note 13). - . ' 4

' . - i
' .

i

23. Subsequent Events

24, Selected Qual’terlyI Financial Data (Unaﬁdited) % }

Summarized quarterly financial mformaﬂcln for Fiscal 2006 and Fiscal 2 '005 is as follows. Our sales are
moderately seasonal. + 3 . , .

‘ | i i

| S 1st Qtr Zn:l Qtr  3rdQir  4th Qtr Total

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

. I
Fiscal 2006 ; l N n
NetSales ... ST $13,746 S171774% $14,228 $12,497 |$58,245
Gross Profit ...... ................ e 7,385, . l]ll,268* 6,346 6,149 | 31,148
‘ Netincome (J0sS) .......oovvvvnin.n, Lo, (885) 195996* ' (1,31-1) (2,377 | 15423
o ' Basic and Diluted Loss per Share L ' |
| Net income (loss) per basic share . ... ... .... .. $ (0053 ll 13§ (0.07) $ (0.13) s 087
. Net income (loss) per diluted share . Eoo $ (0.05) $ \0 39 $ 0.07) $ (0.13) $ 0.30
Fiscal 2005 . I '
. NelSales....'..;..:..................!' .......... $13,038, $13356 $13,869 $13,717 ]853,980
| Gross Profit . ..w.tvoeeeenan 73100 7262 7422- 8,129 | 30,123
| NetLoss ........ R PR ©97) (285  (590) (2.753) | (4.625)
_ Basic and Diluted Loss per Share I . i )
" NetLossperShare ............... e $ (006) $ (0.02) $ (0.04) $ (0.16) '$ (0.28)
E 3

Net sales, gross profils and net income for the second quarter of Fiscal 2006 include $4,405,000 of deferred
license revenue recogmzed as the result of lhe termination of the llcense}zmd supply agreements w1th Tully’s
Coffee Japan (see Note 13). Net income for lhe second quarter of Flscal 2006 also inclides $17, 392 000
gain from the Japan Rights sale. !

! It ;
During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2006 and Fiscal 2003, the followmg adjustments were recorded (dollars
in thousands): ‘ i ) \

L S 1 Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005
Impairment of long- hved assets ........ \ ....................... do $.2316. $ 200
Wholesale discounts and allowances, adjustment for actual earned ! '

allowances in excess of amounts prev1ously estimated ............ ceee o $300 $ —
: Increase allowance for doubtful accounts recelvable ............ e Joen - $100 $ —i
i Settlement of litigation (see Note 16) ... . . P . . 5— $
i

J . a

] )
. '

It
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: TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATIO}\I
: CONDENSED C?NSOLIDATED BALANCL SHEETS
| : ! | December 31,
T [ 0 2006 | April 2,
i | . . (unaudited) 2006
i - (dollars in thousands,
l | ) except per share data)
o Assets
Current assets : . ; .
Cashandcashequwalents..................................: .............. $ 526 . % 57381
Accounts recewable,.net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $272 and $149 at : ’
December 31, 2006 and April 2, 2006, respeenvely ....... F o, 3,925 2,305
e TN SO L 3,682 3,140
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . “ ................... .. i ............ 843 853
Total current assets 'jl ....................... l ..... PR S 8979 11,679
Propertyandequlpmentnet...............1...............:...*...f'.i ............. 7,552 8,611
Goodwill, net .........}0... e B S O 456 456
Other intangible assets, net e S| SRR 269 405
Other assets .......... S L 320 376
Total assets . ... ... il ....... e I. $17,576  $21,527
Liabilities and Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity '
Current liabilities ‘ l . li © o | ‘
Accountspayable . ...................| e e S $ 4459 $ 3398
Accrued [abilifies ... ... o G 3,776 2,779
Credit line and current portion of long- termIdebt ................... Ao 3274 2 126
Current portion of capital lease obligations .11 ................... TN 51 83
Deferred revenue ©..1%................ 1. e 3,813 2,486
Total current liabilities . ............... ‘ .......... e o 15373 10,872
Long-term debt, net of cur're'nt portion ....... b e Mo g 22 28
.Capital lease obligation, net of current portion . b e e } ............ , 63 CT2-
Other liabilities .. ..... O U N ST 937 1,093
’ Deferred]easecosts..‘..!.".................If ................... 'i . 1,30$ 1,421
Deferred revenue, net of clprrent portion ...... L. .. L .L.i ............ 1,787 2,914
Total liabilities . ... . i e J ....................... '.l ............ 19,487 16,400
Commitments and contmgencres {Note 6) ‘ : t i T
Stockholders’ (deficit) equity v
Series A Convertible Preferred stock, no par value 31,000,000 shares authonzed !
15,559,152 shares 1ssued and outstandmg, stated value of $2. 50 per shdre and a _ . 1]
liquidation preference of $38,898 ... 1.l o .. 34639 34,639
Common stock, no par value; 120,000,000 shares authorized; 18, 976 452|shares issued '
and outstanding as of December 31, 2006 with a liquidation preferenu of $39, 981 .. 9,728 9,610
Series B Convertible Preferred stock, no par value; 8,000,000 shares authorrzed
4,920,709 shares 1ssued and cutstanding, stated value of $2.50 per share anda- !
liquidation preference of $12,302 ..... 1 ................... Foen s AU o 10,911 10,911
Additional paid-in caprtal T e :i e 28,557 28,339
- Accumulated deficit | . ................. e b (85,746)  (78,372)
Total stockholders’ (deﬁcrt) equity ....... ‘ ‘ .............. e I ...... e (1,91 i) 5,127
Total liabilities and.sfoekholders’ (deficit) e‘q‘uity e e ! ............ $ 17,576 § 21,527

1
| : .
The accompanymg notes are an mtegral part of these condensed consolidaled financial statements.
I
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TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION I

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STAﬁIMENTS OF’Of’ERATIONSI

Thirteen Week Penods Ended Thlrty-Nme Week Periods Ended

December 31, January 1, December 31 ! January 1
2006 2006 2006 2006
(unaudited) (unaudited) {unaudited) | (unaudlted)
: (dollars in thousands, except peri shareldata)
Netsales .. ...oovei e it a e N B
Salesof products ..........ooiiiiiiiieann $15,642 $13,862 $45347 |  $39,280
Licenses, royalties,and fees . .. .............. 44 6 129 817
Recognition of deferred licensing revenue ..... 363 360 1,089 5,651
NELSAlES ...\ v oot 16,049 14,228 46,565 "| 45,748
Cost of goods sold and operating expenses ......... ;
Cost of goods sold and retated occupancy , ‘
EXPEMSES .. .ivvrinnnnos S . 8,828 7485 - 25,198 20,288
Store operating expenses .............. ..., 4,596 4,287 . 13,535 12,995
Other operating expenses ................... 1,979 . 921 4,293 2,508
Marketing, general and administrative costs . ... 2,464 1,759 8,031 ' 6,013
Deprec1at10n and amortization ............... 845 873 2,636 2,673
Settlemcm of litigation . .............. PR — — 72 —
Store closure and lease termination costs ... ... (2) 211 96 176
Total cost of goods sold and opetating _ '
eXPenses ........ .. e 18,710 15,536 53,771 44,653
Operating income (1088) . . ............... e (2,661) (1,308) (7,206) 1,095
Other income (€XPense) ...........veuuvenrens :
Interestexpense ..............c.oooviiunnnnn 91) (114) (227) | 472)
Interest inComMe ... .....ooeeiiiiiennnannn. — 98 56 133
Gain on sale of Japan Rights ................ — — - | 1739
Miscellaneous income . ....... ... . .00 4 13 22 57
Loan guhrantee feeexpense ................. — — P (66)
 Total other income (expense) ............ (87) (3) (149) 17,044
Income (loss) before income taxes .. .............. (2,748) (1,311) (7,3?55) 18,139
TNCOME LAXES .+« .o\ v v oo et eeeeeeeiens (19 - (19 | - (339
Net income (0SS « .« . v vvvvvrerreezeeeeaeennnn $(2767)  $(1311y $(1.374) $17,800
Eamings (loss) per share .....................0. ' .
Basic earnings (loss) per share ............... $ 015 % (0.07) $ (0 41) $ 1.00
Diluted earnmgs (Ioss) pershare ............. $ (0.15) $ (0.07) $ (0. 41)- $ 035
Weighted average ‘shares used in computmg earnings ‘

(loss) per share (in thousands) ........ ......... ' i _
Basic earnings (loss) pershare ......... DI 18,527 - 17,761 18,Q22 17,759
Diluted earnings (loss) per share ....... . 18,527 17,761 18,(}22 ) 51,800

|
I

i
|
|
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condcnsed consolidated ﬁnancra'l statements.
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TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION

'
'

B .
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS i
! l
i " ) ) . Thirty-Nine Week Periods Ended
: December 31, January 1,
_ } 2006 | 2006
C I (unaudited) (unaudited)

(dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Netmcome(loss)...................' ............................. . $(7,374) $ 17,800
Adjustments to reconcﬂe net income (loss) to net cash used in operatmg|
activities: ................ ... .. D [P T o

Depreciation and amortization . .. ] L. 2,636 " 2673
Store closure and lease termination c'osts ............... P Moo 96 ‘ 176
Employee stock option compensatlon EXPENSE ..ot v veernrnnnn Lo 218 ! 113
Loan guarantee fee expense . ... ... T S — : 66
Provision for doubtful ACCOUNLS + . . 1% oot I 120 90
Gain on sale of Japan Rights . .. .. b, L. S (17.392)

Gain on sale of property and equ1pmcm .....................
Recognition of deferred license revenues ................. e
Changes in assets and liabilities . . U A

Accounts receivable . ... .. ... N NP (1,739) T (569)

; ..... (1) @
INVeNtories .. ...ovneerrn... |: ....................... ! ..... (557) . (610)
|
1
|
]
1
\

..... S (L089) i (5.602)

Prepaid expenses and other T D SO 421 - 613
Accounts payable .......... ... .. . b - 1,060 (1,767)
Accrued liabilities ... ... ..ouveeeiree i b 934 (1,572)
Deferredrevenue ......... .0 ... i 1,289 T 345
" Deferred'lease costs .. ....... } .............................. (116) - (143)

Net cash used in operatmgjacuvmes ..................... (4,102) . (5,781)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: ‘

Net proceeds from Japan Rights saIeE.: ....................... [ — . 17,392
Purchases of property and equipment ....................... L.... (1,490) (1,088)
Additions to intangible assets .....J.... ... ... .ol TR (€1D)] (10)
Proceeds from sale of property and equi'pment ................ | ..... 13 : 30
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities .. ... Il ..... _(1,508) M
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACT IVITIES ! :

Net payments under credit line ... | e l ..... 1,077 (591
Payments on long-term debt and capital 1eases . . ... ..oooeon... hoves (353) " (3,546)
Proceeds from exercise of warrants : ........................ bl 34 ! 3
Net cash prov1ded by (used in) financing activities ... ; ..... 758 . (4,134)

. Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ........... [ (4,852) ' 6,409
Cash and cash equivalents at begmmng ofperiod ............ | : ..... 5,381 1,437
Cash and cash equlvalents at end of penod ................... Lo $ 529 $ 7,846

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW [NFORMATION

Cash paid during the period for mtcresl ..................... S 5 220 $ 472

Non-cash investing and financing actlmues ................... ' ..... |
Insurance premiums financed through note payable . .. RN $ 377 § 535
Purchase of property and equ1pment through capital leases . . . $ 27 $ 11
Llablllly paid through i lssuance ofstock ............. '{ ..... $ 84 8 -

The accompanyi_ng notes are an integral part of these condensed congolidated financial statements.
. * + i
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TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION ,

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
{(Unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentation ! '

The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tully’s Coffee Corporatlon In
these condensed consolidated financial statements, references to “we,” *“us,” “Tully’s” or the ‘.‘Company refer to
Tully’s Coffee Corporation. . ! |

We end our fiscal year on the Sunday closest to March 31. As a result, we record our revenue and expenses
ona52or53 week period, depending on the year. The fiscal year ending April 3, 2005 (“Fxscal 2005”) included
53 weeks. Each of the fiscal years ended April 2, 2006 (“Fiscal 2006°") and March 28, 2004 (“Flscal 2004™)
included 52 weeks. The fiscal year ending April 1, 2007 (“Fiscal 2007") will include 52 weeks

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements include all adjustments, Iconsi:sting only of
normal recurring adjustments that, in the opinion of management, are necessary to fairly present the financial
information set forth therein, Certain information and note disclosures normally included in ﬁnancnlal statements
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or omltted pursuant
to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). Results Iof operatlons for:
the thirteen week period ended December 31, 2006 (“Third Quarter 2007”), the thirty-nine week. perlod ended
December 31, 2006 (“Nine Months Fiscal 2007™), the thirteen week period ended January 1, 2006 ( “Third
Quarter 20067}, and the thirty-nine week period ended January 1, 2006 (“Nine Months Fiscal 2006| ) are not
necessarily indicative of future financial results. L

Investors should read these interim financial statements in conjunction with “Managemefnt’s D:iscussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and the financial statements and notes thereto
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K, SEC File No. 000- 26829 for Fiscal 2006 (the “Form 10-K™).

Stock-based compensation ! [

On April 3,.2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Stalndards {“SFAS™) No 123'(Revised),
“Share-Based Payment,” (“SFAS 123(R)”} which requires the measurement and recognition. of C()mpel‘lsatl()n for
all stock-based awards made to employees, including stock options and restricted stock rlghts based on
estimated fair values. SFAS 123(R) supersedes previous accounting under Accounting Prmc1ples Board Opmmn

No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” (“APB 257). i

We adopted SFAS 123(R) using the modified prospective transition method, which requlres the application
of the accounting standard as of April 3, 2006. In accordance with the modified prospective transmon method,
our condensed consolidated financial statements for periods prior to the Nine Months Fiscal 2007 have not been
restated to reflect this change. Stock-based compensation recognized under the new standard i is based on the
value of the portion of the stock-based award that vests during the period, adjusted for expected forfeltures
Stock-based compensation recognized in our condensed consolidated financial statements fonthe Nme Months
Fiscal 2007 include compensation cost for stock-based awards granted prior to, but not fully Vested as of, April 2,
2006, and stock-based awards granted subsequent to ‘April 2, 2006. Our stock-based awards consist : pnmarlly of

stock options granted to employees and directors. ' i

The compensation cost for awards granted prior to April 2, 2006 is based on the grant- -date falﬁ vilue of the
stock-based award estimated in accordance with the pro forma provisions of SFAS 123, whlleI awa:ds granted
after April 2, 2006 follow the provistons of SFAS 123(R). Compensation cost for awards gramcd prlor to April 2,
2006 is recogmzed on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately remammg vesting
. portion of the award, while compensation cost for awards granted after April 2, 2006 is recogmzedlon a straight-
line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award. '
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; TULLY’S1 COFFEE CORPORATIOIlwiI |
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOI‘.IDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Contmuet:i)
I (Unaudited) I , |

o
1. Basis of Presentation (Continued) ‘ _ I : i

t

+

For all of these stock based awards, we have used the Black-Scholes optlon pricing model for the ua]uauon
for stock option awards on the date of grant. These computations are affecteld by the estimated fair value of our,
stock at the grant date as well as assumptions regarding a number of highly complex-and subjective varlables
These variables include, but are not limited to, ithe expected life of the awar(l' our expected stock price volattllty
over the term of the award and actual and projected exercise behaviors. Although the fair value of stock!option
. awards is determined mlaccordance with SFAS1 123(R), the Black-Scholes 0pt10ﬂ pricing model requires the -
input of subjective assumptlons and other reasonable assumptions could prov1de dtffermg results. !

t
1

' i
Lo 1 :
Cash and cash equivalents _ . i
Cash equivalents in excess of current operatmg requirements are mvested in short-term interest- bearmg
instruments with maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase and are statecl at cost, which
- approximates market value

i

i

P ] :
} |

| |

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenues 1nc1ude unearned reveoue from our gift and purchaScE stored value cards, which %.re
recognized upen redempuon and amounts relqted to advance territorial llcenlse fees from 1.5. franchise and
international licensing agreements, which are generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the expected life
of the agreements. e 1 !

' i

Reclassifications ! ! ' T
Reclassifications of pnor year balances have been made to conform to the current year c1a551ﬁcattons and
have no impact on net income (loss) or ﬁnanc1al position. . |

i
{

Recent Accounting Pronouncemenrs li ! ‘

On July 13, 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretatlon No 48, Accomimng for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes — an Interpreratwn of FASB Statement I 09 (“FIN 48" or the “Interpretat:on ’) relcttmg to mcome taxes.
This Interpretation clanﬁes the accounting for uncertamty in-income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s{financial
statements in accordance w1th FASB Staterent No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. The Interpretatlon
prescribes a recogmtlon,threshold and measurejment attribute for the ﬁnanc1 !11 statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax retum I’he Interpretation also provtdes
guidance on derecogmtlon classification, 1nterest and penalties, accounting m interim periods, disclosure, and
transition. FIN 48 is effecnve for fiscal years begmmng after December 15, 2006 so the Company expects to
adopt the new requireménts in the first quarter of Fiscal 2008 and is currently evaluating the impact that the

adoption of FIN 48 will have on its consolidated financial statements. ' :
. t ! | . !
2. Liquidity : N ,’ E !

1

As discussed in Note 5 on August 31, 2005 we sold certain mte]lectual propeny assets and rights to Tully’s
Coffee Japan (the “Japan Rights™) for $17,500, OOO These .cash proceeds are being used to improve our ﬁnancml
condition, to fund our current operations, and to accelerate the developmentiof our business outside of Jz apan.

L t.
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TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION ! !

. . |
NOTES TQ CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(Unaudited) |

) t

2. quuldlty (Continued) }

As of December 31, 2006 we had cash and cash equivalents of $529,000, and a working lv.:apltal deficit of
$6,394,000. Because we principally operate as a “cash retail business,” we generally do not re'qurre}a significant
net investment in ‘working capital and historically have operated with current liabilities in excess of of our current
assets. Our Wholesale division requires a greater level of investment in accounts receivable and 1nventory, which
have 1ncreased as that-business has grown. Our inventory levels typically increase during the spnng due to coffee
crop seasonahty and, to a lesser degree, during the autumn due to holiday season merchandrse Invemorles are
also subject to short-term fluctuations based upon the timing of coffee receipts: Tully’s expects that its

investment in accounts receivable and inventories will be relatively constant for the remamde'r of Flscal 2007, but
will increase in Fiscal 2008, primarily as the result of anticipated further growth in the Wholelsale division.
: t

Cash requrrements for the remainder of Fiscal 2007, other than normal operating expenses and the-
commitments described in the condensed consolidated financial statements and notes and in the de 10-K, are
expected to consist pnmanly of capital expenditures related 10 the opening of new company-operaled stores and

| i
equipment and accounts receivable related to new Wholesale division business. Franchlscd and ]rcensed stores do
not require caprta] investment in property and-equipment by Tully’s, but we do incur sellmg and support costs for
such new stores related to store opening, training, and quality control. We expect to open twd or fewer company-
operated stores in the remainder of Fiscal 2007 In Fiscal 2008, we expect to open up to 40 new company-
~ operated stores, depending upon the amount and’ ‘timing of the caplta] raised for this purpose, las delscrlbed below.
" Typically, a new company-operated store will require capital investment of approximately $ lOO 000 to $400,000,
but this varies depending on the specific location. Some of these capital expcndltures may be accompllshed
through operating or capital leases. a I

In November 2006, we renewed our secured credit facility with Northrim Funding Services ({Northrim”™)
and increased the credit line available as described in Note 4, ‘ ‘

Liabilities at December 31; 2006 include deferred licensing revenue in the aggregate ardount tof $3,252,000.
~ We will liquidate the deferred revenue balance through recognition of non-cash revenues in fulure periods, rather
than through cash payments (see Note 5}, b
We believe that the operating cash flows, financing cash flows, and investing cash ﬂow,s pro]ected for the

remainder of Fiscal 2007, the cash and cash equivalents of $529,000 at December 31,2006, and our credit
facility will be sufficient to fund ongoing operations of Tully's through the remainder of Fiscal 2007 We expect
our business improvement initiatives and other actions will improve our operating income and cash flow results.
Tully’s business plan for Fiscal 2008 reflects a greater emphasis on business growth, mclud1pg a grealcr number
of new company-operated store openings, than has been typical during the past few years. However the timing
and extent of success for these strategies cannot be predicted with any level of certainty. In order to continue our
growth efforts and maintain an appropriate level of liquidity, we expect to seek additional sources of business
funding (such as debt or equity financings) during the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2007 or in Flscal 2008 If the
pricing or terms for any new financing do not meet our expectauons we may be requrred to choose between
completion of the financing on such unfavorable terms or not completing the financing. If other sources of capital
are unavailable, or are available only on a limited basis or under unacceptable terms, then we could be required
to substantlally reduce operating, marketing, general and administrative costs related to our comrnumg
operations, or reduce or discontinue our investments in store improvements, new customers and new products
We could be required to sell stores or other assets and could be unable to take advantagc of busmess
opportunities or respond to competitive pressures. The sale of stores or other income- producmg assets could
adversely affect our future operating results and cash flows. :
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TULLY’ S COFFEE CORPORATION |
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLI'DATED FINANCIAL S'I ATEMENTS—(Contmued)

, \ (Unaudited)
oo ' |
3. Inventories , ( i
Inventories cdnsist:of the following: ' , . !
‘ Cor — l
‘ i . | December 31, ;
‘ ! 2006 April 2,
(unandited) 2006
o . ' . (dollars in thousands)
Coffee o ‘ . . '1 -
Unroasted .. .t........eennns, USRS $1338  §.939
Roasted ...................... TR U S © 1,346 1,361
Other goods held forsale ............. L L 460 416 .
Packaging and other supplies ......... Il ....................... _l ..... : 538 1424
Total ....... ..o iiiiii L | RN $3,682 $3,140

4. Credit line and lon‘g ferm debt J

On June 22, 2005, Tully’s entered into a secured credit facility w1lh Northnm (the “Northrim Fac:llly ). In -
November 2006, the crednt facility was renewed until October 31, 2007, unless terminated earlier by enher party
and the credit facility was increased from $3, 000 000 to $5,000,000, sub_]ect to the amount of eligible accounts
receivable and inventories: Borrowings under this facility bear interest at Lhelpnme rate plus 3.5% and are
secured by our inventories and through the a351§nment (with recourse) of our‘accounts receivable. An annual

commitment fee of up to, $20 000 applies on the facility. ‘
Obligations under the Northrim Facility an}d long-term debt consist of tﬁ'e following: !
. f N +
. : }
! ‘ I, " . December 31, !
: - 2006 April 2,
| ‘ (unaudited) 2006
. ; (dollars in thousands)
Borrowings under the Northrim Facility .!....................... E $2978 51 901
Note payable for purchase of insurance, co]laterallzed by unearned or retum
insurance premmms accrued dividends ind loss payments ........ L 288 216

Vehicle purchase note payable in monthly lnslallments of appmxlmately
$833 including mterest at 3.98%, througF March 2010, secured by the

- related vehicles ... ... .. ... ) (. TR 30 1 37
f ! | 3% 2,154
Less: Current portion ................. e .. (3274 (2,126)

Long-term debt: e USRI L. s 2 $ 128
: | '
[ , l
5. International Licenses and Deferred Revenue - ‘ '
: ' ' ‘
! Tully's Coffee Japan ‘

A
Prior to August 31, 2005 Tully’s had llcense and supply agreements w:th its licensee for Japan, Tully ]

Coffee Japan. On August I9 2005, Tully’s and Tully s Coffee Japan entered into the Japan nghts Agreement
under which Tully’s agreed to sell to Tully’s Coffee Japan all of Tully’s nght']‘l title and interest for Japan: with
respect to the Tully’s trademarks store designs, processes and other mtel]ectua] property assets and rights for the

i - | |

i . | '
|
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TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Contmued)
(Unaudited)

5. International Licenses and Deferred Revenue (Continued). {

' 1

Tully’s business in Japan for $17,500,000. The Japan Rights Agreement does not provide Tully’s ¢offee Japan
with the right to use Tully's proprietary intellectual properties outside of Japan and does not affect;Tully’s
ownership or rights with respect to the Tully’s intellectual properties outside of Japan. Tully’s and Tully’s Coffee
Japan have agreed to cooperate in the development of the Tully’s brand for the mutual benefit of the two
companies. ! {

The Japan Rights sale closed on August 31, 2005 and Tully’s received $13,819,000 on August 31, 2005.
The remaining $3,681,000 of the purchase price was paid by Tully’s Coffee Japan to Tully’s on October 5, 2005.
Under the Japan Rights Agreement, the parties also resolved a tax indemnification claim prevxously made by .
Tully's Coffee Japan without any further payments by either party. Tully’s recognized a gain 'of $17 392,600 on
the Japan Rights sale, as follows (dollars in thousands): \

Cash sales price for Japan Rights . .. ......... ... o i i $17,500
LessS—transaction COSLS . . . oot vttt e vt e et e e et ettt et e ' 1 (108)

Gainonsaleof Japan Rights .. ..... ... . ... .. . . . .. . i i, $17,392

Under tlhe Japan Rights Agreement, the license and supply agreements with Tully’s Coffee Jalpan were
terminated on August 31, 2005 and Tully’s right to receive llcense fees and coffee roasting fees from Tully’s
Coffee Japan terminated for periods after July 31, 2005. License fees and coffée roasting fee Tevenues from
Tully’s Coffee Japan are summarized as follows (dollars in thousands):

Thirteen Week pericds ended - Thirty-Nine Week periods ended

December 31,  January 1, December 31;° January 1,
2006 2006 2006 2006
(unaudited) (unaundited) (unaudited)i (unandited)
License fees and coffee roasting fee revenues from : :
Tully’s Coffee Japan ......................... $— $— $— ; $811
l

As the result of the termination of the license and supply agreements with Tully’s Coffée Japan we
recognized the unamortized balance of the deferred license revenue related to these agreements, Wthh
aggregated $4 405,000 as of August 31, 2005, in Fiscal 2006. -

UCC Ueshima Coffee Company, Lid. ; j

In April 2001, Tully’s granted UCC Ueshima Coffee Company, Ltd. (“UCC”) a llcensej 10 establlsh and
operate Tully’s specialty coffee stores, including a license to use Tully’s business names, trademarks and
intellectual property rights for purposes of establishing and operating Tully’s stores, and to sell Tully s coffee at
wholesale, in 25 Asian countries (excluding Japan which is served by Tully’s Coffee Japan)l UCC operates retail
stores and sells coffee under various UCC brands in many parts of Asia, and reported revenues of over $1 billion
in the year ended March 31, 2006. i

. I !

Smce the license agreement was executed in April 2001, UCC has opened one Tully’s store \which it closed
in 2004. UCC has not established nor operated any other Tully’s stores nor engaged in wholesale sales of Tully’s
products within its territory. Asia has been a strong growth market for specialty coffee compames in this same
time period. Tully’s has attempted to find a mutually satisfactory resolution to this problem with UCC These
efforts were not successful. In June 2006, Tully’s notified UCC that it is in breach of the license agreement

|
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TULLY’S ‘COFFEE CORPORAT]ON

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Contmued)
I {(Unaudited) "
g

5. International Licenses and Deferred Rfj‘yenue (Continued) |

Despite attempts by Tully’s to reach an amicable resolution of this dispute, n:o agreement has been reached. On
November 14, 2006, Tully's notified UCC thatlthe license agreement is terminated.
l '

On November 7, 2006 UCC filed a lawsuit in the United States District ICourt for the Western District of
Washington. The suit alleges that Tully’s breached the license agreement by among other things, terminating the
license agreement for non-performance and seeks a declaration that UCC is not in breach of the license
agreement, that Tully’s is in breach, and that UCC is entitled to enforce its alleged security interest as to certain
of Tully’s assets that were subject to the hcense .agreement (i.e., the Asian tr.ldemarks and the right to use Tully’s
intellectual properties in the territories). The surt further seeks a preliminary lﬂjUﬂCthI’l enjoining Tully’s from
taking any action to decrease the value of the l1cense rights, an injunction pr(1h1b1tmg Tully’s from lermmatmg
the license agreement, and for attorneys fees an‘d costs. The litigation is in the early stages of discovery. The
parties have commenced the initial stages of dlscovery Trial has been scheduled for April 7, 2008.

Tully’s denies any liability whatsoever to UCC and intends to vrgorously defend its rights under the license
agreement and the claims in this lawsuit. On December 7, 2006, Tully’s filed' 1ts answer, affirmative defenses and
counterclaims. Tully’s counterclaims include: a request for a declaratory Judz,ment that the license agreement is
terminated; damages for UCC’s breach of contract damages for UCC’s ant1c1patory breach of contract; and
damages for UCC’s mlsrepresentauons that wrongfully induced Tully’s to enter into the license agreement We
are seeking an award of pre-judgment interest and of Tully’s attorneys fees and costs. We intend to vrgorously
defend against the claims by UCC and to prosecute our counterclaims but thla litigation is in its early stages and
the ultimate outcome of the matter therefore is uncertain. It is not currently possrble to estimate the additional
impact, if any, that the ultimate resolution of th1}s matter wiil bave on Tully s'results of operations, financial
position, or cash flows. Tully’s has included in “other operating expenses’ the actual and estimated costs for the
Company'’s defense and for prosecution of its counterclaims (including $700, 000 accrued at December 31 2006)
in the amounts of $758,000 for Third Quarter 2007 and $799,000 for the Nlm. Months Fiscal 2007,

At the April 2001 commencement of the UCC license term, UCC paid a: llcense fee of $12 million to
Tully’s. The license agreement provided that this fee was fully earned upon paymem Under the license
agreement, Tully’s would also be paid.a royalty'of 1% on all associated retail and wholesale sales in these
territories, starting after a zero royalty period of,between seven and eight yea1§ Additionally, throughout the

contract term, Tully’s would have sales and profits associated with the sale of coffee, products, supplies and
equipment for the licensed wholesale and retail businesses in the territories. I

|

Tully’s initially recorded the $12 million ltlcense fee as deferred revenue, Iano:i has recognized it as revenue
on a pertodic basis during the zero royalty pCl’lOfi during which it was expecteld that Tully's would have
substantial performance obligations associated w1th supporting the opening and operation of Tully’s stores by
UCC. As a result, deferred licensing revenues (mcluded in liabilities) at December 31, 2006 inctude $3, 240 000
associated with the UCC license agreement. l} : ,

After assessing the developments of the past few months, including the attempts to amicably resolve the
dispute with UCC, the continuing nonperforman'ce by UCC, the November 14 2006 termination of the ltcense
agreement by Tully’s (which is contested by UC|C) and the litigation descnbed above, Tully’s believes it is
unlikely that any substantial performance will be required by Tully’s during the remainder of the zero royalty
period established under the license agreement. However due to the early sta; e of the litigation with UCC,
Tully’s believes it is premature to account for the termination of this license agreement as a “repossessmn under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 45, “Accounting for Franchise Fee Revenue” (which would

|
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TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION Co

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Contmued)
(Unaudited)

| .
I
I .
5. International Licenses and Deferred Revenue (Continued) . :
result in the accelerated recognition of the remaining deferred revenue amounts and recognmon of assoc1ated )
deferred eosls of approximately $159,000 at December 31, 2006). Accordingly, Tully’s commued to amortize the
revenue in Third Quarter 2007 on the same basis as in the previous quarters of Fiscal 2007. Tully § expects to
penodlcally reevaluate the timing for recognition of this deferred revenue and the associated deferred cosls,

based upon the development of the UCC litigation. ;

. , | .
Deferred licensing revenue recognized under the agreements with Tully’s Coffee Japan and the license
agreement with UCC is summarized as follows (dollars in thousands): |
Thirteen Week periods ended Thirty-Nine Week periods ended

December 31, . January 1, December 31, January 1,
© 20064 T 2006 BN 2006 7 2006 *

! (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)]  (unaudited)
Recognition of deferred license revenue under

international agreements |
Periodic recognition of deferred license revenue I
.. under-agreements with Tully’s Coffee Japan . ... .. $— $— $ —

$ 166
Revenue recognized upon termination of license and .. i [ '
supply agreements under agreements with Tully’s ’
Coffee Japan ... — — — 4,405
Total deferred license revenue recognized under ' i
agreements with Tully’s Coffee Japan ........... — — — 4,571
Periodic recognition of deferred license revenue :
u_nder UCC license agreement ................. 360 360 1,080 1,080
Total deferred license revenue recognized under :
agreements with Tully’s Coffee Japan and UCC ...  $360 $360 $1,080 $5,651
_ == {
Deferred revenue is summarized as follows: I '
| Thirty-Nine Week
: l period ended
: December 31, 2006
) | (dollars in
- thousands)
Deferred licensing revenue: L
" Additions to deferred licensing revenue inthe period . ... ... ... ... Lo
Less: Deferred licensing revenue recognized innetsales ........................ : .. ’ (l 080)
L8 111 1<) N 31~ S OGO Lo (9)
Net decrease in deferred licensing revenue for the period ........ ... L ool P (l,089)
Less: Deferred Licensing Reversal ............iv.i'vereieeieaaneon .. Lo (25)
Deferred license revenue ' |
Beginning of period . . . ... ... Lot 4,367
End of Period - ... ... e I 3,253*
Less: NOR-CUrTent POrtion . .. ... .o i ittt in s ieananaaenns s l (1,787)
Current portion of deferred licensing revenue . ............. ... .. ... ... . i il ! 1,466
Deferred revenue from stored value cards ............ U e P 2,347
Current porlion deferred revenue . ........ ... . i [ .. J $ 3,813

*  Includes $3,240,000 of deferred revenues associated with the UCC license agreement,!as delscribed above.
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Contmued)
| (Unaudited) ;
: |
6. Commitments and contingencies ‘ E :

Employment Agreements and Compensatory A{r‘an gements

On August 28, 2006, we entered into a sefzaration agreement with our thlen president and chief oper!aung
officer, Mr. John Dresel, that terminated his employment effective Septembt“r 13, 2006, under which we agreed
to pay him severance compensation of $200, 000 over a twelve month period btartmg in September 2006! This
obligation was accrued durmg the thirteen weelﬁt period ended October 1, 20(}6 (“Second Quarter 2007"’)i

On Septerber 1, 2006, Tully s entered i mto an employmeat agreement wuh Mr John Buller, who has been
appointed President and CEQ as of August 21, 2006 Under the employmennagreement Tully’s agreed that
Mr. Buller will receive a base salary of $200, 000 per year, effective August ”l 2006. Mr. Buller’s base balary is
subject to review in September each year, but shall not be less than $200, 000 per year without the mutual
agreement of the parties. Mr. Buller shall be eh'gtble for additional equity ami cash compensation based on an
incentive and bonus plan to be agreed upon by the partres o | ’ i

¥ I !

Mr. Buller's employment is generally termmab]e by Mr. Buller on:30 d.lys written notice. H]S employment
may be terminated by Tully’s “for cause”. If Mr Buller’s employment is tennmated by Tully’s “without'cause,’
he will be entitled to receive certain severance beneﬁts If terminated * w1thout cause” on or before Fehruary 21,
2008, Mr. Buller will receive severance pay equal to two years of his then current base salary, paid out monthly,
plus a one-time payment of $100,000. If tennmated ‘without cause” after February 21, 2008, Mr. Buller will
receive severance pay equa] to one year of his then current base salary, paid monthly. Further, all unvested stock
options that would otherwise have vested in the one year period after the effelf!uve date for termination of his
employment will vest as of the termination date Ifa change in control of Tul[y s occurs within four months after
the effective date of Mr. Buller § lermination, at Mr. Buller’s option he may recewe the payments provided under
the change in control provisions in lieu of recen}mg the severance payments. [n the event of Mr. Buller’s!
termination by Tully's or a third party as a result of a change in control, Mr, Buller will receive severance pay
equal to two years of his then current base salary, paid out monthly, plus a one -time payment of $100,000 and all
of his unvested stock opuons will vest as of the termmauon date. '

: | :
Contingencies } i X

In February 2004 a lawsuit was filed agalnst Tully’s in Superior Court 0‘| LCaliforma, Los Angeles Cbunty
(the “Court”™} by two former store managers on behalf of themselves and on behalf of other former and current
store managers in the state of California. The surt alleged that Tully’s impropc rly classified such managers as
exempt under California’ s wage and hour laws and sought damages, resutuuo'r:t reclassification and attorneys
fees and costs. On April 21, 2005, the parties entered into a memorandum of tllnderstandmg regarding the |
settlement of this matter, which was subsequently reflected by the parties in a*Jomt Stipulation of Settlement and
Release (the “Settlement Agreement") On September t4, 2006, the Court granted final approval of the
Settlement Agreement and dismissed the suit wnh prejudice. i X
|
|
l

1
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Contmued)
(Unaudited) . |

6. Commitments and contingencies (Continued) }

In Fiscal 2003, Tully’s incurred a one-time charge of aﬁproximalely $1.6 million for the settle'rnenl and
_associated costs. In connection with the final approval of the settlement, Tully’s incurred addltlonal expenses of
$72,000 in Second Quarter 2007. Under the settlement, Tully’s will make cash payments totalmg .1'ppr0x1mate]y
$800,000 10 the settlement class over a three year period starting in October 2006. Tully’s W1ll alsoI issue 300,000
shares of its common stock, with an agreed value of $450,000, to the settlement class during lhal three year
period commencing in October 2006. The settlement and associated costs expensed in Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal
2007, and the anticipated timing for payment of the settlemerit costs, are summarized as follows (m addition, .
cash settlement payments after the initial payment will include interest at 6.75% per year): |

Valuation of * !

Shares of common stock Cash Combined

common stock  {(at $1.5¢ per  settlement  cash costs and
to be issued share) payments| common stock

Common stock issued and payments made in October : i -
2006 . o 56,250 $ 84,375 $164,000 $ 248375

Settlement costs payable in

October.2007 ... ... .o 93,750 140,625 266,000 406,625
October 2008 . ... ... ... e 93,750 140,625 266,000 406,625
October2009 . ...... ... i 56,250 84,375 159,000 243,375
Total settlement costs . ........co i iiininn, 300,000 $450,000  $855,000 $1,305,000

. ) . : |
In November 2006, UCC filed a lawsuit against Tully’s in connection with a dispute among the parties
‘regarding UCC’s performance under the license agreement between UCC and Tully’s, as described in Note 5.
We are a party to various other legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our business, but are not
currently a party to any other legal proceeding that we believe could have a material adverse effect on our
financial position or results of operations. :
|
7. Stock options !
t
Effective Apnl 3, 2006, we adopted SFAS 123(R), which establishes accounting for stock-based awards
exchanged for employee services, using the modified prospective application transition method Accordmgly,
stock-based compensation cost is measured at grant date, based on the fair value of the award and recognized
over the requisite service period. Previously, we applied APB 25 and related interpretations, as permitted by
SFAS 123. !

‘Company Stock Incentive Plan P!

In 1994F Tully’s shareholders approved a Stock Incentive Plan (the 1994 Plan™). In August {999 our
stockholders approved an amended plan, which established the maximum number of shares 1ssuable under the
1994 Plan and the Employee Stock Purchase Plan at 4,200,000, and in June 2003, our Board of Dlrectors further
amended the 1994 Plan. By its terms, the 1994 Plan expired in October 2004 (this did not termmate outstanding
options).

In December 2004, the Tully’s shareholders approved the 2004 Stock Option Plan, effectwe as of
November I, 2004. The 2004 Stock Option Plan authorizes the issuance of up to 2,500,000 sharcs of common
stock under the 2004 Stock Option Plan and Tully’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan. :

' f
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7. Stock options (Continuéd) . , 1|
The provisions of the 2004 Stock Option Plan (and the 1994 Plan pnor,to its expiration) are. summarized as
follows. We may issue incentive or nonqualified stock options to our employees and directors. Stock options are
granted solely at the discretion of our Board of Directors and are issued at a prlce determined by our Bolard of
Directors. The term of each option granted is for such period as determined Iby our Board of Directors, but not
more than ten years from date of grant. Options are nontransferable and may|generally be exercised based ona
vesting schedule determined by our Board of Directors. The plan provides ft')r acceleration of outstandin £ options
under certain conditions, including certain chan{gcs in control of Tully’s. ‘ |
' |
i 1 |
In addition to opuons granted under the 1994 Pian, our chairman and founder has granted options to
purchase shares of his stock to employees and }hrrd pames (the “Founder’s l’llan "}. No options have been granted
by the Chairman under the Founder’s Plan srnc}e Fiscal 2002. These options lllave vesting periods ranging from
immediate vesting to five’ year vesting and have a twenty-five year life. In October 2005, the chairman and
founder contributed his holdings of Tully’s common stock to TTOK, LLC a Ihmrted liability company owned by
the chairman, and the Founder’s Plan stock optmn obligations were assrgned ito TTOK, LLC.

! |
' ]
Other Equity Instruments | i

Founder’s Stock Opti'nn Plan

‘
'

Tully’s has granted warrants to purchase common stock. These warrant; have up to one year vesung periods
i It
and generally have ten year lives. Issued, outstandmg and exercisable warrants as of December 31, 2006 are
summarized as follows: ' [
| i

' Outstandmg Number Exercise
i - {warrants exercisable Prices
Issued with Series A Preferred Stock investment units ............... 6 470 772 6470772 % 0.33
Issued to guarantors of debt ............... | 1262431 1,262431 § ; 0.0
Issued to holder of conveértible note in lieu of cash interest ........... 960,000 960,000 § | 0.01
Other .............. T S 431,02 431052 $ 0,01-80.33
TOS -\ R IR 91124255 9,124255

1
i
Stock Options :
We issue new shares of common stock upon the exercise of stock 6pti0nt.i granted under the 1994 Plan and
the 2004 Stock Option Plan The exercise of optlons granted under the Fourlder s Plan results in a transfer of
shares to the exercising optionee from the shares owned by TTOK, LLC, and ‘does nat affect the total outstandmg
shares of stock or provide cash proceeds to Tull_y S.

v

|

|

f |

Determining Fair Value Under SFAS 123(R) l
Valuation and Amamzanon Method. E ' f

We estimated the fair value of stock nptlon| awards granted using the Blde-SChOICS option valuatlon model.

We amortize the fair value of all awards on a straight-line basis over the requllsue service periods, which are

generally the vesting periods. : | F
I | |

i )
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Contmued)
{(Unaudited) l

7.  Stock options {Continued) E

Expected Life. ) ' ;"
The expected life of awards granted represents the period of time that they are expected to be outstanding.

We determined the expected life based primarily on historical expertence with similar awards gwmg
consideration to the contractual terms, vesting schedules, expected exercises and post-vesting forfellltures.
" i

Expected Volatiliry : ‘ |
I
We esnmated the volatility of our common stock at the date of grant based on the htstoncal volatlllty of our
common stock The volatility factor we use in the Black-Scholes option valuation model is based on our
historical stock prices over the most recent period commensurate with the estimated expected life of the award.

t
i

1
Risk-Free Interest Rate.

We based our risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes option valuation model on the"?mplied risk-
free interest rate with an equivalent remaining term equal to the expected life of the award. |
: o . ! f
Expected Dividend Yield. ' !
We use an expected dividend yield of zero in the Black-Scholes option valuation model, consistent with our
recent experience. f i
i i
The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes pptlon pricing
model. A summary of the assumptions and resulting weighted average fair value results for optmns granted
during the periods presented is as follows: !. i

i

Thirteen Week - i ThlrtLy-Nme Week '
periods ended. | periods ended °
December 31, January !, December 31, Januaryl,
2006 2006 2006° | 2006
: . ' (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudtled) {unaudited}
Risk free interestrate .................. e * 2.78% 4.85% - 5.09% 2.78%
Expected dividend yiel .................. ... ... ..... * 0% 0% 0%-
Expected li\t'es ..................................... * 3years  3years; 3 years ,
Expected volatility .............cccovuiiinvueannannn * 86%  85%-92% 84% - 86% '
Weighted average fair value atdateof grant ............. * $0.17 $0 85 ’ $0.17-3085

* No option grants occurred in the period presented |

1 .
} i

Expected Forfeitures. |

i
'
|
i

{ ‘4
7 We pnmanly use historical data to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitures. We record stock—based
e compensatlon only for those awards that are expected to vest. For Third Quarter 2007 we estlmated our
pre vesting option forfeiture rate at 18%.

Stock based Compensation Under SFAS I23(R) i |

Stock-based compensation expense related to stock-based awards under SFAS 123(R) for the Nine Months
Fiscal 2007 totaled $218,000, which is included in marketing, general and administrative costs m our Condensed
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7. Stock options (Continued)

Consolidated Statement of Operations. This is a non-cash expense. During Nme Months Fiscal 2006, wé
recognized non-cash compensatlon expense of $1 13,000 and disclosed a pro| 'forma non- cash compensatmn

expense consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148 of $249,000.

i

I
As of December 31! 2006, we had approxzmately $348,000 of total unre f:ogmzed compensation cost related
to the 612,712 non-vested stock-based awards granted under all equity compensatlon plans. We expect t?

recognize this cost over a penod of approx1mate]y four years. !

1

The following table presents the impact of our adoption of SFAS 123(R) on data in our condensed i
consolidated financial statements for Third Quarter 2007 (in thousands except per share amounts):

i

!
t

. Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations:
Decrease in income from operations
Decrease in income or increase in loss before income taxes
Decrease in net mcome or increase in net loss
Decrease in basic and diluted earnings per share or increase in basic and dl]uted

net loss per share

Condensed Consolidated Ba]ance Sheet:
Increase in additional- pzud in-capital

* Less than $0.01 per share

l

Stock Award Activity
As of December 31, 2006 options for 3,493,981 shares were outstandmg

outstanding options granted under our option plans

b L

’l‘hlrteen-Week Thirty-Nine Week
Period Ended Period Ended
December 31,2006 December 31, 2006

$(63) $(218)
(63) (218)
(63) (218)
i .
— * $(0.01)
|
$ 63 $ 218

|

under the 1994 Plan and Lhe 2004
Stock Option Plan, of Wthh 2,881,269 were fully vested. The fo]lowmg table}

surmnanzcs information about

2! Weighted- Fair I
; | : average market !
remaining Number value of Aggregate
i . Number contractual |' exercisable shares intrinsic
Exercise price per share ' outstanding  life (years) ! and vested vested | value
Outstanding under the 1994 P]an and the 2004 Stock | '
Option Plan
3001 ... oo e b 1,282,855 4.13 1,282,855 $1,807,852 $1,911,454
030 ....... e o 105,008 g2t 105,008 16923 1126,010
0.31 i* 409,493 6.37 399,825 99,851 475,792
033 ......... SR .. 10,874 428 10,874 21,687 12,723
150 o b 992,247 8.90 419203 318047 | —
LTS oo .o 485mM 2.26 48,572 84,163 -
L78 oo L. 406,666 371 ) 406666 417,915 I —
200 ..., OO L. 30,000 8.38 — - —
27 T P . 71,200 215 71,200 135,620 l —_
$250 ...t L. 137,066 528" | 137,066 41472 1 —
Total Outstanding under the 1994 Plan and the 2004 . |
Stock Option Plan . .' ....................... 3,463,981 591 2,881,269 2943530 2,525,979
Outstanding under the Founders Plan (exercise price of 1 . }
$0.01 pershare) ........ l.' .................... . - 1,688,167 1534 1,688,167 2,783,153 2,515,369
Total .................. LR | ... 5,182,148 ' 4,569,436 $5,726,683 $5",041,348
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L
7. Stock_opltions (Cm_i_ltinued) . '

The following table summarizes activity under our stock option plans in the Nine Months Fiscal 2007:

i Welghted -average
Number of Shares  exercise price per share

. Outstandlng at begmnmg of the penod ........................... 5,512,935 : | $0.51
’ Granted . .. .0 .. . [ 566,000 ! " 1.50
EXEICISEA .\ v e et e e e e (600,617) 0.01
Forfeited .......... ... ..o (296,170) , 1.96
Expired ‘. ............................................... — ; =
O}Jtstandmg attheendof theperiod ............................. 5,182,148 . $0.59
Exercisablc or convertible at the end of the period ... .............. 4569436 | 18047

:Options for 500,000 shares with an exercise price of $1.50 per share were granted to Mr. 'Bullér with
100,000 shares vested on September 1, 2006 and the remaining 400,000 shares vesting pro-rata on August 21,
© 2007 through 2010 Expense of $82,000 was recorded in Second Quarter 2007 in connection “Imh the’ grant. In
connection: w1th the separation of Mr. Dresel, unvested options to purchase 220,000 shares of common stock
" were cancelled These options had an exercise prices of $1.50 (20,000 shares), $2.00 (100,000. shares) and $2.50

(100, 000 shartizs) t

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding at December 31, 2006 is calculated as the difference
between the market price of the underlying common stock and the exercise price of the optlons for the 3,496,397
options that had exercise prices that were lower than the $1.50 fair market value, as determined by our Board of
Du’ectors of our common stock at December 31, 2006. » i

© Thé total intrinsic value of optlons exercised during the Nine Manths Fiscal 2007 and Nlne Months Fiscal
2006 was $895 000 and $0, respectively, determined as of the date of exercise. !

-Pro F orma Informatwn Under SFAS 123 and APB 25

. Prior to Flscal 2007, our stock-based compensation was accounted for using the intrinsic va\luel method
-prescribed in APB 25 and related mterpretatlons Had compensation cost under our stock optlon plans been
. determined- ba’sed on the fair value at the grant dates for awards under those plans consistent with the method of
SFAS 123, our net loss and basic and diluted net loss per share would have been changed to the proiforma
" amounts mdlcaled below (in thousands, except for per share data): l

[
Third Quarter Nme Months Fiscal
2006

2006
{unaudited) i (unaudlted)
Stock- based employee compensation cost . |
As reported ........................................ $ 15 $ l 113
ProfOrma .. ..ottt e e e $ 43 ' 249
 Netincome (loss}-asreported .. ................... .. ... ... $(1,31D) $17" 800
. Neti mcome (loss)-proforma ............. . ... .. ... ... ... $(1,339) ' $17 664
Basic eammgs (loss) per share ' {
Asreported .............. e 3 (0.07) o § Ll 00
Proforma .......oviii $ (0.0 % .1.00
Diluted ei'jmings {loss) per share : [
ASTEPOIEA . . oottt e et e $ 007 % ‘035
Proforma ... ... $ (0.07) $ 035

R O R N .k i
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TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION

I
NOTESTO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S'] f\TEMENTS—(Contmued)
P 1 (Unaudited) i

8. Stockholders’ Equity

During Fiscal 2005 we conducted an offermg of our common stock and investment units (each unit
consisting of convertible preferred stock and warrants to purchase common stock) through the dtstrrbutlon of
subscription rights to eligible sharcholders and former shareholders (thc “rtghts offering”). The rights offermg
closed on February 8, 2005. In May 20035, we 1ssucd 337,216 shares of common stock, 180,888 shares of Series
A Convertible Preferred stock, and warrants to purchase 90,444 shares of common stock to the subscnbers in the

rights offering. . i I .

1
: 1

9. Segment Reportmg |

We present segmem information in accordance with Statement of Fma|nctal Accountmg Standards=No 131,
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise 'and Related Information (“SI AS 131),” which estabhshed
reporting and disclosure standards for an enterpnse § operating segments. Operatmg segments are defined as
components of an cnterpnse for which scparatc financial mformanon is available and regularly revrewed by our
senior management.

! .

We are organized mto three business units: (1) the Retail division, whrch includes our U.S. company-
operated retail store operattons (2) the Wholesale division, which sells to domestic customers in the
supermarket, food service, office coffee service, restaurant and mstltuuonal’channels and which also handles our
mail order and internet sales, and (3) the Spec1alty division, which sells products and materials to our !
international licensees and manages the mtemauonal licensing of the Tully’. s brand and is responsible for the
franchrsmg of Tully’ s stores in the United States y l ;

We do not allocate our assets among our busmcss units for purposes of: 'making business dectsronsI and
therefore do not present asset information by operatmg segment. Earnings b'efore interest, taxes, deprec1at:on and
amortization (“EBITDA”) is a financial measdremcnt we use to meastre the operating performance of our
‘operating segments. EBITDA excludes the efflects of financing costs, mcordc': taxes, and non-cash deprdc:atron
and amortization. We have modified the ﬁnancral information presented to our senior management to mclude
within the operating segment financial mformatton (1) the cost of shipping i)roducts from our roasting plant and
(2) allocated costs of our roasting and drsmbutron facility based upon. the reﬁpecuve operating segment. product
usage. For purposes of comparability, we have:restated the operating segment information for periods prior to
Fiscal 2007 to reflect this presentation. ’

¢
.‘
1

!
!
|
|
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9. Segment Reporting (Continued)

The tables below present information by operating segment:

Net sales
Retail division .......................
Wholesale division . ...................
Specialty division (O ... ... Lo

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (“EBITDA™)
Retail diviSion . .....oovvneeennnnnn...
Wholesale division . ...................
Specialty division®™ _ ... ... .. ... L
Corporate and other expenses ...........
Gain on Sale of Japan Rights ............

Earnings (losé) before interest, taxes, depreciation and
AMOEHZAION . .ttt ve s iie e iaee e
Depreciation zfmd amortization ...................
Incometaxes . ...t e
Interest income, interest expense, and loan guarantee
feBs o e e e

Netincome {loss) ................covnin.nn.

Depreciation and amortization
Retall division ....... .o i oe
Wholesale division ......... ... ...
Specralty division ............. ... ...
Corporate and other expenses . ..........

Total depreciation and amortization ..........

il Amounts are less than $1,000.

Thirteen Week Periods Ended  Thirty-Nine Week Periods Ended

December 31, - Januaryl,  December 31, January 1,
2006 2006 006 2006 4
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)
(dollars in thousands) (dollars in thousands)

!
$10,013 $ 9,589 $29,426 $29,0I4
5,629 4,269 15, 915 10,255
407 370 i 224 6,479
$16,049 $14,228 $46,565 $45,748”
$ 589 $ 301 $ 1,333 | $ 1,676
329 695 1,604 1,676
(495) 249 28 6,074
(2,235) (1,667) (7,513) {5,601)
— — -+ | 17,392

! T :

I
(1,812) {422) (4,548) 21,217
(845) (873) - (2,636) C(2,673)
(19) — (|l9) T (339)
o '
{91) (16) (171 |, ~ (405)
$(2767)  $(1311)  $(71374) { $17,800
= — -
! :
$ 612 5 605 $ 1,869 $ 1,846
72 84 229 252
*% *k ok ok
161 184 538 } 575
S 845 § 873 $ 2,636 $ 2,673
of non-cash

(1) Spec1alty diviston net sales and EBITDA for the Nine Months Fiscal 2006 include $4, 405 000
deferred license revenue recogmzed as the result of the termination of the license and suﬁply agreements
with Tully s Coffee Japan (see Note 5). Specialty division EBITDA includes actual and estlmated legal and
other costs associated with the UCC litigation, as described in Note 5, of $758,000 for Thlrd Quarter 2007,

and $799 000 for the Nine Months Flscal 2007,

10. Earmngs (Loss) Per Common Share

]

[

f
Basic eammgs (loss) per share is computed by dividing net earnings (loss) by;the weighted- average number
of common: shares outstanding durmg the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed by dmdmg net!
earning (Ioss) iby the sum of the weighted average number of common shares and the effect of dilutive common

share equnvalems if any.
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[ 1
b

10. Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share (C}ontmued)

|

Tully’s has granted options and warrants (o purchase common stock, aud issued preferred stock and debt
convertible into common stock (collectively, the ‘common share equivalent mstruments”) The converttble debt
was repaid in the third quarter of Fiscal 2006. Under some circumstances, the common share equrva]ent

instruments may have adilutive effect on the calculatlon of earnings or lossiper share.

I .

|
Thirteen Week Perlods| Ended Thirty-Nine Week Periods Ended

i
Computation of basic.earnings (loss) per share
Netincome (loss) . ................. ...,
Adjustments for bas1c earnings (loss) per1
share ..., 0o

.Net income (loss) for basic earnings (loss) per
share ...... I S

Weighted average shares used in computing
basic earnings (loss) per share ......1......
Basic earnings (loss) per share .. .. i ......
Computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share
Netincome (loss) .. ................ 4. ......
Add interest on convertlble note, if assumecl 1o
beconverted ............ ... ... . ...

Net income (loss) for diluted earnings (loss) per

share ....... . ... ... .. ' ......

Weighted average shares used in computlng

diluted earmngs (loss) per share .. ... 1.‘ ......
Diluted earnings (loss) per share ..1......
Weighted average shares used i in computing earnings
(loss) per share .

Welghted average common shares outstanding,
used in computing basic earnings (loss).per
share ...... ... oo il ee e

Cornmon share equlvalent instruments for!
. computing diluted earnings (loss) per share .
Dilutive effect of Series A Convertible
Preferred stock .............. fr ......
Dilutive effect of Series B Convertlble
Preferredstock ..............0......
Dilutive effect of convertible prormssory
note ..... T, i ......
Dilutive effect of stock options (treasury
stock method) ......................
Dilutive effect of warrants (treasury stock
method) ................... 0 ...,

Total common share equwalent mstruments for
computing dilutéd earnings (loss) per share ..

Weighted average shares used in computmg
diluted earnings (loss) pershare . ....!......
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December 31, - January 1, December 31, January 1,
: 2006 2006 2006 | 2006
{unaudited) (unaudlted) (unaudited) (unaudlted] R
(dollars and shalles in thousands, except per share data)
I
$2767) $ (‘1I 31 1) $(7.374) $17,800
- ) — _ b —
T r
$(2,767) $(1,311) $(7,374) $17,800
! |
18,527 1 7 761 18,022 117,759
$ (0.15) $ (0 07) $ 04D $ 1.00
1
$(2.7677 (1 31)  $(7.374) $17,800
— ; — — 1167
C$Q.767) -$(1 31 $(7.374) $17,967
il ' i
18,527 17,761 18,022 151,800
$ (0.15) '(0 07) $ (0.41) $ 035
g |
' i
I X
18,527 17,761 18,022 i 17,759
'
E
_ L —
[}
.'!
18,527 17,761
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TULLY’S COFFEE CORPORATION ;

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—'(Cop'tinued)
(Unaudited)

i
1

|
11. Comprehensive Income (Loss) - _ Vo {

i
There were no components of other comprehensive income (loss) other than net loss dpring;the Nine
Months Fiscal 2007 and Nine Months Fiscal 2006, so that net income (loss) equaled compre;:hg:nsivc income
(loss) in each of these periods. '

1

| b
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MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND CORPORATE INFORMATIOPI

: ’

t

l

Market Informatlon, Holders and Dmdends i

Currently there is no pubhc market for Tully s common stock. As of January 31, 2007 there were
approximately 5,100 holdTrs of Tully’s common: stock '

The Company has’ not paid dividends in the past and Tully’s presently d0|.s not plan to pay d1v1dends|1n the
foreseeable future. The Company intends to retam and use earnings to ﬁnance the growth of its business for an
indefinite period. Any determination to pay cash dividends will be at the dlscn tlon of the Board of Dlrectors and

1
will be dependent upon the Company’s financial Ic:ondmon results of operanons capltal requirements and. ‘such
other factors as the Board of Directors deems relevant !

i
1
|
|
1
1
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Tom T. O'Keefe

Chairman of the Board and Founder

of Tully’s Coffee Corporation
Marc Evanger

Retired Chief Financial Officer
of Quality Food Centers

Gregory A. Hubert

Owner-operator of Red Robin and

Johnny Carino’s franchised
restaurants

John K. Bullier

President and Chief Executive
Officer

Ron Gai l

Vice President, Wholesale Sales

Annual Meeting

Thursday, March 29, 2007
8:00 a.m. local time

Museum of Fllght

9404 East Margmal Way South
Seattle, WA! 98108

CORPORATION INFORMATION
TULLY’S'BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Kathi Ainsworth-Jones
Executive Director and Secretary
of Microsoft Alumni Network

John M., Fluke, Jr.
Founder and Chairman of Fluke
Capital Management, L.P.

TULLY'S LEADERSHIP TEAM

Kristopher §. Galvin
Executive Vice-President and
Chief Financial Officer

Mark Dacosta
Vice President, Wholesale
Operations

"SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholder Inquiries: '

John K. Buller '

President and Chlef Executive
Officer |
Lawrence L. Hood
President of PaCIﬁC|Wealth
Advisors

Dana Pratt '
Vice President, Ret?,il
i
|
Rob Martin |
Vice President, Merchandising
and Productiorf: ;

{

Call Investor Relations at (206} 233 2070
Or e-mail us at investor. relauons@tullys com

i
|
i

A copy of Tully s annual report to the Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K (wnthout the exhibits
thereto) and quarterly reports on Form 10-Q will be provided to any shareholder without charge upon written

request directed to:

Investor Relations

Tu‘lly’s Coffee Corporation
3100 Airport Way South

Seattle, WA 98134

General information about our company is also available at our web site, www tullys.com

CORPORATE OFFICE

Headqual;ters and Roasting Plant

3100 Airport Way South
Seattle, WA98134

Phone: (206) 233-2070
(800) 96TULLY
Facsimile: (206) 233-2077
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BiLenDING

Qur blends are ¢ culmination of art
and science. Each is born from a creative spark,

andfo”owing the initial inspiration, our

passion for the perfect cup takes over.

Euery blend is built by leveraging years
of experience, subtle roast modifications,

and continuous cuppings.

The goal of our blending process is to create

unique aromas and flavors that cannot be found

in any single origin coffee.

Brian SPEckMaN
Tul_fy s Coffee Master Roaster




i
i1
|
°l
|
U UiSJCOEEEEJCORRORATION I

13 100]AirpordWaylSouth¥SeattleMWashington]381:34)
WwwwitillysTeom)

T T T

<
, 3 Mixed Sources
Product group from wetl-managed
" fofests and other controfled sources
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